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Dear Sirs,

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
2011 Annual Report

It is my pleasure to present to you a copy of the 2011 Annual
Report of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited.

‘"The Annual Report sets out the major business developments and a
review of the financial performance of the Corporation in 2011. The strong
performance strengthens the Corporation’s financial position and greatly
enhances its ability to perform its strategic functions in pursuit of its policy
objectives. The Corporation will continue to contribute to the development of
Hong Kong’s housing-finance system and to complement the Government’s
policies through product innovation, making mortgage financing more accessible
to homebuyers.

Yours faithfully,

James H. Lau Jr. )

Chief Executive Ofﬁcer

A wholly-owned Hong Kong SAR Government Corporation through the Exchange Fund
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Core Missions

To enhance the stability of the banking sector
through the offering of a reliable source of liquidity,
thereby reducing the concentration and liquidity
risks of mortgage lending of the banks;

To promote wider home ownership in Hong Kong; and

To facilitate the growth and development of the
debt securities and mortgage-backed securities

markets in Hong Kong.
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Financial Highlights

2011 2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FOR THE YEAR
Net interest income 854,813 970,581 1,037,707
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,255,731 1,233,532 1,006,469
Loan purchases 9,682,571 4,748,181 8,768,789
Debt securities issued 28,549,278 8,279,703 22,688,680
Net premiums written 529,533 950,458 915,227
AT YEAR END
Loan portfolio, net 33,135,818 35,258,937 43,788,716
Total assets 56,501,346 55,032,978 59,750,624
Debt securities issued 41,097,207 39,127,735 44,495,073
Mortgage-backed securities issued 367137 1,529,749 2,020,394
Mortgage insurance - risk-in-force ' 14,147,266 15,234,179 11,592,494
OTHER STATISTICS
Net interest margin 1.7% 1.8% 1.7%
Capital adequacy ratio/Capital-to-assets ratio 2 19.7% 10.8% 9.5%
Cost-to-income ratio 11.8% 11.0% 12.4%
Return on assets 2.3% 2.2% 1.6%
Return on shareholders’ equity 15.5% 17.5% 16.2%

The risk-in-force excludes exposure that has been covered by quota-share reinsurance arrangement.

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2011 was compiled with the new Guidelines on the Capital Adequacy Ratio

stipulated by the Financial Secretary on 7 October 2011 for replacement of the previous guidelines on the capital-to-assets

ratio for the prior years. The capital-to-assets ratio as at 31 December 2011 under the previous guidelines was 11.3%. As there

are modifications between the two guidelines, the capital ratios are not directly comparable.
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Chairman’s Statement

Against the challenging economic
backdrop in 2011, the Corporation
continued to discharge well its

strategic policy roles in promoting:

[ banking and financial stability
[ ] wider home ownership
] development of the local debt market

The Corporation broke new ground in 2011 by launching
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme and the Reverse

Mortgage Programme.

Promoting Banking and Financial
Stability

In 2011, the Corporation purchased local assets
totalling HK$9.7 billion. The impending introduction of
the new Basel Ill regulatory regime has led to banks
reviewing more critically their capital and liquidity
needs. Given market volatility and rising loan-to-deposit
ratio in the banking sector, banks were more prepared
to sell assets to achieve more prudent balance sheet

management.

To encourage banks to extend financing to small
and medium-sized enterprises (“SMES"), the Corporation
launched the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme ("SFGS")
on 1 January 2011 which guarantees, for a fee, up to
70% of banks' credit exposure for SME loans under the
scheme. The Corporation received 235 applications
under the scheme during the year, involving a total loan
amount of around HK$800 million. Given the global
economic slowdown, sovereign debt crises in Europe and
widespread credit rating downgrades, the Government
proposed to enhance the SFGS by introducing a new
product that guaranteed 80% of the loan amount at a
substantially reduced fee. The Government will cover the
credit losses and expenses for SME loans within a total

guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion.
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Chairman’s Statement

Promoting Wider Home Ownership

The Mortgage Insurance Programme (“MIP") continues
to foster wider home ownership in Hong Kong. In 2011,
the MIP loan drawdown amounted to HK$26.3 billion.
The MIP also promotes liquidity in the secondary
property market, with 97% of the MIP loans coming
from secondary market transactions in 2011. Since 1999,
the MIP has helped over 95,000 families to attain home

ownership.

In line with the prudential measures for residential
mortgage loans introduced by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority, the Corporation revised the MIP
criteria in June 2011 so that homebuyers would not
overstretch themselves when undertaking residential

mortgages.

The Corporation launched the Reverse Mortgage
Programme (“RMP”) on 11 July 2011, enabling elderly
homeowners to use their self-occupied residential
properties in Hong Kong as security to take out reverse
mortgage loans to supplement their living expenses. The
RMP has been well received by a wide range of elderly
homeowners, with 173 applications received by the end

of 2011.
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Facilitating Debt Market Development

In 2011, the Corporation issued a total of HK$28.5 billion
in debt securities of various currencies, including the
Corporation’s first renminbi bonds totalling RMB600
million. As the most active corporate debt issuer in
the Hong Kong dollar debt market and with excellent
credit ratings (AAA by Standard & Poor's and Aa1
by Moody’s), the Corporation is well positioned to
promote the development of the local debt market to
meet the growing demand for high-grade long-term
debt investment from insurance and pension funds in
Hong Kong. In light of the uncertain and volatile market
conditions, the Corporation will maintain its prudent pre-

funding strategy to support its business activities.

Microfinance for Hong Kong

In 2011, the Corporation formed a study group to
look into the feasibility of establishing a microfinance
scheme in Hong Kong to assist people who may wish to
start their own business or receive self-enhancement
training but lacked the means or access to funding
from traditional credit channels to do so. The study
group recommended a microfinance pilot scheme that
operates on the basis of prudent commercial principles.

The HKMC is now planning to introduce a pilot scheme



in collaboration with banks, voluntary organisations and
other stakeholders. The pilot scheme will operate on a
self-financing basis and is expected to launch in mid-
2012, with a tentative aggregate loan amount of HK$100

million over a trial period of three years.

Performance in 2011

The Corporation posted a record after-tax profit of
HK$1,256 million, an increase of 1.8% over 2010. The
return on shareholder’s equity was 15.5%, and the
capital adequacy ratio was 19.7%. The Corporation

declared a final dividend of HK$350 million.

With its solid financial performance in 2011, the
Corporation has proven to be highly resilient and
effective in performing its strategic policy roles. The
Corporation will continue to strengthen its financial
position and enhance its ability to pursue the strategic

objectives.

Outlook for 2012

2012 will be another challenging year for the global
as well as local economy. Given the bleak economic
prospects in Europe and, to a lesser extent, the US,

the risk of a sharp deterioration in the economic

conditions remains high. Despite their relatively strong
economic fundamentals, most Asian economies
have seen a noticeable slowdown in their growth
momentum recently. With the persisting low interest rate
environment and the quantitative easing bias in many
advanced economies, there are still risks of inflation and

asset-price bubbles in Hong Kong.

The Corporation must remain vigilant and continue to
reinforce its business focus in Hong Kong, based on
prudent commercial principles, in order to fulfil its core
objectives. The Corporation will maintain its emphasis on

risk management and good corporate governance.

Finally, I acknowledge the dedication and hard work of
my fellow Directors, Management and all staff of the
Corporation. | look forward to yet another successful

year for the Corporation in 2012.

John C Tsang
Chairman
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Board of Directors

The Hon. John TSANG Chun-wah, cswm, Jp
Chairman and Executive Director

Financial Secretary

Professor the Hon. K C CHAN,
SBS, JP

Director

Secretary for Financial

Services and the Treasury

Professor the Hon. Anthony
CHEUNG Bing-leung, css, 8ss, 1p
Director

Member of Executive Council
Chairman, Consumer Council

The Hon. Ms. Eva CHENG, css,
Director

Secretary for Transport

and Housing

Dr. the Hon. David LI Kwok-

pO, GBM, GBS, Hon. LLD (Cantab), JP
Director

Member of Legislative Council
Chairman and Chief Executive
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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Mr. Norman T. L. CHAN, sss, ip

Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Mr. Peter PANG Sing-tong,
Executive Director

Deputy Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Hon. Abraham SHEK
Lai-him, sss,

Director

Member of Legislative Council

r

Mr. Eddie YUE Wai-man,
Executive Director

Deputy Chief Executive

Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Hon. Andrew LEUNG
Kwan-yuen, aBs, sss, JP
Director

Member of Legislative Council
Chairman, Sun Hing Knitting
Factory Limited



The Hon. CHAN Kin-por, j»
Director

Member of Legislative Council
Member of the China Advisory
Board

Munich Reinsurance Company
Hong Kong Branch

Mr. Andrew FUNG Hau-chung,
Director

Executive Director and Head

of Treasury and Investment
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Mr. Ryan FUNG Yuk-lung
Director

Head, Personal Loans
North East Asia
Cconsumer Banking
Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited

The Hon. Ms. Starry LEE The Hon. Ms. Tanya CHAN
Wai-king, i Director
Director Member of Legislative Council

Member of Legislative Council

Mr. Eddy FONG Ching, css, Jp Mr. Lester Garson HUANG, »
Director Director

Chairman Partner, P. C. Woo & Co.
Securities and Futures

commission

Mr. Jason YEUNG Chi-wai Mr. Jammy CHEN

Director Director

(appointed on 12 April 2011) (retired on 12 April 2011)
Deputy Chief Executive Head, Secured Lending Products
Bank of China (Hong Kong) North East Asia

Limited Consumer Banking

Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited
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Management Team

(from left-to-right)

Mr. Raymond Liu

Mr. Desmond Cheng
Mr. James H. Lau Jr. . p
Mr. Stanley Chan

Ms. Susie Cheung

(from left-to-right) (from left-to-right)
Front Row Second Row

Mr. Godfrey Wong M. Zarino Tong
Ms. Angela Leung  Ms. Kathleen Yeung

Mr. Joseph Seto Mr. Calvin Tam
Ms. Josephine Chan Ms. Irene Mok
Mr. Maurice Yip Ms. Joyce Wong
Mr. Victor Chiu Mr. Wayne Law

Mr. Raymond Luk Mr. Mickey Chan
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Organisation Structure

HKMC Board

Audit
Committee

Corporate Risk
Management
Committee

Mr. James H. Lau Jr., p

Asset and
Liability
Committee

Credit
Committee

Transaction
Approval
Committee

Operational
Risk
Committee

Mr. Raymond Liu

Mr. Stanley Chan

Mr. Desmond Cheng

Ms. Susie Cheung

Vice President
(Treasury)
Mr. Calvin Tam

Vice President
(Financial Control)
Mr. Raymond Luk

Vice President
(Information Technology)
Mr. Zarino Tong

Vice President
(Operations 1)
Ms. Irene Mok

Vice President
(Operations 2)

Mr. Joseph Seto

Vice President
(Marketing and Business
Development)

Ms. Angela Leung

Vice President
(Mortgage Insurance)
Mr. Maurice Yip

Vice President
(Pricing and
Quantitative Risk)
Mr. Mickey Chan

Vice President
(Risk Management)
Ms. Kathleen Yeung

Legal Counsel
Ms. Josephine Chan
Mr. Godfrey Wong
Mr. Wayne Law

Chief Internal
Auditor
Mr. Victor Chiu

Vice President
(Administration and
Human Resources)
Ms. Joyce Wong
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The roles of the Corporation are to promote:

[ banking and financial stability
[ ] wider home ownership
[ ] development of the local debt market

The Corporation operates on prudent commercial
principles and is committed to ensuring a high standard
of corporate governance to improve the overall
accountability, transparency and long-term sustainability
of its operations. The Corporation’s corporate
governance practices are set out in the “"Corporate
Governance Code” (the “Code”) approved by the Board.
The Code is premised on the principles of fairness,
transparency, accountability and responsibility to all
stakeholders and has been issued to the shareholders
and the Directors. The Code is also available on our
website and accessible to the public.

Monitoring of compliance with the Code starts with self-
assessment by each department. An annual compliance
report will then be submitted for review by the Board.
The Board is empowered to require that appropriate
action be taken in relation to any non-compliance.
Throughout 2011, the Corporation has complied with the
provisions of the Code.

Enhancements to the Corporate
Governance Code

Maintaining a robust and sensible framework of
corporate governance for the effective and prudent
management of the Corporation has always been
a top corporate priority. In order to ensure that the
Corporation’s corporate governance practices are
commensurate with the best standards, the Board
reviews the Code provisions from time to time to
take on board relevant developments in corporate
governance practices. In October 2011, the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange announced various amendments to the
Listing Rules containing enhancements to corporate

governance practices for listed companies. As a public,
but non-listed, limited company, the Corporation is not
required to comply with the Listing Rules. Nevertheless,
the Listing Rules amendments provide useful guidance
on corporate governance enhancements, and the
Corporation intends to review the Code in 2012 to
consider changes, as appropriate, to bolster its corporate

governance practice.

Shareholders
All the shares of the Corporation are beneficially owned
by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as Controller of
the Exchange Fund.

The Board

The Board is responsible for leading the Corporation
and promoting its success in an accountable and
effective manner. To provide strategic leadership and
effective control of the Corporation, the Board meets
in person at least once every three months to oversee
the Corporation’s business strategy and policies,
budgeting and planning, organisational and financial
performance, risk management, human resources as
well as community relations. In order to ensure that well-
balanced decisions are made by the Board, the Directors
of the Corporation include officials from the government
and regulators, representatives from political parties,
banking sector, insurance sector, industry associations,
the accounting and legal professions, and also the
Consumer Council. The Corporation encourages
Directors to attend meetings to ensure that issues are
properly discussed. During 2011, the Board held four

meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect
interests, if any, in any transactions to be considered
at Board meetings and to withdraw from the meetings,
as appropriate. Any Director who may have a conflict
of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2011
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Corporate Governance Report

will abstain from voting on such matter. In respect
of each financial reporting period, the Corporation
will seek confirmation from the directors in respect
of their material interests in transactions involving
the Corporation or its subsidiaries. Material related
party transactions between the Corporation and its
counterparties where a Director is involved will be
identified and disclosed in the notes to the financial

Statements.

As at 31 December 2011, there were 18 Directors, all of
whom were duly appointed by the Financial Secretary
in his capacity as shareholder of the Corporation.
Information about the Directors is set out in the Report
of the Directors published in the Annual Report and
on the Corporation’s website (www.hkmc.com.hk). All
Directors other than the four Executive Directors are
non-executive and are not actively involved in the day-
to-day management of the Corporation. Non-Executive
Directors, however, do play an important role in bringing
their independent judgment and considerable knowledge
and diverse expertise to the Board’s deliberations, which
in turn provide effective steer to Management in pursuit
of the Corporation’s policies. The Corporation does not

remunerate its Directors.

For newly appointed Directors, the Corporation will
provide an induction briefing on the business activities,
strategies and objectives of the Corporation. Board
meetings are held on a regular basis so that the
Corporation’s business is reported to the Board regularly.
Directors are provided with appropriate information
before such Board meetings to enable them to be
updated on the affairs of the Corporation and make
informed decisions at the Board meetings.

The term of a Non-Executive Director is one year,
and Non-Executive Directors are typically appointed
at an Annual General Meeting. Under the Articles of
Association of the Corporation, all Non-Executive
Directors will retire at the next Annual General Meeting
following their appointment but are eligible for

re-election.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2011

The Corporation maintains a directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy for its Directors and officers
against legal proceedings and other claims arising in the
course of discharge of their duties.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

In 2011, the post of Chairman was held by Mr. John C.
Tsang. The post of Chief Executive Officer was held by
Mr. James H. Lau Jr. The segregation of the posts of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear
division of responsibilities between the Board and the
executive functions of the Corporation’s Management.
The Board is responsible for laying down strategic
direction and business guidelines, approving financial
objectives and closely monitoring the Corporation’s
performance on an on-going basis. The Chief Executive
Officer, who is accountable to the Board, is responsible
for leading Management in implementing the Board'’s
decisions in a proper and efficient manner. The Chief
Executive Officer ensures that adequate information
relating to the Corporation’s business are reported to the
Board on a regular basis.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board and
her main duty is to ensure that all company secretarial
procedures are followed by the Corporation and the
Board. In addition, the Company Secretary also ensures
that Board papers are provided to Directors in a timely
and comprehensive manner prior to each Board meeting
and the Annual General Meeting of the Corporation.
Directors have free access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary concerning corporate
governance matters, and she provides guidance to
Directors to make appropriate declarations to avoid
conflicts of interest.

The Board meeting schedule for 2011 was provided to
Directors in advance to facilitate Directors’ attendance
at Board meetings. Board papers are generally sent
to Directors at least seven days before the relevant
Board meeting so that Directors could be properly



briefed before the Board meeting. Board papers
typically contained comprehensive background and/
or explanatory information about the subject matters
and included supporting documents, analyses, research
findings, projections, budgets and forecasts, where
appropriate. However, any Director adjudged to have a
conflict of interest in the subject matter under discussion
in a Board paper would not be provided with the relevant

Board paper.

All the minutes of Board meetings are generally taken
in sufficient detail, including the matters considered,
decisions reached, concerns raised by Directors and
dissenting views expressed at the meetings. All minutes
of Board meetings and Audit Committee meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and made available
for inspection by any Director, except as regards any
materials with respect to an agenda item in which that
Director is perceived to have a conflict of interest, in
such case, the relevant Board papers and Board minutes
would be withheld from such Director.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee members during the year were:
m Dr. David Li, Chairman, Non-Executive Director

m Mr. Peter Pang, Executive Director

m Mr. Eddie Yue, Executive Director

m Mr. Eddy Fong, Non-Executive Director

= Mr. Andrew Leung, Non-Executive Director

m Mr. Abraham Shek, Non-Executive Director

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Corporation’s financial statements, the compaosition
and accounting principles adopted in such statements,
the results of the financial audits and the Corporation’s
management procedures to ensure the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control systems. The Terms of
Reference of the Audit Committee are published on the

Corporation’s website.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings with
Management, the Chief Internal Auditor and external
auditor. The Audit Committee also meets on an ad hoc
basis to consider special issues requiring its attention.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee summarises
the reviews conducted by the Audit Committee and
highlights the major issues in a report for submission to
the Board for consideration by Directors. During 2011,
the Committee met on two occasions.

Internal Auditor

The Corporation has an Internal Audit Department which
operates independently of Management and plays a
major role in monitoring the internal control systems of
the Corporation. The Internal Audit Department is led
by the Chief Internal Auditor who reports directly to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee on all matters relating
to the internal control systems. The Chief Internal
Auditor also reports to the Chief Executive Officer on the
day-to-day administrative functions of the Internal Audit
Department, and is entitled to communicate freely with

Audit Committee Meeting

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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the Chairman of the Audit Committee without reference
to Management.

Each year, the Audit Committee formally approves the
annual Internal Audit Plan drawn up by the Chief Internal
Auditor based on his independent risk assessment
and other risk management issues observed by him
at the regular Operational Risk Committee meetings.
In accordance with the annual Internal Audit Plan, the
Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based audit
approach in conducting its periodic independent reviews
of the Corporation’s internal control systems. After each
review, the Internal Audit Department discusses the
audit findings and recommendations with the relevant
department heads and Senior Management. Regular
internal audit reports are first submitted to the Internal
Audit Committee which is chaired by an Executive
Director. The membership composition of the Internal
Audit Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Senior Vice Presidents,
General Counsel and the Chief Internal Auditor. The
internal audit reports and meeting minutes prepared for
the Internal Audit Committee are then submitted to the
Audit Committee for further review and, thereafter, to
the Board of Directors for information.

Over the years, Management has taken an active
approach in considering the audit findings and
recommendations made by the Chief Internal Auditor
and monitors closely their implementation. In 2011, the
Internal Audit Department conducted 13 reviews and
two consultancy projects.

External Auditor

The Corporation's external auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers.
Detailed information in respect of the auditor’s
remuneration is disclosed in the Corporation’s financial
statements. The auditor is allowed to communicate freely
with the Chief Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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To ensure its independence with respect to the
Corporation, the auditor would issue a confirmation letter
of its independence, on an annual basis, to the Audit
Committee to confirm its independence based on the
requirements set out in Section 290 of the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. For the purpose of the
audit of the Corporation’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011, PricewaterhouseCoopers
has confirmed its independence to the Audit Committee.

Financial Reporting

The Corporation aims to present a clear, balanced
and comprehensible assessment of its performance,
financial position and prospects to its stakeholders
and the general public. Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements, and
there is a statement by the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities in the Auditor’s Report on the Financial
Statements. The Directors are to ensure that financial
statements are prepared so as to give a true and fair
view of the financial status of the Corporation. The
annual and interim results of the Corporation are
announced in a timely manner after the end of each

relevant period.

Internal Control

The Board has the overall responsibility for the
Corporation’s internal control systems and, through
the Audit Committee, conducts periodic review on the
effectiveness and efficiency of the systems.

There are various committees set up by the Board
to ensure the efficient operation and prudent risk
management of the Corporation. Those committees
include the Corporate Risk Management Committee
which is chaired by an Executive Director to oversee the
financial and non-financial risks of the Corporation from
an enterprise-wide perspective; whilst the Operational



Risk Committee, the Credit Committee, the Transaction
Approval Committee and the Asset and Liability
Committee are executive committees chaired by the
Chief Executive Officer. Detailed description of these
four executive committees and the risk management
framework of the Corporation are set out in the
section on Business Overview in the Annual Report.
The internal control systems are designed to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement
or loss, manage risks of failure in the operational
systems and the achievement of business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use, ensure
the maintenance of proper accounting records for
internal use and publication and assure compliance with

applicable legislation and regulations.

In February 2012, the Chief Internal Auditor duly
conducted an independent review of the Self-
assessment Forms provided by each Department in
relation to compliance with the Code for 2011. Based on
the audit findings on the Corporation’s internal control
systems and the Self-assessment Forms for the year, the
Chief Internal Auditor was of the opinion that there was
no material breach of the Code in 2011.

Code of Conduct

The Corporation requires the highest standards of
integrity and conduct from its staff members. The
requirements and the relevant legal obligations are
clearly set out in a code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”)
incorporated into the Staff Handbook. The Code of
Conduct also sets out, in particular, provisions as
regards potential conflicts of interest which may arise
between staff members and the Corporation in respect
of which staff members should be aware, and other
provisions designed to ensure that they carry out their
work properly, ethically, impartially and free from any
suggestion of improper influence.

A copy of the Code of Conduct is posted on the
Corporation’s intranet to make it readily accessible by all
staff members.

Staff members are required to give written confirmation
of their compliance with the Code of Conduct on an
annual basis. Based on the confirmation received from
the staff members, Management was satisfied that staff
members have complied with the Code of Conduct
during 2011.

Communication

The Corporation attaches great importance to
communications with the public at large. The Annual
Report of the Corporation contains comprehensive
information on its business strategies and developments.
The Corporation’s website (www.hkmc.com.hk) offers
timely access to the Corporation’s press releases
and its other business information. The Corporation
also maintains a hotline telephone system to service
enquiries from the public.

Conclusion

The Board was satisfied with the corporate governance
practices of the Corporation during 2011. In 2012,
the Corporation will continue to review its corporate
governance framework and improve those practices
in light of ongoing experience, regulatory changes,
international trends and developments in order to
enhance the Corporation’s efficiency and effective
management in pursuit of its business objectives.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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Calendar of Events

Publication of the
HKMC Annual Report
2010

Launch of the SME
Financing
Guarantee Scheme

Announcement of the
Financial Results and
Business Performance
for 2010

Mortgage Insurance
Programme

— tightening of
eligibility criteria
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Business Overview

Performance Highlights

The major achievements of the Corporation for the year
include:

m Purchasing a total of HK$9.7 billion loan assets.

m Helping homebuyers borrow a total of HK$26.3 billion
mortgage loans through the Mortgage Insurance
Programme, representing a usage rate of 11.5% (in
terms of the total drawdown amount under the MIP
against the total market mortgage drawdown amount).

m Launching the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme
on 1 January 2011 to assist local SMES in obtaining
sustainable bank financing.

m Launching the Reverse Mortgage Programme on 11
July 2011 to provide the elderly with an additional
financing option.

m Submitting the Microfinance Study Group Report to the
Financial Secretary in August 2011 on a feasibility study
of the introduction of microfinance in Hong Kong.

m [ssuing HK$28.5 billion of debt securities in a cost-
effective manner, maintaining the Corporation’s
position as the most active corporate issuer in the
Hong Kong dollar debt market for 11 consecutive years.

m Safeguarding excellent credit quality, with (over 90-day)
delinguency ratios of zero for the mortgage insurance
portfolio, 0.67% for the SME guarantee portfolio, 0.02%
for the Hong Kong residential mortgage portfolio (vs.
an industry average of 0.01%) and 0.01% across all
asset classes as at 31 December 2011.

m Maintaining the HKMC's long-term foreign and local
currency ratings of AAA and Aa1 by Standard & Poor’s
("S&P") and Moody's Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”)
respectively.

The Corporation registered solid financial results for
2011:

m Profit after tax of HK$1,256 million, an increase of
HK$22 million, or 1.8%, over that of 2010.

m Net interest spread was 1.6%.

m Return on assets of 2.3%, an increase of 0.1% over that
of 2010.

m Return on shareholder’s equity of 15.5%.

m Capital adequacy ratio of 19.7%, well above the
minimum requirement of 8%.

m Cost-to-income ratio of 11.8%, significantly lower than
the banking industry average of 46.8%.

Operational Highlights
Overall Business Strategy

Since its incorporation in 1997, the Corporation has
strived to fulfil its three core missions: maintaining
banking stability, promoting home ownership and
developing Hong Kong's debt market. In 2011, the
Corporation further boosted its strategic role by
pursuing a business diversification strategy through a
number of new initiatives, including the launch of the
SME Financing Guarantee Scheme and the Reverse
Mortgage Programme. Operating on the basis of prudent
commercial principles, the Corporation is dedicated to
complementing the Government'’s policies by playing its
unique role for the betterment of Hong Kong.

Mortgage Insurance

In response to the prudential measures for residential
mortgage loans initiated by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority in June 2011, the Corporation reduced the
cap on property value from HK$6.8 million to HK$6
million and the maximum loan amount from HK$6.12
million to HK$5.4 million under the Mortgage Insurance
Programme (“MIP"). The revision of eligibility criteria
was intended to better manage the increased risk in
high loan-to-value (“LTV") mortgage lending under the
current market conditions and to help homebuyers avoid
overstretching themselves.

In 2011, the MIP drawdown loan amount was HK$26.3
billion, and the usage rate stood at 11.5%. The
Corporation continued to provide training seminars
for frontline staff of banks and estate agents. This was
an integral part of the strong partnership between the
Corporation and banks and intermediaries in promoting
mortgages to the public.

The Corporation maintained a high degree of processing
efficiency for MIP applications through automation
and the use of internet platforms. Most of the MIP
applications were processed within two business days.
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Fund-raising

The Corporation issued HK$28.5 billion of corporate
debt in different currencies, including HK dollars, US
dollars, renminbi, Japanese yen and Singapore dollars, in
a prudent and cost-effective manner to support asset-
purchase activities and redemption of maturing debt.
For the 11th year in a row, the Corporation was the
most active corporate issuer in the Hong Kong dollar
debt market, with issuance of HK$14.2 billion of debt
securities in the local institutional market.

Market Overview
General Economic Conditions

The growth momentum of the Hong Kong economy
slowed markedly towards the latter part of 2011 due to
continued slackening in external economic conditions,
against the backdrop of the prolonged sovereign
debt crisis in the Euro zone, unsteady recovery in
the United States, and lingering macro-economic
control measures in Mainland China. The already weak
external market conditions worsened notably with
the credit rating downgrades of the United States and
a few European countries in the second half of 2011.
Amid the uncertainties in the market, as a result of
the unfavourable external environment, the Gross
Domestic Product of Hong Kong grew slower at 5%
year-on-year in real terms in 2011, compared with 6.8%
growth in 2010. The local stock market also underwent
a severe correction, in parallel with the adverse
overseas market conditions since the third quarter of
2011. Notwithstanding the setback, local consumption
sentiment remained buoyant, amid an active job market
throughout 2011. The unemployment rate bottomed
out at 3.2% in August and remained at the relatively low
level of around 3.3% towards the year end, despite job-
cutting plans unveiled by a few financial institutions.
The Central Government announced a series of financial
policy measures in August which aimed at strengthening
Hong Kong's role as an offshore renminbi business
center, providing solid support for the overall economic
development of Hong Kong.

Liquidity and Interest-Rate Environment

The Federal Reserve announced in August 2011
that it would continue its ongoing accommodative
monetary policy by keeping interest rates low till 2013.
Notwithstanding this pledge, liquidity conditions in local
markets tightened up towards the end of 2011, pushing
deposit rates, mortgage rates and the funding spread for
bond issuance higher. This phenomenon was attributable
mainly to fast credit growth, which was supported by a
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number of factors, including robust economic growth,
low interest rates, a buoyant property market, and
strong Mainland-related loan demand during the first
half of 2011. In particular, strong Mainland-related credit
demand was evidenced by rapid increases in foreign
currency lending and loans for use outside Hong Kong,
which expanded much faster than Hong Kong dollar
lending and loans for use in Hong Kong. The rapid pace
of credit growth raised concerns about potential stress
on banks’ liquidity positions and credit risk controls, as
both the Hong Kong dollar and foreign currency loan-to-
deposit ratios had risen notably over the previous two
years (Figure 1). Nonetheless, the further announcement
of the Federal Reserve in January 2012 to extend low
rate commitment till late 2014 somewhat eased the
credit situation.

Figure 1
Loan-to-Deposit Ratios
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While the Best Lending Rates (“BLRs") remained stable
at 5% and 5.25% throughout the year, the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rates (“HIBORsS") edged up gradually,
with the one-month HIBOR rising from 0.16% in January
to 0.29% in December, in terms of the period average'.
Local banks also progressively raised the margin for new
HIBOR-based mortgage loans in view of the increasing
cost of funds and strong loan demand from other
sectors. HIBOR-based mortgage rates rose to the range
of H+2% to H+3% in the latter part of 2011, up from the
range of H+0.6% to H+0.9% earlier in the year. As for
BLR-based mortgage rates, the pricing levels for new
mortgage loans also increased to the range of BLR-2% to
BLR-2.5% towards the end of 2011 (Figure 2).

1 Source: HKMA Monthly Statistical Bulletin



Figure 2
Best Lending Rates and Weighted Average Mortgage Rate
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Property Market

Following the post-financial-tsunami rally over the
previous two years, the residential property market
continued to display buoyancy in early 2011. Compared
with the 2008 trough, residential property prices nearly
doubled. In the first half of 2011, the Government
repeatedly pledged to maintain a healthy and stable
property market, with a view to alleviating the risk of
a property bubble burst by stepping up its efforts to
increase land supply and also prudential measures
to tighten mortgage lending in the banking sector.
Mediocre land auction results early in the year appeared
to indicate developers’ pessimistic sentiment and
presage a sign of imminent market adjustment. In
parallel with the integrated effect of deteriorating global
economic conditions, progressive rises in mortgage
rates and the negative wealth effect due to the stock
market correction, the residential property market
cooled off markedly in a consolidation stage after mid-
year, followed by a correction period towards the year
end. The total number of property transactions in
2011 plummeted sharply by 38% year-on-year, while
the aggregate transacted value fell by 21% (Figure 3).
In the second half of 2011, the corresponding declines
expanded considerably to 58% and 44%, respectively.

Figure 3
Agreements of Sale and Purchase of Residential Building Units
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Despite the sharp contraction in transaction activities,
residential property prices remained relatively stable
without undergoing a severe correction. Residential
property prices? surged by more than 15% in the first
six months of 2011 and reached a historical high around
mid-year, surpassing the peak at the start of Asian
financial crisis (Figure 4). In his October Policy Address,
the Chief Executive put forward two housing policy
initiatives: the New Home Ownership Scheme and the
enhanced My Home Purchase Plan. Subsequently, a
more obvious property price adjustment was seen, with
property developers increasingly keen to launch new
projects at lower prices. At the end of 2011, the annual
increase in residential property prices narrowed notably
t0 9% over that of the previous year.

Figure 4
Private Domestic Price Index (1999 = 100)
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2 Source: The Private Domestic Price Index published by the Rating and Valuation Department
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Mortgage Market

In June 2011, in view of market developments in
early 2011 and to better enhance banks’ credit risk
management in their mortgage lending business, the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA") issued further
supervisory guidelines, tightening the maximum LTV
ratio for residential properties under different transacted
price ranges and according to nature of transaction.
In tandem with the plunge in residential property
transactions, mortgage lending declined visibly since
the third quarter of 2011. The gross value of new loans®
dropped sharply by 55% year-on-year in the second half
of the year. For the whole year of 2011, it fell by 30%
year-on-year (Figure 5). Notwithstanding the contraction,
the total outstanding value of all residential mortgage
loans registered an annual increase of 6.7% to HK$850
billion at the end of 2011.

Figure 5
New Residential Mortgage Loans Made
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As for mortgage pricing, banks began reducing their
offers of HIBOR-based mortgage loan plans and resumed
promoting BLR-based plans in view of the rising cost of
funds. The proportion of new mortgage loans priced with
reference to the Prime rate increased from 6% in January
2011 to nearly 90% in December 2011, with the largest
portion priced at a mortgage rate of 2.25% to 2.75%.
HIBOR-based mortgages fell from 92% to 8% during the
same period (Figure 6).
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Figure 6
Pricing of New Residential Mortgage Loans Approved
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In light of the stable labour market and the HKMA's
prudent supervision of the mortgage lending sector, the
asset quality of residential mortgage loans remained
excellent in 2011. The over-90-day delinquency ratio
of mortgage loans’ stayed at a historical low of 0.01%
for most of 2011, reflecting the prudent underwriting
standards adopted by the banks. The combined
ratio, which takes into account both delinquent and
rescheduled loans, also remained low, at between 0.02%
and 0.04% for most of 2011 (Figure 7). While the estimated
number of mortgage loans in negative equity bounced to
1,465 cases (HK$3,647 million) at the end of December
2011 from 48 cases (HK$58 million) at the end of June
2011, no delinquency of more than three months was
observed.

3 Source: The HKMA's Monthly Residential Mortgage Survey (“The HKMA Survey”)
4 Source: The HKMA Survey



Figure 7
Delinquency Ratio of Residential Mortgage Loans
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Banking-Sector Exposure

The total outstanding value of mortgage loans for private
residential properties increased to HK$805 billion at the
end of 2011 (end-2010: HK$745 billion), accounting for
more than one-fifth of total loans in Hong Kong (Figure 8).
Adding to this the lending for building and construction,
along with property development and investment, the
amount of property-related loans totalled HK$1,762
billion, representing about half the total loan book of
banks. Such high exposure to property-related lending
indicates that a sharp downturn in the property market
could have an adverse impact on the overall stability of
the banking system, although banks in Hong Kong, in
general, have an adequate capital base.

Figure 8

Total Loans and Private Residential Mortgage Loans of All
Authorized Institutions
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Market Outlook

In view of the heightened likelihood of financial
turbulence and contagion affecting Hong Kong and
the Asia-Pacific region, further tightening of liquidity
conditions may be inevitable. To tackle the difficult
money market conditions, banks may be more eager
to offload assets with a view to increasing liquidity,
reducing their loan-to-deposit ratio and improving their
balance sheet management. Despite the uncertainties
in the external environment ahead, the Corporation
remains cautiously optimistic about Hong Kong's 2012
market outlook and will operate its business under
prudent commercial principles.

Asset Acquisition

Given the uncertain external economic conditions, banks
in Hong Kong were generally more eager to offload
assets to the Corporation in 2011, in return for liquidity
and prudent balance sheet management. During the
year, the Corporation acquired assets worth a total of
HK$9.7 billion, which included residential mortgage loans
and other assets. By providing liquidity to the banks,
the Corporation has demonstrated its importance in
maintaining Hong Kong's banking and financial stability.

Mortgage Insurance

Over the years, the MIP has repeatedly demonstrated its
effectiveness in helping potential homebuyers overcome
the hurdle of meeting the substantial down payment
required to purchase a property. From the perspective of
the banking industry as a whole, the MIP allows banks to
engage in higher LTV lending without incurring additional
credit risks and affecting the overall stability of the entire
banking system. All in all, the programme creates a win-
win situation for both homebuyers and banks.

Since its inception in March 1999, the MIP has gained
increasing public acceptance and has played a
significant role in promoting home ownership in Hong
Kong. For 2011 as a whole, the volume of loans drawn
down amounted to HK$26.3 billion and the usage
rate (in terms of the total drawdown amount under
the MIP against the total market drawdown amount)
stood at 11.5% (Figure 9). It is notable that 97% of the
MIP applications received were for secondary market
properties, demonstrating that mortgage insurance has
been crucial in assisting homebuyers in the secondary
market.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2011

23



24

Business Overview

Figure 9
Mortgage Loan Amount Drawn Down and Usage Rate* of MIP
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Since 1999, the MIP has helped over 95,000 families
achieve the dream of home ownership, with loan
drawdown totalling over HK$209 billion.

MIP Refinements

In response to prudential measures for residential
mortgage loans initiated by the HKMA, the Corporation
reduced the cap on property value from HK$6.8 million
to HK$6 million and the maximum loan amount from
HK$6.12 million to HK$5.4 million under the MIP. The
purpose of the revision of eligibility criteria was to
better manage the increased risks of high LTV mortgage
lending under current market conditions and to help
homebuyers avoid overstretching themselves.

Launch of SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme

The Corporation launched the SME Financing Guarantee
Scheme (“SFGS”) on 1 January 2011 to help local
small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs”) obtain
sustainable bank financing. Joined by 23 banks as
participating lenders, the Scheme also allows the banks
to better manage their risk exposure to corporate
loans. It was welcomed by SMEs and banks, particularly
because the Government'’s Special Loan Guarantee
Scheme stopped accepting applications from 2011.

In October 2011, to encourage banks to make more use
of the SFGS so that they could be more responsive in
meeting the financing needs of SMEs, especially during
times of market stress and an adverse economic climate,
the Corporation rolled out a handful of enhancements
to the SFGS. For example, it raised the interest rate
limit on the loans and the total limit of high interest rate
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loans per bank. During the year, the SFGS received 235
applications for a total loan amount of approximately
HK$800 million, benefiting over 180 local SMES.

Launch of Reverse Mortgage Programme

After conducting a series of in-depth research studies,
a city-wide survey and a consultation with stakeholders,
the Corporation launched the Reverse Mortgage
Programme (“RMP”) on 11 July 2011 to provide the elderly
with an additional financial planning option to enhance
their quality of life. To help the elderly better understand
this brand-new financial product in Hong Kong, the
Corporation put a lot of effort into promoting the RMP
through different channels, including advertising, talks
and information leaflets.

The RMP was well received by the market and got
over 170 applications during the year, with an average
property value of about HK$3.8 million. The borrowers,
on average, received a monthly payout of HK$13,900,
which provided them a certain degree of assistance to
meet daily expenses.

Microfinance

In the 2011-12 Budget, the Financial Secretary (“FS”)
requested the Corporation to study the feasibility of
establishing a sustainable microfinance scheme in Hong
Kong and the demand for such facilities. The Corporation
therefore set up a study group in March 2011 with the
Executive Director, Peter Pang, as the chairman, and
members from the banking sector, voluntary agencies,
academia and the Government.

The study went smoothly and a report with findings
and recommendations was submitted to the Financial
Secretary in August 2011. Overseas experience indicated
that a successful and sustainable microfinance scheme
would provide comprehensive support to help boost
the credit standing of prospective borrowers so that
they could obtain bank loans at a relatively low interest
rate. Such a comprehensive support system would
help borrowers develop a business plan, provide
entrepreneurial training and offer mentorship after the
launch of business.

Given the Corporation’s rich experience in loan
underwriting, well-established reputation and good
network in the banking industry, the Financial Secretary
commissioned the Corporation to develop a pilot
scheme for a trial period of three years and a maximum
loan amount of HK$100 million tentatively in the 2012-13
Budget. The Corporation swiftly commenced preparatory
work with the aim of launching the scheme around mid-
2012. Under the preliminary framework, the pilot scheme
would cater to three categories of borrowers: those
aspiring to start their own businesses, those wishing to



become self-employed and those wanting to achieve
self-enhancement through training, upgrading skills or
securing professional certification.

Training and Marketing

Throughout the year, the Corporation worked closely
with banks to organise training courses for their
frontline staff on its new and existing programmes,
namely the MIP, the SFGS and the RMP. This helped the
banks prepare well for launching their products for the
Corporation’s new programmes and provided the banks
with updates on the Corporation’s existing programmes
from time to time.

In addition, the Corporation held talks with various
professional bodies to further enhance awareness of
its programmes and forge relationships with different
stakeholders. For example, it gave talks on the RMP to
the Law Society of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors and the Estate Agents Authority.

Joint Ventures Outside Hong Kong

With tightened policies on the property market and
banking sector in Mainland China remaining in force
throughout 2011, the Bauhinia HKMC Corporation
Limited ("BHKMC"), a joint venture incorporated in
Mainland China, faced a harsh business environment.
Such policies seriously affected the business volume
for the bridging guarantee business undertaken by the
BHKMC. The Board of Directors of the BHKMC reviewed
the prospect of the bridging guarantee business and
decided to suspend this business until market conditions
improve. The BHKMC will keep an eye out for suitable
business opportunities.

The Cagamas HKMC Berhad, incorporated in Malaysia
in 2008, is a joint venture between the Corporation and
Cagamas Berhad. The joint venture provides mortgage
guarantees for conventional and Islamic mortgage
portfolios. Two transactions were concluded under the
Mortgage Guarantee Programme in 2011 with a national
oil company in Malaysia.

Funding

The year 2011 continued to be a turbulent one for local
and global capital markets under the menace of the
lingering eurozone crisis and sluggish US economic
recovery. In spite of the challenging market conditions,
the Corporation managed to secure prudent pre-
funding to cater for loan purchases and refinancing.
Given the Corporation’s strong background as a wholly
government-owned entity and its solid credit rating,
as well as investors’ flight-to-quality inclination, the
Corporation continued to be the most active Hong Kong

dollar corporate issuer for the 11th straight year. In 2011,
a total amount of HK$28.5 billion of debts were raised. At
the end of 2011, the Corporation’s total outstanding debt
amounted to HK$41.1 billion.

The Corporation is committed to developing the local
debt market through regular debt issuances and the
introduction of new debt products. As one of the most
active bond issuers in Hong Kong, the Corporation will
continue to issue debt in both local institutional and
retail markets, and diversify its funding sources and
investor base to overseas institutional markets. This will
not only help broaden the Corporation’s funding base,
but also provide institutional and retail investors with
high quality debt instruments to satisfy their need for
portfolio diversification and yield enhancement.

The Corporation has three debt issuance programmes,
which allow the issuance of debt securities in an
efficient and effective manner. With its strong credit
rating, the Corporation’s debt issues are well received
by the investment community, such as pension funds,
insurance companies, investment funds, charities,
government-related funds and retail investors. The
Corporation maintains a pro-active approach, updating
investors regularly in local and regional markets. In
2011, for example, the Corporation met with investors in
Singapore and Australia.

Debt Issuance Programme

The Debt Issuance Programme (“DIP") was established
in July 1998 to target institutional investors in the
Hong Kong dollar debt market. It was set up with an
initial programme size of HK$20 billion, which was
subsequently increased to HK$40 billion in 2003. The
DIP has since provided a flexible and efficient platform
for the Corporation to issue debt and transferable loan
certificates with a tenor of up to 15 years. In addition to
plain vanilla debts, the Corporation issues high quality
structured products to meet investor demand. A total
of six Primary Dealers and 16 Selling Group Members
appointed under the DIP provide wide distribution
channels for both public and private debt issues.

During 2011, the Corporation issued 30 DIP debt
securities for a total amount of HK$6.9 billion.

Retail Bond Issuance Programme

The Corporation is dedicated to promoting the local
retail bond market with the objective of extending the
Corporation’s investor base beyond its already strong
institutional investor community. In November 2001,
the Corporation successfully pioneered a new offering
mechanism for the retail bond market in Hong Kong.
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To further spur the development of the retail bond
market, the Corporation established the HK$20 Billion
Retail Bond Issuance Programme and made its debut
issuance in June 2004. Under this programme, placing
banks use their retail branch networks, telephone and
electronic banking facilities to place debt securities
issued by the Corporation with retail investors. To ensure
the liquidity of the aforementioned retail bonds, the
placing banks are committed to making firm bid prices
for the bonds in the secondary market. Over the years,
the Corporation’s retail bonds have gained widespread
recognition as a safe and simple investment choice, with
reasonably attractive returns, giving retail investors an
opportunity to invest in high-grade debt securities issued
by a wholly government-owned corporation. When the
market environment is conducive, the Corporation aims
to issue retail bonds regularly to provide an additional
investment tool for Hong Kong's retail investors.

Since 2001, the Corporation has issued a total amount of
HK$13.7 billion retail bonds.

Medium Term Note Programme

The Corporation established the multi-currency Medium
Term Note ("MTN") Programme in June 2007 to raise
funds in the international market and broaden its investor
base and funding sources. It was set up with an initial
programme size of US$3 billion, which was subsequently
increased to US$6 billion in July 2011 to meet growing
demand from overseas investors. The multi-currency
feature of the programme enables the Corporation to
issue notes in major currencies, including the Hong Kong
dollar, US dollar, renminbi, euro and Japanese yen, to
meet demand from both local and overseas investors.
All foreign currency-denominated MTN debt is fully
hedged into either US dollars or Hong Kong dollars. The
programme incorporates flexible product features and
offering mechanisms for both public issuances and
private placements to increase its appeal to investors
with different investment horizons and requirements. An
extensive dealer group comprising 10 major international
and regional financial institutions has been appointed
to support future MTN issuance and provide secondary
market liquidity.

In 2011, the Corporation launched 52 MTN private debt
issues, including debt denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
US dollars, renminbi, Japanese yen and Singapore
dollars, totalling an equivalent of HK$21.6 billion. The
Corporation made a debut issue of RMB600 million of
MTN debt during the year, helping to promote Hong Kong
as an offshore renminbi business centre.
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Revolving Credit Facility Provided by the
Exchange Fund

In January 1998, during the Asian Financial Crisis, the
Exchange Fund extended a HK$10 billion Revolving
Credit Facility to the Corporation through the HKMA.
This Facility enables the Corporation to maintain smooth
operation under exceptional circumstances, so that it
can better fulfil its mandate to promote banking and
financial stability in Hong Kong. While the Corporation
obtains long-term funding from local and international
debt markets to fund its operations, the Facility also
stands as a liquidity fallback for the Corporation. In
light of the global financial crisis in 2008, the size of the
Facility was subsequently increased to HK$30 billion
in December 2008, which demonstrated the HKSAR
Government'’s recognition of the importance of, and
further support for, the Corporation.

The Corporation used the Revolving Credit Facility during
times of market stress in 1998 and 2008 to partially
fund the acquisition of Hong Kong residential mortgage
assets from local banks. At both times, the Revolving
Credit Facility was fully repaid by funds raised from the
Corporation’s cost-effective debt issuance when the
markets stabilised. As at the end of 2011, there were no
draw downs under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Credit Rating

The Corporation’s ability to attract investment in its debt
securities is underpinned by its strong credit rating,
equivalent to that of the HKSAR Government according
to Moody'’s and S&P.

Credit Ratings of the HKMC

Standard & Poor's Moody's
Short-term Long-term Short-term  Long-term
Local Currency
(Outlook) A+ AAA (Stable) P-1 Aa (Positive)
Foreign Currency
(Outlook) A+ AAA (Stable) P-1 Aa (Positive)

The credit rating agencies have made very positive
comments on the Corporation’s credit standing. The
following comments are extracts from the credit
rating reports of S&P and Moody's after their annual
surveillance in May 2011:

S&P

"S&P equalises the ratings on HKMC with the rating
on the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. This



reflects our expectation of an almost certain likelihood
of timely and sufficient extraordinary support from the
Hong Kong government, as a sole owner, to the HKMC
in events of financial distress. The critical importance of
the Corporation’s policy roles and its integral link with
the government support this view.”

“In our view, HKMC's prudent credit risk management,
good asset quality, and strong liquidity support its stand-
alone credit profile. The Corporation also has a sound
capital base, which its strong earnings in recent years
have enhanced.”

“The HKMC has a traditional and generally prudent
approach to risk management. Recognising credit risk as
its focus of risk appetite, the Corporation has adopted
stringent policies, a simple and effective business model
and management structure, and various hedging tools to
largely mitigate other types of risks.”

“The HKMC's liquidity position is adequately managed...
The Corporation also maintains a reasonable level of
liquid assets in the form of marketable debt securities,
cash and bank deposits, which provides a liquidity
fallback.”

Moody’s

"HKMC's long-term issuer rating incorporates very high
probability of support from the Hong Kong government,
reflecting HKMC's status as a wholly-owned government
entity mandated to enhance financial and banking
stability in Hong Kong, to promote home ownership and
the development of local debt capital markets.”

“In times of crisis, HKMC can be expected to provide
liquidity to the mortgage market and the SME sector
and support the financial system. The company may
require support from the government to carry out such
activities, and we expect the government to support
HKMC as it carries out its policy functions.”

"HKMC has maintained outstanding credit quality thanks
to its prudent credit policies and practices, which
include careful selection of approved sellers, stringent
purchasing criteria, thorough assessment of borrower
repayment abilities, limits for different types of portfolios,
effective due diligence, and adequate monitoring and
protection for riskier mortgages (such as a reserve fund
from sellers to absorb default losses).”

“"HKMC maintains sound liquidity profile, with sizable
holdings of highly liquid securities and access to
revolving credit facility from the Exchange Fund and
money market lines from commercial banks. Thanks

to the implicit strong government backing, HKMC has
good access to the capital markets and has consistently
been the largest issuer of debt securities in the HK dollar
capital markets.”

Mortgage-Backed Securitisation

The Corporation strives to promote the development
of the mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) market in
Hong Kong. MBS is an effective financial instrument that
can channel long-term funding from the debt market to
supplement the need for long-term financing generated
by mortgage loans. Banks and financial institutions can
make use of MBS to manage risks inherent in mortgage
loans, such as credit risks, liquidity risks, interest rate
risks and asset liability maturity mismatch risks. A
deep and liquid MBS market can help enhance the
development of an efficient secondary mortgage market
and further promote Hong Kong as an international
financial centre.

The Corporation has issued a total of HK$13.2 billion
MBS since 1999. In December 2001, the US$3 billion
Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed Securitisation Programme
was established to provide a convenient, flexible and
cost-efficient platform for the Corporation to issue MBS
with various product structures, credit enhancements
and distribution methods.

Risk Management

The Corporation operates under prudent commercial
principles, and the principle of “prudence before
profitability” guides the design of the overall risk
management framework and discipline it uses in its
day-to-day business execution. Over the years, the
Corporation has continuously made refinements
to its well-established, robust and time-tested risk
management framework to reflect changes in the
markets and business strategies.

Corporate Risk Management Committee

The Board is the highest decision making authority of
the Corporation and holds the ultimate responsibility for
risk management. The Board, with the assistance of the
Corporate Risk Management Committee (“CRC"), has the
primary responsibility for formulating risk management
strategies in the risk appetite statement and for ensuring
that the Corporation has an effective risk management
system to implement these strategies. The risk appetite
statement defines the constraints for all risk-taking
activities and these constraints are incorporated into
risk limits, risk policies and control procedures that the
Corporation follows to ensure that the risks are properly
managed.
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The CRC is responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s
various types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level
risk-related policies, overseeing their implementation,
and monitoring improvement efforts in governance,
policies and tools. It also assigns priorities and
responsibilities to individual departments to enhance
the risk management framework. The Committee
is chaired by an Executive Director, with members
including another Executive Director, as well as a Chief
Executive Officer, Senior Vice President (Operations),
Senior Vice President (Finance), General Counsel, Senior
Vice President (Risk), and senior staff from the Risk
Management Department.

The major types of risk the Corporation manages are
credit risk, market risk, operational risk, legal risk,
leveraging risk and longevity risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the Corporation’s primary risk exposure. It
represents the default risk presented by loan borrowers
and counterparties.

(a] Default risk

To address default risk effectively, the Corporation
adopts a four-pronged approach to safeguard and
maintain the quality of its assets, MIP and SME
guarantee portfolios:

m Careful selection of Approved Sellers, Servicers,
Reinsurers and Lenders

m Prudent asset purchase, insurance and guarantee
application eligibility criteria

m Effective due diligence process for mortgage
purchase, default loss, insurance and guarantee
claims

m Enhanced protection for higher-risk mortgages
and transactions

Losses may arise if there are shortfalls in the
recovery amount received for defaulted loans that
fall under the Mortgage Purchase Programme
("MPP"). To mitigate this default risk, the Corporation
adopts prudent loan purchase criteria and conducts
effective due diligence reviews as part and parcel
of the loan purchase process in order to maintain
the credit quality of loans. In addition, depending on
the projected risk exposure of each underlying loan
portfolio, credit enhancement arrangements, such
as reserve funds for absorbing credit losses, are
agreed upon with sellers on a deal-by-deal basis to
reduce the potential credit losses that could arise
from the borrower’s default.
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Losses may also arise from default on loans under
the MIP's insurance coverage. Each MIP application
is underwritten by the Corporation in accordance
with a set of eligibility criteria, and each claim from
a participating bank is audited by the Corporation to
ensure the fulfilment of all MIP coverage conditions
and to detect any fraud elements. As a result, the
default risk for loans with MIP coverage has been
greatly reduced. To reduce the risk of possible
concentration of this default risk, the Corporation
transfers a portion of the risk-in-force to Approved
Reinsurers via reinsurance risk-sharing and excess-
of-loss arrangements.

Portfolio performance and analysis reports are
compiled on a regular basis to provide management
with updated information on critical credit risk
indicators, such as loan delinquency ratios, equity
positions and cumulative credit losses, to enable
timely reviews and a swift response to changes in
the operating environment.

Stress tests on mortgage portfolios, mortgage
insurance portfolios and SME guarantee portfolios
are conducted to analyse the Corporation’s financial
capability to weather extreme scenarios when they
arise.

Seller/Servicer counterparty risk

Counterparty risks may arise from the failure of
a Seller/Servicer of an acquired portfolio to remit
scheduled payments to the Corporation in a timely
and accurate manner. The Corporation has adopted
a counterparty risk limit framework that limits the
aggregate amount of assets it can purchase from
the Approved Sellers. There are also individual limits
set on the maximum amount of assets that the
Corporation can purchase from a counterparty. The
risk limit framework acts as a beneficial device for
managing counterparty exposure on the risk profile
basis of each Seller/Servicer and for avoiding the
concentration of acquisition from only a few Sellers.

The counterparty limits of all Sellers/Servicers are
subject to regular review, where their financial
strengths, management capabilities, loan servicing
quality and transaction experience are taken into
consideration for reviewing their limits.

Reinsurer counterparty risk

Reinsurer counterparty risk refers to the failure of
an Approved Reinsurer to make claim payments
to the Corporation. In order to mitigate reinsurer
counterparty risk effectively, the Corporation has
established a framework for the assessment of each
mortgage reinsurer’s financial strength, credit rating
and relevant experience in mortgage insurance.
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The Corporation performs an annual review of
each Approved Reinsurer’s financial strength,
business proposal, reinsurance arrangements and
management capabilities. The review results are
used to determine the on-going business allocation
and risk-sharing portions. The Corporation also has
collateral arrangements with Approved Reinsurers
to reduce counterparty risk exposures.

Treasury counterparty risk

Treasury counterparty risk arises when there is
a delay or failure from treasury counterparties
to make payments with respect to treasury
instruments transacted with the Corporation.
Hence, the Corporation has adopted a prudent
treasury counterparty limit framework, under which
each potential treasury counterparty is assessed
on the basis of its credit rating, financial strength
and capability in treasury products, etc. Based
on the evaluation results, a treasury counterparty
limit is assigned for each specific type of treasury
instrument exposure. The limits for treasury
counterparties are reviewed and adjusted on a
regular basis, which are based on their financial
strength and the capital base of the Corporation. To
date, the Corporation has not experienced any loss
on a treasury transaction due to a credit default by a
counterparty.

Lender risk

The Corporation is exposed to lender risk in SME
lending that arises from: (a) a lender’s underwriting
being incompliant with its credit policy; (b) a lender’s
loosely formulated credit policy which is not specific
enough or sufficiently defined for compliance; and
(c) the moral hazard of a lender being less prudent
in underwriting a guarantee protected application.
The Corporation adopts prudent eligibility criteria
for application vetting, monitors delinquency and
workout plans, and conducts due diligence reviews
on claims to mitigate default risk on the part of
borrowers and moral hazard on the part of lenders.

At the heart of the Corporation’s credit risk
management framework are two committees: the
Credit Committee and the Transaction Approval
committee.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for setting the
Corporation’s overall credit policies and eligibility
criteria, particularly for asset acquisition, mortgage
insurance and SME guarantee business. The
Committee operates under a framework that has
been approved by the Board. The Committee is

the approval authority for accepting applications
to become Approved Sellers/Servicers under
the MPP, Approved Reinsurers under the MIP,
Approved Lenders under SFGS and eligible treasury
counterparties. It is also responsible for setting
risk exposure limits for the counterparties. Should
the business and operating environment change
drastically, credit policies will be immediately subject
to review and timely measures based on the findings
will be presented to the Committee for approval.

Transaction Approval Committee

The Transaction Approval Committee conducts
an in-depth analysis of pricing economics and
associated credit risks for business transactions,
whilst taking into consideration the latest market
conditions and business strategies approved by
the Board. Major transactions approved by the
Committee are subject to endorsement by an
Executive Director.

The Credit Committee and the Transaction
Approval Committee are both chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer, with members including Senior
Vice President (Operations), Senior Vice President
(Finance), General Counsel, Senior Vice President
(Risk) and senior staff from the relevant functional
departments.

Market Risk

Market risks arise when the Corporation’s income or the
value of its portfolios decreases due to movements in
market prices. Market risk consists of interest rate risk,
asset-liability maturity mismatch risk, liquidity risk and
currency risk.

(a] Interest rate risk

Net interest income is the predominant source
of earnings for the Corporation. It represents the
excess of interest income (from the Corporation’s
loan portfolio, cash and debt investments) over
interest expenses (from debt issuance and other
borrowings). Interest rate risks arise when changes
in market interest rates affect the interest income
associated with the assets and/or interest expenses
associated with the liabilities.

The primary objective of interest rate risk
management is therefore to limit the potential
adverse effects of interest rate movements on
interest income/expense, while maintaining stable
earnings growth. The interest rate risk faced by
the Corporation is two-fold, namely interest rate
mismatch risk and basis risk. Interest rate mismatch
risk is the most substantial risk affecting the

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Annual Report 2011

29



30

Business Overview

Corporation’s net interest income. It arises mainly
as a result of the differences in the timing of interest
rate re-pricing for the Corporation’s interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Interest rate
mismatch risk is most evident in the loan portfolios
where the majority of the loans earn a floating
interest rate (benchmarked against the Prime
rate, HIBOR or Composite Interest Rate), whilst the
majority of the Corporation’s liabilities are fixed-rate
debt securities. The Corporation therefore makes
prudent use of a range of financial instruments, such
as interest rate swaps, interest rate swaptions, basis
swaps, forward rate agreements and issuances
of MBS, to manage interest rate mismatch risk.
The proceeds of the fixed-rate debt securities are
generally swapped into HIBOR-based funds via
interest rate swaps in order to better match the
floating-rate incomes from mortgage assets.

The Corporation also uses duration gap as an
indicator to monitor, measure and manage interest
rate mismatch risks. A duration gap measures
the difference in interest rate re-pricing intervals
between assets and liabilities. The wider the
duration gap, the higher the interest rate mismatch
risk. A positive duration gap means that the duration
of assets is longer than that of the liabilities, and
therefore, represents greater risk exposure to rising
interest rates. A negative duration gap, in contrast,
indicates greater risk exposure to declining interest
rates. Depending on the prevailing interest rate
outlook and market conditions, the Corporation
proactively re-balances the duration gap of its asset-
liability portfolio under the guidance and supervision
of the Asset and Liability Committee ("ALCQO"). A
cap of three months for the duration gap has been
set to limit interest rate mismatch risks. In 2011, the
average duration gap was kept at about one month,
indicating that the Corporation handles interest rate
mismatch risk in a very effective manner.

Basis risk represents the difference in the
Corporation’s Prime-based interest-earning assets
and its HIBOR-based interest-bearing liabilities.
However, there are only limited financial instruments
currently available in the market to hedge the
Prime-HIBOR basis risk fully. In general, basis risk
can be effectively addressed only when mortgage
assets and non-mortgage assets are based on
HIBOR to match the funding base, or when related
risk management instruments become more
prevalent or economical. Over the past few years,
the Corporation has consciously adopted a strategy
that acquires more HIBOR-based assets. At the end
of 2011, about 70% of the Corporation’s mortgage
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assets and non-mortgage assets were HIBOR-based
loans. As a result, the Prime-HIBOR basis risk for
the Corporation has been substantially reduced. In
addition, the Corporation had issued Prime-based
MBS and used hedging derivatives in the past to
mitigate such basis risk.

[b] Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk

Even though the contractual maturity of a mortgage
loan can be up to 30 years, the actual average
life of a portfolio of mortgage loans is much
shorter. The average life depends on the speed of
scheduled mortgage repayments and unscheduled
prepayments. Higher prepayment rates shorten
the average life of a portfolio of mortgage loans.
In Hong Kong, prepayment occurs for two main
reasons: (i) housing turnover — borrowers repaying
their mortgage loans upon the sale of the underlying
property, and (i) refinancing — borrowers refinancing
their mortgage loans to obtain lower mortgage
rates.

Asset-liability maturity mismatch risk can be more
specifically characterised as reinvestment risk and
refinancing risk. Reinvestment risk refers to the risk
of a lower return from the reinvestment of proceeds
that the Corporation receives from prepayments
and repayments of its loan portfolio. Refinancing risk
is the risk of refinancing liabilities at a higher level
of interest rate or credit spread. The Corporation is
exposed to refinancing risk (in both funding amount
and cost of funds) when it uses short-term liabilities
to finance long-term, floating-rate loan portfolios.

Reinvestment risk is managed through the on-going
purchase of new loans to replenish the rundown in
the retained portfolios and through the investment
of surplus cash in debt securities or cash deposits to
fine tune the average life of the overall assets pool.

Refinancing risk is managed through the issuance
of callable bonds and transferable loan certificates.
The call option included in callable bonds and
transferable loan certificates allows the Corporation
to adjust the average life of its liabilities to match
more closely that of the overall pool of assets. In
this regard, the Corporation also has the flexibility
of issuing debt securities with a broad spectrum of
maturities, ranging from one month to 15 years. This
again serves to adjust the average life of the overall
liability portfolio in a dynamic fashion. In addition,
refinancing risk can be mitigated by adjusting the
maturities of assets in the investment portfolio or
off-loading mortgage assets through securitisation
of mortgage loans into MBS.
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The asset-liability maturity gap ratio (ratio of the
average life of the total interest-earning assets to the
average life of the total interest-bearing liabilities)
is used to monitor and manage maturity mismatch
risk, with a target ratio set by the ALCO to ensure
a proper balance between the average life of the
Corporation’s assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Corporation
not being able to repay its obligations, such as
the redemption of maturing debt, or to fund
the committed purchases of loan portfolios.
The Corporation implements its liquidity risk
management framework in response to changes in
market conditions. The Corporation has continuously
monitored the impact of recent market events on
its liquidity positions, and has pursued a prudent
pre-funding strategy which has helped to contain
the impact the global financial turmoil had on its
liquidity. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the
daily inflow and outflow of funds, and by projecting
the longer-term inflows and outflows of funds
across the full maturity spectrum. The Corporation
measures its liquidity risk using a target liquid-asset
ratio (ratio of liquid assets to total assets), set by the
ALCO to monitor and manage its liquidity position.
The Corporation manages pre-funding prudently
through well-diversified funding sources, so that all
foreseeable funding commitments are met when
they fall due, in order to support the growth of its
business and the maintenance of a well-balanced
liability portfolio. Such diversification allows the
Corporation to pursue a prefunding strategy at
the lowest possible cost, whilst at the same time
offering safeguards against the inability to raise
funds in distorted market conditions. The current
funding sources include:

m Shareholders’ Capital: an authorised capital of
HK$3 billion, of which HK$2 billion is fully paid up.
Accumulated shareholders’ funds amounted to
HK$8.6 billion as at 31 December 2011.

m HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance Programme: there
are 6 Primary Dealers and 16 Selling Group
Members which underwrite and distribute debt
to institutional investors under the DIP. The
Transferable Loan Certificate Sub-Programme
under the DIP provides further diversification of
its funding sources and broadening of its investor
base.

m HK$20 Billion Retail Bond Issuance Programme:
this debt issuance programme has 19 Placing
Banks which assist in offering retail bonds to
investors.

(d]

m US$6 Billion Medium Term Note Programme: there
are 10 Dealers who underwrite and distribute
local and foreign currency debt to international
institutional investors under the programme.

m US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-Backed
Securitisation Programme: with a total of 8
Dealers, this multicurrency mortgage-backed
securitisation programme permits the Corporation
to originate MBS in both the local and international
markets.

m Cash and Debt Investment Portfolio: this portfolio
comprises mainly cash and bank deposits,
commercial paper, high-quality certificates of
deposit, and notes that are readily convertible into
cash.

m HK$30 Billion Revolving Credit Facility: the
Exchange Fund commits to providing the
Corporation with HK$30 billion in revolving credit.

m Money Market Lines: the Corporation has procured
money market lines from a large number of local
and international banks for short-term financing.

Given its strong background as a wholly
government-owned entity and its solid credit
rating, the Corporation is efficient in raising funds
from debt markets with both institutional and retail
funding bases. This advantage is supplemented
by the Corporation’s portfolio of highly liquid
investments, which are held to enable a swift
and smooth response to unforeseen liquidity
requirements. The HK$30 billion Revolving Credit
Facility from the Exchange Fund further provides
the Corporation with a liquidity fallback even if
exceptional market strains last for a prolonged
period.

Currency risk

Currency risk arises from the impact of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations on the Corporation’s
financial position and foreign-currency-denominated
cash flows. The Corporation manages its currency
risk in strict accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board and under the
supervision of the ALCO, which sets daily monitoring
limits on currency exposure.

In accordance with this prudent risk-management
principle, the net exposure of the foreign currency
denominated debts issued under the MTN
Programme and the overseas residential mortgage
loans purchased is fully hedged by the use of cross-
currency swaps.
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Control mechanism

Transaction execution is segregated among the
front, middle and back offices to ensure adequate
checks and balances. The Treasury Department,
acting as the front office, is responsible for
monitoring financial market movements and
executing transactions in the cash, derivatives,
debt and securitisation markets, in accordance
with the strategies laid down by the ALCO. The
Financial Control Department, assuming the
middle-office role, monitors compliance with
treasury counterparties and market risk limits. The
Operations Department, acting as the back office,
is responsible for deal verification, confirmation,
settlement and the payment process.

Asset & Liability Committee

The ALCO manages the Corporation’s asset-liability
portfolio with prudent risk-management principles.
It has the authority to set market-risk management
policies and limits to facilitate day-to-day market-
risk management. Regular meetings are held to
review the latest financial market developments, the
asset-liability portfolio mix, stress tests on interest
rate risk and liquidity risk. It also oversees the
implementation of risk management and investment
guidelines approved by the Board.

The ALCO is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer,
and has among its members a Senior Vice President
(Finance), Senior Vice President (Operations), Senior
Vice President (Risk) and senior staff from the
relevant functional departments.

Operational Risk

Operational risk represents the risk of losses arising from
external interruptions, or inadequacies or the failure of
internal processes, people or systems.

The Corporation adopts a bottom-up approach in
identifying operational risk by carrying out an in-depth
analysis of new products, business activities, processes,
system enhancements and due diligence reviews of
new operational flows. Comprehensive validation rules,
management information system reports and audit trails
are in place to track and report any errors or deficiencies.

The Corporation actively manages operational risk with
its comprehensive system of well-established internal
controls, authentication structures and operational
procedures. The operational infrastructure is well
designed to support the launch of new products in
different business areas, including asset acquisition,
mortgage insurance, SME guarantee, reverse mortgages,
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treasury operations, debt issuances and overseas
businesses. Rigorous reviews are conducted before the
implementation of operational or system infrastructure
in order to identify possible operational risks and to
ensure adequate segregation of duties.

To prevent potential human error, and to ensure an
efficient and effective discharge of daily operations, the
Corporation pursues advanced technological solutions
alongside robust business logistics and controls to carry
out its operational activities and business processes.
Steps have been taken to ensure the accuracy,
availability and security of these systems, as they are
critical to business operations and risk management.
The Corporation has also taken careful steps to institute
adequate checks and balances in financial controls to
ensure that its operations are properly directed and
controlled. Effective financial controls also help to
minimise financial risk and safeguard its assets against
inappropriate use or loss, including the prevention and
detection of fraud.

The Corporation’s Information Security Manual (“ISM")
documents security standards and practices relating
to information and data security for observance by
all staff. All system security measures must follow
the requirements stated in the ISM. The Corporation
implements various security measures, such as double
firewall protection, intrusion-detection systems, virus
alerts, quarantine systems and vulnerability scanning
systems to minimise its exposure to external attacks.
Internally, the Corporation also has a virtual Local
Area Network with workstation security policies to
reduce damage in the event of a malicious intrusion.
The Corporation engages external consultants when
appropriate to conduct intrusion vulnerability tests in
order to enhance system security.

To ensure a high degree of compliance, the Corporation’s
core operating systems and processes are subject to
regular audit and review by internal auditors. As part
of the annual statutory audit, these systems are also
subject to external auditors’ review. Furthermore, every
year all staff are required to sign an undertaking to
comply with the requirements in the ISM. The ISM is
updated whenever there is a new security measure or
system. Any changes to the ISM require approval from
senior management.

To ensure that business-recovery procedures are
practical and to facilitate continuous improvement,
a business recovery drill is conducted by both IT and
user departments every year. Daily back-ups and offsite
storage of back-up tapes are in place to protect the
Corporation from IT disasters.



Product Sign-off Mechanism

To ensure that all risk factors are considered when
designing and implementing a new product, the
Corporation developed a new product development
management framework under which proper sign-off
of product specification is conducted prior to any new
product launch. The product driver is clearly assigned
up front at the start of the product development process
to be responsible for instituting the sign-off process.
Products can be launched only after all functional
departments have signed-off and confirmed functional
readiness.

Operational Risk Committee

The Operational Risk Committee (“ORC") is responsible
for ensuring that all business entities and line functions
in the Corporation maintain an effective operational
risk and internal control framework. The ORC is also
responsible for providing directions and resolving
issues related to policies, controls and management of
operational issues referred to by line functions, as well
as ensuring prompt and appropriate corrective action in
response to audit findings related to operational risks or
internal controls.

The ORC is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. Other
members of the committee include Senior Vice President
(Operations), Senior Vice President (Finance), General
Counsel, Senior Vice President (Risk) and senior staff in
the relevant functional departments.

Legal Risk

Legal risk arises from uncertainty in the application or
interpretation of laws, regulations or legal documents, or
failure to comply with the statutory, regulatory or legal
obligations. Legal risk also arises from the enforceability
or effectiveness of legal documents to safeguard the
interest of the Corporation.

The Legal Office, headed by the General Counsel and
Company Secretary, advises the Corporation on legal
matters with a view to controlling legal risk. When new
products or business activities are considered, the Legal
Office will advise on the relevant laws and regulatory
environment, as well as the legal documentation, and
identify possible legal pitfalls with a view to protecting
the best interests of the Corporation. Where appropriate,
external counsel will be engaged to assist the Legal
Office in providing full legal support to the Corporation.
The Legal Office also works closely with the other
departments of the Corporation to advise on legal issues
and documentation.

The ORC is the governance committee for legal risks.

Leveraging Risk

In order to ensure that the Corporation would not
incur excessive risk when expanding its business and
balance sheet in relation to its own capital base, the
Financial Secretary, in his capacity as Financial Secretary
and not the shareholder, acted as the regulator of the
Corporation, by issuing a set of guidelines on capital-
to-assets ratio for compliance by the Corporation upon
establishment of the Corporation in 1997. The guidelines
have since been updated from time to time to take
account of new products launched by the Corporation.
The Board of Directors approved in December 2009
Management's proposal to further strengthen the
Corporation’s capital management framework by
replacing the then existing Guidelines on capital-to-
assets ratio with a new set of guidelines by reference
largely to the Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy
framework. The Financial Secretary issued in October
2011 the new Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio
(“CAR"), which took effect on 31 December 2011. The
minimum CAR stipulated in the new Guidelines is 8%,
which is the same minimum capital requirement under
the Basel Il. As at 31 December 2011, the Corporation
had a capital base of HK$7.9 billion and a CAR of 19.7%.

The prudent use of regulatory capital is monitored daily
in accordance with the new capital guidelines. The Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) reports the CAR and the daily
minimum ratio to the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis. An early warning system is also in place. If the CAR
drops to the threshold level of 14%, the CEO will alert
the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to 12% or below,
the Board of Directors will be informed and appropriate
remedial actions will be taken.

Longevity Risk

Longevity risk refers to the heightening risk of larger
payouts under the Reverse Mortgage Programme. The
longer the payout period is, the larger the loan balance
will be over time, and the less buffer there will be for
the sale of the property to cover the outstanding loan
balance. A loss may arise if there is a shortfall in the
recovery amount after the disposal of the property. The
termination rate of the loans depends largely on the
mortality rate (i.e. life expectancy) of the borrowers.

In order to assess the potential financial impact of
longevity risk for Reverse Mortgage loans, as well as
the interaction among the various risk factors under the
Reverse Mortgage Programme, a sensitivity analysis was
conducted. The mortality assumptions are reviewed on
a regular basis by the Transaction Approval Committee.
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Process Management and Information
Technology

Automation is instrumental in ensuring efficiency
and accuracy in daily operations. Since its inception,
the Corporation has devoted substantial resources
and effort to developing and upgrading its business
operations, internal controls and application systems.

The Corporation has been upgrading its treasury system,
with a view to making further enhancements in the
timeliness of developing new treasury and hedging
products; better risk management integration across
various products, counterparts and regions; better
integration and more reliable collaboration among
front, middle and back offices; and more robust and
responsive adaptations to meet future regulatory and
reporting requirements. The migration to the new
treasury system is now in the final stage. The new
system will be launched in 2012 after satisfactory
completion of comprehensive testing and a parallel run
with the existing system.

In 2011, the Corporation also put effort into further
developing the Guarantee Information Processing
System, an application system that would provide
internal control and process automation for application
processing, post-commitment monitoring, guarantee
fee administration, claim processing and management
reporting for SFGS. The Corporation has enhanced the
existing internet-based business platform to facilitate
straight-through processing for SFGS applications.
This e-platform system has enabled the Corporation
and SFGS participating banks to increase efficiency by
automating some workflows, enhancing the quality
of the application process and shortening application
turnaround time.

To support the launch of the Reverse Mortgage
Programme in July 2011, the Corporation developed the
Reverse Mortgage System to facilitate the workflow of
the loan application process and servicing operations for
the pilot banks and the Corporation. The system allows
the pilot banks to generate a loan schedule with monthly
payout details, and to validate and process applications
in accordance with the established policies. Further
system enhancements will be implemented in 2012.

Business Continuity Plan

As a business continuity plan is crucial to the
sustainability of a corporation during disasters or
damage of resources, the Corporation regularly reviews
its business continuity plan to ensure an effective and
efficient decision-making and reporting framework in
response to potential disastrous events.
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In response to ongoing changes in the business
environment and new office arrangements in the near
future, the Corporation has been revising its business
continuity plan. In 2011, the annual “surprise” drill served
as an effective tool for promoting staff awareness of a
business continuity culture and readiness in response to
potential business disruption events.

Corporate Social Responsibility

In recognition of the Corporation’s contribution to the
community and its commitment to corporate social
responsibility in the past year, the Hong Kong Council
of Social Service awarded the Corporation the honour
“Caring Organisation 2011/2012" under its Caring
Company Scheme for the fourth year.
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Caring Company Recognition Ceremony

As a socially responsible organisation, the Corporation
cares for both its employees and the community. The
Corporation has underlined its commitment to corporate
social responsibility by caring for its employees’ well-
being, participating in charity activities and implementing
environmental protection measures.

Care for Employees

Staffing and Remuneration

With the Corporation’s core mission of enhancing
stability in the banking sector, promoting wider home
ownership and facilitating the development of the debt
securities market, it attracts and grooms talent in its key
business areas of asset purchases, mortgage insurance,
reverse mortgages and debt issuance. The Corporation
provides its employees with competitive remuneration
packages and fringe benefits, a promising career path
and development opportunities, and a healthy and
safe working environment. It has also adopted family-
friendly practices by offering a five-day week to help
employees maintain a good work-life balance, as well
as comprehensive medical and dental insurance plans
which cover both the employees and their family
members.



Through systems automation and process re-
engineering, the Corporation has maintained a lean and
efficient workforce, despite an increase in the scope of
purchases and the complexity of the products it offers.
In 2011, the permanent establishment of the Corporation
was 172, and the staff turnover rate was 9.88%.

Training and Development

The Corporation recognises the importance of on-going
training and has devoted considerable resources to the
continuous enhancement of its employees’ professional
knowledge and skills. In 2011, the Corporation arranged
different programmes and workshops to help employees
enhance their product knowledge, and strengthen their
managerial and technical competence.

Credit Risk Management Training Workshop

Effective Communication Skills Workshop

The in-house training workshops on product covered a
range of topics, from credit-risk management to bank
lending to SMEs. In-house workshops covered soft skills
such as problem solving, decision making, creative
thinking and effective communication. Language
courses were held on business writing and Putonghua,
and IT desktop workshops were organised on software
applications.

The Corporation also sponsored employees for external
job-related training and development courses covering
a wide range of topics, from mortgage-related issues,
risk management, corporate governance, finance and
accounting to information technology and leadership
training.

In addition, all new employees were provided with an
induction session to help them develop a positive working
relationship by building a foundation of knowledge about
the Corporation’s organisation structure, functions and
policies.

Health and Safety

As a caring organisation, the Corporation is dedicated
to looking after both the physical and mental health of
its employees. An Employee Support Programme is in
place to provide confidential external counselling and
consultation services to employees and their family
members, if needed. Also offered to employees were a
vaccination programme for the prevention of influenza
and a health-check programme at privileged rates.

The Corporation has further reviewed and strengthened
its contingency plans, such as split-team arrangements,
to ensure an immediate response to a possible outbreak
of influenza. The contingency plans aim to prevent the
spread of communicable diseases among employees
and to minimise any unexpected or sudden disruption
to business operations. Periodic drills are organised to
make sure employees are conversant with the activation
of the back-up facilities, contingency plans and
communication arrangements in case of emergency.

Eco Tour to Hong Kong Geopark
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Bowling Fun Day
Employee Relations and Staff Activities

To promote a healthy work-life balance and foster a
family-friendly working environment, the HKMC Staff
Club, composed of members from various departments,
regularly organises staff activities to cultivate better
relationships and communication among employees.
In 2011, these activities included Bowling Fun Day, an
Eco Tour to Hong Kong Global Geo-park, Family Photo-
taking Fun Day, Work-Life Balance Week, and other
staff gatherings, all of which were well received by
both employees and their families. Our employees also
participated in friendly table-tennis games with other
organisations for fun and team building. The e-newsletter
“Mind Channel” regularly disseminates short stories,
epigrams and health tips to all employees to create and
maintain an optimum work-life balance and fulfilment.

To facilitate effective communication within the
Corporation, the intranet Staff Homepage is frequently
updated so that useful information can be shared among
different departments. There is also the Staff Suggestion
Scheme, which encourages staff to make suggestions
for improvements in work flow and the work place.

Care for the Community

Charities and Social Activities

The Corporation promotes various charitable and
community functions, such as fund-raising events,
donation campaigns and voluntary services. Employees
are encouraged to support charity activities and join
voluntary work organised by the HKMC Volunteers Team,
Caring League.

In 2011, the Corporation organised donation campaigns,
such as Dress Casual Day 2011 for the Community Chest
and the HKMC charity concert for education projects
in the Mainland, and held its annual Blood Donation
Day event for the Hong Kong Red Cross, part of the
Corporation’s community programme.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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Dress Casual Day

Employees have been keen to participate in voluntary
services, demonstrating their concern for the needy
by dedicating time and effort to various causes. The
Caring League has partnered with several social service
organisations to participate in a number of voluntary
services, including the following:

m Care for the environment — a recycling campaign in
partnership with the Salvation Army to collect books,
stationery, toys, etc., and International Coastal Cleanup
2011 Hong Kong, organised by the Green Council to
collect litter and clean up the marine environment on a
beach in Stanley.

International Coastal Cleanup



Birthday Party for Children

m Care for the elderly — organised by the HKYWCA Ming
Yue District Elderly Centre, involving our volunteers
visiting the homes of elderly people living alone and
helping them with home cleaning before Chinese New
Year.

m Care for the children - organised by HOPE worldwide,
involving a visit to the HOPE worldwide Centre for
Kids to host a birthday party to celebrate birthdays of
children from low income families.

Student Internship and Executive Trainee
Programmes

To help nurture talent for the future, the Corporation
provides a number of internship and placement
programmes for undergraduates to give them a taste of
the real business world and help them better prepare
themselves for their future careers. The students
who joined the programmes appreciated the learning
experience and incredible work opportunities they were
exposed to.

In 2011, the Corporation introduced its first Executive
Trainee Programme with the objective of attracting
young executives with good potential to meet the
Corporation’s operational needs and long-term staff
development plan. Throughout the two-year programme,
the Executive Trainees have the opportunity to undergo
job rotations and attend structured learning and
development programmes from time to time.

Environmental Protection

The Corporation continuously supports and
implements various green measures to create a more
environmentally friendly office and raise employees’
awareness of methods of waste reduction and energy
conservation. Employees are encouraged to adopt
paperless working practices by using more electronic
communication. They are also encouraged to collect
waste paper and used toner cartridges for recycling,

and are reminded to switch off their computers before
leaving the office. Since 2006, the Corporation has taken
various measures, including better control of office
temperature, in the interest of energy efficiency. The
Corporation welcomes suggestions from employees
for green office ideas and encourages its suppliers to
use and offer more environmentally friendly products
whenever possible.

2012 Qutlook

Hong Kong has shown great resilience during the
global financial crisis but, according to the International
Monetary Fund, external shocks emanating from Europe
remain a key risk ahead. If the external economic
environment deteriorates significantly, Hong Kong could
be adversely affected through both trade and financial
channels. Therefore, in 2012, the Corporation will remain
highly vigilant and closely monitor market changes. It will
maintain close dialogue with banks and stand ready to
meet their demand for liquidity. It will also remain active
in the bond market and issue different forms of bonds
to satisfy both investors’ appetite and its own business
needs.

The Corporation is committed to further developing
and promoting two new significant initiatives launched
in 2011 — the SFGS and the RMP. It will also set up a
microfinance scheme to help aspiring entrepreneurs
acquire the capital for small businesses or self-
enhancement.

Despite the uncertainty in the economic outlook, the
Corporation will strive to fulfil its policy mission to
contribute to Hong Kong.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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Financial Review

Amid increasing headwinds on the external front
caused by the prolonged sovereign debt crisis in the
Eurozone, anaemic recovery in the US economy, and the
continuation of macro-economic control measures in
the Mainland, the growth momentum of the Hong Kong
economy trended downward in the second half of 2011.
Total exports of goods suffered, relapsing to a modest
year-on-year decline due to sluggish demand from
advanced economies. However domestic demand held
up remarkably well and was the key growth driver for the
local economy. Private consumption expenditure grew
robustly as wages and incomes showed accelerated
increases across almost all segments of the workforce,
and the labour market was virtually in full employment,
with the unemployment rate falling to 3.3% from
October to December. Overall investment spending
posted a double-digit increase in 2011, backed by strong
machinery and equipment acquisition and infrastructure
construction. The real GDP recorded year-on-year
growth of 5%.

Inflationary pressure remained elevated in recent
months, driven mainly by the food and housing rental
components. Inflation momentum, however, showed
some signs of moderation amid a slight easing in food
price increases. However, lagging effects from the
earlier surge in private housing rentals continued to filter
through, and wages also picked up visibly on the back of
a tight labour market. Headline consumer price inflation
still rose from 5.2% in the second quarter to 5.7% in the
fourth quarter. The residential property market cooled
down in the second half, reflecting the combined impact
of a weaker global growth outlook, the Government’s
housing initiatives, rising mortgage interest rates and
stronger headwinds in the external environment.
However, overall residential property prices still
increased by 9% in 2011.

Income Statement
Financial Performance

Benefiting from the growth of the Hong Kong economy
and the buoyant property market in first half 2011, the
Corporation achieved another year of good financial
results. Profits attributable to the shareholders grew
1.8% over 2010 to HK$1,256 million in 2011 (Figures 1 and
2). The growth was attributable mainly to the low interest
rate environment, excellent loan performance and an
increased contribution from the mortgage insurance
premium earned from loans under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme (“MIP").

Figure 1
Summary of financial performance

2011 2010
HK$ million HK$ million

Operating profit before impairment 1,429 1,387
Profit before tax 1,429 1,406
Profit attributable to shareholders 1,256 1,234
Return on shareholders’ equity 15.5% 17.5%
Return on assets 2.3% 2.2%
Cost-to-income ratio 11.8% 11.0%
Capital adequacy ratio/

Capital-to-assets ratio’ 19.7% 10.8%

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2011 was compiled in accordance with Guidelines
on Capital Adequacy Ratio stipulated by the Financial Secretary, replacing the previous Guidelines
on Capital-to-Assets Ratio adopted for 2010. As there are modifications between the two
guidelines, the capital ratios are not directly comparable.

Operating profit before impairment increased by HK$42
million, or 3%, to HK$1,429 million. This was supported
by 36.1% growth in the net mortgage insurance premium
earned and 16.5% growth in other income, offsetting a
reduction of 11.9% in net interest income.

Figure 2
Profit attributable to shareholders (HK$ million)
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Return on shareholders’ equity remained stable at 15.5%
(2010: 17.5%), as did return on assets at 2.3% (2010:
2.2%). Increased commitments for risk management
infrastructure and resources to support the launch of
the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme and Reverse
Mortgage Programme in January and July 2011
respectively contributed to the increase of 12.3% in
operating expenses. The cost-to-income ratio increased
to 11.8% (2010: 11.0%) and the capital adequacy ratio
("CAR") was at 19.7% as at 31 December 2011, well above
the minimum 8% guideline stipulated by the Financial
Secretary.
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Figure 3
Net interest income
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest income 1,032,602 1,141,383
Interest expense (177,789) (170,802)
Net interest income 854,813 970,581
Average interest-earning assets 51,518,005 53,266,677
Net interest margin 1.7% 1.8%
Net interest spread on interest-
bearing liabilities” 1.6% 1.8%

2 Net interest spread on interest-bearing liabilities = Return on interest-earning assets - Funding
cost on interest-bearing liabilities

The average loan portfolio fell HK$5.5 billion compared
to that of 2010 as a result of faster loan portfolio runoffs
arising from the increased housing turnover in the
property market. This reduction was offset partially by
an increase in cash and investments of HK$3.7 billion.
The net interest spread fell from 1.8% to 1.6% year on
year, and the net interest margin dropped from 1.8%
to 1.7%. The net interest income for the year declined
11.9%, from HK$971 million to HK$855 million year on
year on account of a HK$1.7 billion reduction in average
interest-earning assets in 2011 (Figure 3),

Net Mortgage Insurance Premium Earned

Following the slowdown in the property market in the
second half of 2011 amidst the impact of a weaker
global growth outlook, rising mortgage interest rates
and stronger headwinds in the external environment,
new residential mortgage loans drawn down decreased
from HK$324.2 billion in 2010 to HK$227.8 billion in
2011. The Corporation’s new business underwritten
under the MIP dropped from HK$41 billion to HK$26.3
billion year on year. However, the amortisation effect
of premium receipts underwritten in previous years
added to the upfront premium recognised due to active
housing turnover during first half of 2011, leading to
an increase of 30% in net premiums earned after net
commission expenses from HK$424 million in 2010
to HK$550 million in 2011. Taking into account the
write-back of provisions for outstanding claims of
HK$19 million (2010: a charge of HK$6 million), the net
premiums earned after provisions increased 36.1%
year on year from HK$418 million to HK$569 million
(Figure 4).

Figure 4
Net mortgage insurance earned (HK$ million)
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Other Income

Other income rose 16.5% to HK$198 million in 2011 (2010:
HK$170 million) (Figure 5).

The net gain on disposal of investments was about
HK$65 million (2010: HK$65 million), which was
attributable mainly to re-balancing and diversifying of
the investment portfolio.

Figure 5
Major source of other income (HK$ million)
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A dividend income of HK$65 million (2010: HK$44
million) from listed investment securities, equivalent to a
dividend yield of about 5%, was received in 2011 (2010:
5%). The income was generated from investments in the
ABF Hong Kong Bond Index Fund, ABF Pan Asia Bond
Index Fund and a real estate investment trust.

The Corporation recorded an exchange gain of HK$51
million, which was HK$16 million more than that of 2010
(2010: HK$35 million), primarily due to the revaluation of
the approved US dollar and renminbi exposure.

Early prepayment fees were HK$15 million, HK$3 million
lower than in 2010 (2010: HK$18 million).

Operating Expenses

The Corporation continued to maintain stringent cost
controls to contain expenses and improve operating
efficiency. Operating expenses recorded an 12.3%
increase year on year to HK$192 million, but this was
HK$40 million lower than that of the approved budget.
Staff costs rose by 14.9% to HK$131 million, attributable
mainly to further strengthening of risk management
capability and the cost of resources required to support
the launch of new business initiatives. Staff costs
accounted for 68.2% of total operating expenses,
compared to 66.7% in 2010. Premises rental and related



costs increased by HK$2 million to HK$16 million,
attributable mainly to an increase in rental costs.
Depreciation charges on assets decreased to HK$9
million (2010: HK$13 million) (Figure 6).

Figure 6
Operating expenses (HK$ million)
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Allowance for Loan Impairment

Asset quality remained strong, with the delinquency ratio
falling from 0.03% to 0.01%. In view of developments in
the residential property market and worsening economic
conditions, a collective assessment for loan impairment
of HK$3 million was charged in 2011, according to the
approved prudent provisioning policy (Figure 7).

Figure 7

Provisions / (Write-back) of loan impairment allowances
(HK$ million)
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In respect of the overseas mortgage loan portfolio,
the asset quality remained healthy as a result of
stringent purchasing criteria and prudent risk mitigation.
No collective assessment for loan impairment was
necessary for 2011 (2010: Nil) and no credit loss was
recorded.

Total allowance for loan impairment accounted for
0.02% of the outstanding principal balance (HK$33.1
billion) of the loan portfolio at end of 2011 (Figure 8).
During the year, no loans were written off (2010: Nil), and
loan recoveries amounted to HK$2 million (2010: HK$5
million).

Figure 8
Ratios
2011 2010
Delinquency ratio for loan portfolio
overdue more than 90 days 0.01% 0.03%
Total allowance for loan impairment
as a percentage of gross loan portfolio 0.02% 0.01%

Financial Position

Total assets increased by HK$1.5 billion to HK$56.5
billion (2010: HK$55 billion) (Figure 9), due mainly to a
HK$4.3 billion increase in cash and short-term funds
to HK$10.2 billion as a result of a prudent pre-funding
strategy. Surplus cash from mortgage receipts was
invested in short-term investment securities to bridge
the redemption of matured debt securities issued.

Figure 9
Assets Deployment (HK$ billion)
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Loan Portfolio

During the year, the Corporation purchased Hong Kong
loan assets worth HK$9.7 billion (2010: HK$4.7 billion).

After accounting for prepayments and repayments
during the year, the outstanding balance of the
Corporation’s residential mortgage portfolio and
securitised portfolio stood at HK$20.4 billion and HK$0.2
billion, respectively. The Korean residential mortgages
recorded a normal runoff of HK$4.7 billion, leaving an
outstanding balance of HK$7.2 billion. The commercial
mortgage portfolio, which was collateralised by local
commercial buildings, remained at the same level of
HK$4 billion as that of 2010 (Figure 10).
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The average prepayment rate for the loan portfolio
(including securitised mortgages) decreased from 24.1%
in 2010 to 19.9% in 2011 because of the slowdown in
property turnover.

Figure 10
Loan Portfolio, Net
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mortgage portfolio
Residential
—Hong Kong 20,402,305 18,081,110
- Overseas 7,239,972 11,912,250
Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000
Securitised portfolio 169,762 717,786
Non-mortgage portfolio 1,331,401 549,820
33,143,440 35,260,966
Allowance for loan impairment (7,622) (2,029)
Loan portfolio, net 33,135,818 35,258,937

Investment Securities

The Corporation’s investment portfolio comprises
mainly bank deposits, short-term commercial paper,
certificates of deposit, bonds, yield-based government
bond funds and a real estate investment trust. The
liquid investment portfolio serves as a liquidity buffer to
support the Corporation’s business operations, enabling
it to respond promptly and smoothly to unforeseen
liquidity requirements. The Corporation adopts a
prudent, low-risk approach in managing its surplus
funds and investment activities in accordance with the
approved investment guidelines. As at 31 December
2011, the total investment portfolio decreased slightly
from HK$11.4 billion in 2010 to HK$10.6 billion in 2011,
which included HK$2.3 billion of available-for-sale
investments and HK$8.3 billion of held-to-maturity
investments. The decrease in the size of the investment
portfolio was attributable to active capital management
and a response to the funding needs of loan purchases
in 2011. Following the prudent investment guidelines for
asset and liability management, the Corporation did not
directly or indirectly hold any sub-prime investments,
special investment vehicles, collateralized debt
obligations, high-risk European sovereign debt, or debt
securities issued by failed institutions in its portfolio.
In 2011, there was no impairment loss against the
investment portfolio.

Debt Securities Issued

In 2011, the Corporation issued HK$28.5 billion of debt,
comprising HK$6.9 billion under the DIP and HK$21.6
billion under the MTN. All the non-HK dollar debt issued
under the MTN programme was swapped into HK dollars
or US dollars using hedging financial derivatives. As at

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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31 December 2011, the total outstanding balance of
the debt increased by 5.1% or HK$2 billion to HK$41.1
billion as compared with 2010. The increase reflected
the Corporation’s prudent pre-funding strategy, which
was adopted to support its business activities in light
of the volatile market conditions. Before taking into
account full and partial prepayments, the average life of
the loan portfolio was 11 years on a contractual basis.
While the Corporation issued debt up to 15 years, 88% of
the Corporation’s outstanding debt will mature within 5
years.

Mortgage-backed Securities Issued

During the year, the Corporation did not issue any
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”). In comparison
with 2010, the total outstanding balance of the MBS fell
by HK$1.1 billion to HK$0.4 billion, reflecting the normal
redemption of MBS during the year.

Off-balance Sheet Exposure
Mortgage Insurance

The Corporation operates the MIP business on a risk-
sharing basis with approved reinsurers. At the end of
2011, the total risk-in-force was about HK$16.6 billion
(2010: HK$17.6 billion), of which HK$2.5 billion (2010:
HK$2.4 billion) was ceded to approved reinsurers. The
off-balance sheet risk-in-force exposure borne by the
Corporation decreased slightly by 7.2% to HK$14.1 billion
year on year. Of this exposure, the excess loss of HK$3
billion of risk-in-force was hedged through excess-of-loss
reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle-layer
risk positions, while the Corporation retains a portion of
the total risk comprising the first-loss and remote risk
portions.

The provision for outstanding claims accounted for 0.37%
(2010: 0.46%) of the retained risk-in-force at end of 2011.
The delinquency ratio remained healthy at 0% (2010:
0.003%).

Overseas Business

At the end of 2011, the outstanding balance of the
Korean mortgage portfolio stood at HK$7.2 billion (2010:
HK$11.9 billion). The joint venture in Malaysia, which is
engaged in the mortgage-guarantee business, recorded
a share of profit of HK$2.8 million (2010: HK$2.3 million).
The joint venture in Shenzhen, which is engaged in
the mortgage-bridging-guarantee business, generated
a small loss of HK$0.5 million (2010: profit of HK$3.3
million). The aggregate profit contribution of the above
overseas business in 2011 amounted to HK$81 million
(2010: HK$134 million), or 6% of the Corporation’s profit
before tax.



Cash Flow Management

The Corporation generated HK$1.4 billion in cash flow
from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities. The cash flow was derived mainly
from net interest income received. Repayment of the
mortgage portfolio was used to finance the redemption
of debt securities and loan purchase. Due to the
prudent pre-funding strategy adopted to support the
Corporation’s business activities, net increase in cash
equivalent amounted to HK$5.4 billion in 2011 (2010:
HK$0.7 billion).

Capital Management

In October 2011, the Financial Secretary approved the
replacement of the Guidelines on Capital-to-Assets Ratio
with the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio, which
was largely in reference to the Basel Il risk-based capital
adequacy framework, for the purpose of enhancing the
Corporation’s capital management framework.

At the end of 2011, the CAR stood at a healthy level of
19.7%, which was well above the minimum level of 8%
stipulated by the Financial Secretary. Under the previous
guidelines, the capital-to-assets ratio as at 31 December
2011 was 11.3%.

Dividend

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30 April 2012,
the shareholders having considered the financial
performance of the Corporation and the capital
requirements for launching new businesses initiatives
in 2012, approved a final dividend of HK$0.175 (2010:
HK$0.175) per share, totalling HK$350 million (2010:
HK$350 million) and representing a dividend payout ratio
of 27.9%.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (for the
purpose of this report, including the special purpose entities used for
issuing mortgage-backed securities) (together the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The general principal activities of the Company are:

(1) to purchase portfolios of mortgages or loans secured on properties
or other collateral situated in Hong Kong or elsewhere and to acquire
other debentures, receivables, financial assets and choses in action of
all kinds from their originators, issuers, owners or vendors;

S

to acquire, by purchase or otherwise, any assets from government
bodies and agencies and related organisations, statutory bodies and
public bodies and to hold, sell, transfer, dispose of and deal in any
such assets so purchased or acquired;

(3) to issue notes or debt securities to institutional investors or retail
investors;

(4) to securitise mortgage portfolios through special purpose entities by
way of issuing mortgage-backed securities to investors;

(5) to provide mortgage insurance cover to Authorized Institutions (“Als”)
in respect of mortgage loans and reverse mortgage loans originated
by such Als and secured by residential properties,

(6) to provide financial guarantee cover to Als in respect of:

(@) second mortgage loans originated by such Als and secured by
residential properties for payment of premium to the Hong Kong
Housing Authority and the Hong Kong Housing Society; and

(b) loans originated by such Als to small and medium-sized enterprises
and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong.

The corporate information and principal activities of the subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entity of the Company and special purpose entities used
for issuing mortgage-backed securities are shown in Notes 22, 23 and 33
respectively to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 95 together with
particulars of the proposed dividend.
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Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 99.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 25 to the financial statements.

Debt Securities Issued

The Company issued a total of HK$28.5 billion notional values of notes to
banks and institutional investors under its HK$40 Billion Debt Issuance
Programme and the US$6 Billion Medium Term Note Programme for
a consideration of around HK$28.5 billion during the year ended 31
December 2011. The proceeds of the notes were used for the purposes of
providing general working capital for the Company. The Company did not
issue any debt securities under its Retail Bond Issuance Programme during
the year ended 31 December 2011. A summary of the debt securities
issuance and redemption activities is set out in Note 28 to the financial
statements.

Mortgage-backed Securities Issued

The special purpose entities did not issue any mortgage-backed securities
under its Guaranteed Mortgage-backed Pass-through Securitisation
Programme or the US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed Securitisation
Programme in 2011. A summary of the mortgage-backed securities
redemption activities is set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who served during the year were as follows:

The Hon. John TSANG Chun Wah, GBM, JP
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Norman T. L. CHAN, SBS, JP
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Peter PANG Sing Tong, JP
Executive Director

Mr. Eddie YUE Wai Man, JP
Executive Director

Professor the Hon. K. C. CHAN, SBS, JP
Director

The Hon. CHAN Kin Por, JP
Director

The Hon. Ms. Tanya CHAN
Director
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Mr. Jammy CHEN
Director (retired on 12 April 2011)

The Hon. Ms. Eva CHENG, GBS, JP
Director

Professor the Hon. Anthony CHEUNG Bing Leung, GBS, BBS, JP
Director

Mr. Eddy FONG Ching, GBS, JP
Director

Mr. Andrew FUNG Hau Chung, JP
Director

Mr. Ryan FUNG Yuk Lung
Director

Mr. Lester Garson HUANG, P
Director

The Hon. Ms. Starry LEE Wai King, JP
Director

The Hon. Andrew LEUNG Kwan Yuen, GBS, SBS, JP
Director

Dr. the Hon. David LI Kwok Po, GBM, GBS, Hon. LLD (Cantab), JP
Director

The Hon. Abraham SHEK Lai Him, SBS, JP
Director

Mr. Jason YEUNG Chi Wai
Director (appointed on 12 April 2011)

In accordance with Article 109 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
all those Directors who are not Executive Directors shall retire but shall be
eligible for re-election at the next annual general meeting.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions and Contracts

During the year, the Company and/or its subsidiary, HKMC Mortgage
Management Limited (“HMML"), purchased mortgage loans and other
loan assets from Hang Seng Bank Limited (“Hang Seng Bank”) under its
Mortgage Purchase Programme (“MPP”). Mr. Andrew Fung Hau Chung, a
director of the Company, is the Executive Director and Head of Treasury
and Investment of Hang Seng Bank.

During the year, the Company and/or the HMML purchased mortgage
loans from Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“Bank of China") under the
MPP. The Company also provided insurance cover to Bank of China under
its Mortgage Insurance Programme. Mr. Jason Yeung Chi Wai, a director of
the Company, is the Deputy Chief Executive of Bank of China.
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Save for the above, there was no contract of significance in relation to the
Company'’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

At no time during the year was the Company a party to any arrangement
to enable any of its Directors or members of its management to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities of, the
Company or any body corporate.

Additional Disclosures in Compliance with the
Provisions of the Insurance Companies Ordinance
(“1c0”)

During the year, the “Controllers” of the Company (as defined in the ICO)
were the Hon. John Tsang and Mr. James H. Lau Jr. (Chief Executive Officer
of the Company). Mr. Lau did not have any interests in the transactions or
the contracts which the Company had entered into during the year ended
31 December 2011.

During the year, the Company did not carry on insurance business relating
to liabilities or risks in respect of which persons were required by any
Ordinance to be insured.

There were in existence reinsurance arrangements between the Company
and the following approved reinsurers: Asia Insurance Company, Limited,
Bank of China Group Insurance Company Limited, Hang Seng General
Insurance (Hong Kong) Company Limited, QBE Mortgage Insurance (Asia)
Limited (formerly known as PMI Mortgage Insurance (Asia) Limited)
and AIG United Guaranty Insurance (Asia) Limited. During the year, the
Company operated its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing
basis. Except for those mortgage insurance covers in respect of which
no reinsurance arrangement had been made, the Company ceded up to
50% of the risk exposure under its mortgage insurance to each approved
reinsurer, with the remaining risk exposure being retained by the
Company. The Company had also entered into a bilateral “excess of loss”
reinsurance agreement with an approved reinsurer.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
which retires and, being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

John C Tsang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong
30 April 2012
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To the shareholders of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Hong
Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 189, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 April 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE—_ZT——F+-A=1+—HItFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
B aE T AT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FLEMA Interest income 6 1,032,602 1,141,383
FESEH Interest expense 7 (177,789) (170,802)
IS 9N Net interest income 854,813 970,581
EmERE T Net premiums earned 8 658,854 583,377
EAblA Other income 9 197,865 169,868
REZUTN Operating income 1,711,532 1,723,826
BAREE /(EL) F5E Net claims written back/(incurred) 8 17,618 (6,345)
e FEE Net commission expenses 8 (108,000) (159,101)
LS Operating expenses 10 (191,932) (171,425)
RETRUE RITAY 48 & A Operating profit before impairment 1,429,218 1,386,955
EFURE (BE) /15 (Charge)/write-back of loan
impairment allowances 13 (3,141) 16,663
AR Operating profit 1,426,077 1,403,618
FE(EH RIS E 32 Rm T Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23 2,830 2,259
B FEET T Profit before taxation 1,428,907 1,405,877
I Taxation 14(a) (173,225) (172,015)
NEEFF Profit for the year 1,255,682 1,233,862
PR /(1) : Profit/(loss) attributable to:
AARIRER Equity holders of the Company 1,255,731 1,233,532
IR AR 3R Non-controlling interests (49) 330
1,255,682 1,233,862

F102E 189 B AT &M st &

o
B °

BRCEE

financial statements.

The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated

R 2
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350,000

350,000
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HItFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FitaE FHET AT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
INEERF Profit for the year 1,255,682 1,233,862
Hih 2w : Other comprehensive income:
AHHEES Available-for-sale securities:
- REER TR - unrealised net gains 31 107,682 143,631
- HERATEZEFSHEA — fair value changes transferred to income
Wk statement on disposal 31 (51,884) (40,554)
- i\ — tax effect 31 (9,316) (17,307)
— BN — amortisation 31 663 1,809
R ME P : Cash flow hedges:
- BEEAEM KRR - net gains arising from hedges recognised
EapllenyE ] in other comprehensive income 31 2,396 26,340
- BARZERNAFEEE — fair value changes transferred
to income statement 31 10,195 (79)
- B8 — tax effect 31 (2,078) (4,333)
BTG INETS R E AR Exchange differences on translation
M 5 =50 of foreign operations
AN - subsidiary 5,366 4,309
—- HEEHEE —jointly controlled entity 31 (3,784) 13,108
FE(G H [F 2t B e Share of other comprehensive income
Hith 2 Eas of a jointly controlled entity 31 279 163
AEEHMPEEE Other comprehensive income
EIBRIIE for the year, net of tax 59,519 127,087
AEEEEWEHEE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,315,201 1,360,949
FElE IR s 4EEE Total comprehensive income attributable to:
AR R Equity holders of the Company 1,314,713 1,360,188
VR RERR R Non-controlling interests 488 761

1,315,201 1,360,949

F1022 189 HT#E Ml st A4 A B EHER —  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
5 e financial statements.
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e TSR OR 3R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-T——F+_H=+—8H
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
b= T AT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
RehEHEe Cash and short-term funds 17 10,245,165 5,902,649
JELLF B K BE 51 Interest and remittance receivables 18 590,998 657,150
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,559,187 1,396,621
EREEFE Loan portfolio, net 20 33,135,818 35,258,937
BHLE Investment securities:
- A E — available-for-sale 21(a) 2,303,703 3,403,966
- FAEEIH - held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,269,148 8,033,133
HENEFIEEEEE Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 130,045 130,720
ENZIE - BE RHEMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 27,097 27,659
BE&E Fixed assets 25 31,274 17,252
BREBEE Reinsurance assets 27 208,911 204,891
BEELE Total assets 56,501,346 55,032,978
afg LIABILITIES
FERHFIE Interest payable 237,244 493,553
FERTBRIE - FENRES & Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
HEteE liabilities 26 4,274,883 4,291,137
TESmI A Derivative financial instruments 19 139,582 44,372
EHRIEAE Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 134,785 133,560
EERIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 52,672 37167
REEE Insurance liabilities 27 1,630,595 1,773,665
BT ERES Debt securities issued 28 41,097,207 39,127,735
B TIRBE A Mortgage-backed securities issued 29 367,137 1,529,749
=Rt Total liabilities 47,934,105 47,430,938
HEZE EQUITY
R A A BRI N (64 Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders:
(%N Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
{REB & A Retained profits 5,173,228 4,561,624
EsEL contingency reserve 31 731,562 437,435
NFERE Fair value reserve 31 302,615 255,191
SRR Hedging reserve 31 (13,244) (23,757)
P 5 ot Translation reserve 31 10,911 9,866
HUR X B, Proposed dividend 16 350,000 350,000
8,555,072 7,590,359
PRI R AR 2 Non-controlling interests in equity 12,169 11,681
AR Total equity 8,567,241 7,602,040
Rk aEaE Total equity and liabilities 56,501,346 55,032,978

EEREN-Z——EmMA=THEIERE#ET] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April
{T° 2012.

RfE Norman T. L. Chan wHEEE PeterS. T. Pang
BIEE#F#HTESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #H77EZFE Executive Director

£102 2189 B s st A4 A BISH®ERMN—32F  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
g2 financial statements.
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B R AR R 3=
Statement of Financial Position

R-_T——%Ft+_H=+—H
as at 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FitaE FHET AT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 17 10,121,847 5,769,509
FEUSR B K% BE 3R Interest and remittance receivables 18 578,070 645,232
TAESRIT A Derivative financial instruments 19 1,559,187 1,372,522
BEHEEERE Loan portfolio, net 20 28,006,425 31,392,398
BHEE Investment securities:
- AMEEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 2,303,703 3,403,966
- FEaE 5 - held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,269,148 8,033,133
B ATRE Investment in subsidiaries 22 4,986,708 3,205,632
HE e E Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 120,554 120,554
YEREHIE ke R HMEE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 188,787 29,220
EBE Fixed assets 25 30,949 15,980
BREBEE Reinsurance assets 27 208,911 204,891
EERE Total assets 56,374,289 54,193,037
aE LIABILITIES
FERTFILE Interest payable 237,128 491,231
FEISBRIE - RIS R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
HihBE liabilities 26 4,634,004 4,792,266
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 19 139,582 44,372
EHRIEEE Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 135,131 134,532
EERITAAE Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 52,696 37167
RBBEE Insurance liabilities 27 1,630,595 1,773,665
BEITEBES Debt securities issued 28 41,097,207 39,405,886
afFam Total liabilities 47,926,343 46,679,119
HEZE EQUITY
A A BRI Capital and reserves attributable to the
equity holders:
A&7 Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE & A Retained profits 5,077,455 4,495,212
ElEL Contingency reserve 31 731,562 437,435
NFERE Fair value reserve 31 302,173 255,028
Eapiaal = Hedging reserve 31 (13,244) (23,757)
BRI E Proposed dividend 16 350,000 350,000
R Total equity 8,447,946 7,513,918
EEREERR Total equity and liabilities 56,374,289 54,193,037

SEERON-_ZE—_FNA=1+HIENE®E Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 April

Fi47 o 2012.
RRfE Norman T. L. Chan ZEEE Peter S. T. Pang
BIEEF#TESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #H77EZFE Executive Director

£102 2189 B s st A4 A BISH®ERMN—2F  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
e financial statements.
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AEERBER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE—_ZT——F+-A=1+—HItFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

AATRERES
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
2R
HEARER
RAR (REER HAh Non-
Share Retained Other  controlling A5F
capital profits* reserves interests Total
k=3 FHAIT FAT FHIT FHIT FHIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R_F—FFE—A—H%&&% Balance as at 1 January 2010 2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10,920 6,741,091
ANEZ Profit for the year - 1,233,532 - 330 1,233,862
At HEBAN A TESFEE . Net fair value gains of available-
2HRTIE for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 87,742 - 87,742
Rememmas s Net change in cash flow hedges,
EHIRTHIE net of tax 31 - - 21928 - 21928
MEBINETS R EE R Exchange differences on
] translation of foreign operations
- KB AR — subsidiary 31 - - 3,878 431 4,309
- EEEHIEE —jointly controlled entity 31 - = 13,108 = 13,108
REEZEK B Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,233,532 126,656 761 1,360,949
AR R A A E M E Transfer of 50% of net risk
R ERIRE TR 50% premium earned from retained
ZRER G profits to contingency reserve 31 - (260,282) 260,282 - -
RO E R ER R E R Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 12,680 (12,680) - -
ENZZEZTNERE Dividend paid related to 2009 - (500,000 = - (500,000
R-FE—-FEF+"HA=1+—H%&% Balance as at 31 December 2010 2,000,000 4,911,624 678,735 11,681 7,602,040
AEERH /(1) Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,255,731 - (49) 1,255,682
AEHEEAMATEYKZELE-  Net fair value gains of available-
EIRTHIE for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 47424 - 47424
RE TP B e Net change in cash flow hedges,
BB IE net of tax 31 - - 10,513 - 10,513
BB INET R E R Exchange differences on
i 5 =% translation of foreign operations
S ENG] — subsidiary 31 = = 4,829 537 5,366
- EEEHIEE —jointly controlled entity 31 - = (3,784) = (3,784)
REE2EW=BE Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,255,731 58,982 488 1,315,201
BRI A D M Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
JR\BR IR 2 5 R ) 50% 3% premium earned from retained
75% Z R\lgf#E profits to contingency reserve 31 - (307,140) 307,140 - -
EEERRFEZRE R Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 13,013 (13,013) - -
BERZF-TFRE Dividend paid related to 2010 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
NZE——F+"A=1+—H#&# Balance as at 31 December 2011 2,000,000 5,523,228 1,031,844 12,169 8,567,241

*

R=_ZT——F+-_A=+—H BEXREB *
St 7 7 2148 350,000,000 7T ( Z B — T4 ¢

350,000,000 7T ) {ER#ER AR HRLS. ©

X

H#

102 =189 B AT st AR & M S wER M —

As at 31 December 2011, HK$350 million (2010: HK$350 million) was
earmarked as proposed final dividend from retained profits.

The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated

ok

f5 o financial statements.
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mERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_Z——F+-A=1+—HItFE
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
FitaE F#&T AT
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
REEBMERERE Cash flows from operating activities
£ A Operating profit 1,426,077 1,403,618
PAT SIEEH AT - Adjustment for:
F 2 A Interest income (1,043,095) (1,151,373)
FlEZH Interest expense 111,620 116,949
A% S A Dividend income 9 (65,071) (43,595)
e Depreciation 10 8,609 12,928
HEREE B EREE Loss on disposal of fixed assets 51 _
BRI T BB ST R Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 66,169 53,853
EFCRERME /() Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances 13 3,141 (16,663)
U Bl SH A B 3R Recoveries of loans previously written off 20(b) 2,452 4,760
BT IR [ Unwind of discount on impairment - 79)
AREEESFEEFFE Amortisation of unrealised loss on
FIHAE SRR available-for-sale securities transferred
BB to held-to-maturity securities 31 663 1,809
BHRE m B Amortisation of premium on investment
securities 9,830 8,181
HEFEHF R FRE Net gain on disposal of investments 12 (64,952) (64,752)
SR TARAFEES Change in fair value of financial instruments (5,999) 4,832
RIER S mENTIRE Change in translation of financial assets
SREES under cash flow hedge 31 2,396 26,340
BAM RIS R R Fair value changes of cash flow hedge
NEEES transferred to income statement 31 10,195 (79)
BEIFE Interest received 1,296,840 1,123,624
ERFE Interest paid (367,929) (69,183)
AT RLEEERBBEHH Cash flows from operating activities before
KEEBMSHSRE changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,390,997 1,411,170
[REHAEEE =1E A% IR Change in time deposits with original maturity
T HATE & B of more than three months 1,101,734 (1,117,896)
JRE LA D K Change in remittance receivables (187,576) 81,129
FENFUE - e R EMEEESE  Change in prepayments, deposits and other assets 897 3,438
B eE Change in loan portfolio 2,117,526 8,541,761
FEIERIA . BRI R Change in accounts payable, accrued expenses
HimBEE e and other liabilities (16,286) 16,960
R BEFEES Change in insurance liabilities, net (147,090) 372,557
SN =78 Exchange differences (25,063) (6,535)
SRS ETIEIE & Cash generated from operation 4,235,139 9,302,584
BERBEEFER Hong Kong profits tax paid (167.889) (176,466)
IR L TR PSR SRR Net cash generated from operating activities 4,067,250 9,126,118
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2011 2010

B T#ExT FAT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BETHMERERE Cash flows from investing activities

R lméfiz Purchase of fixed assets 25 (22,877) (8,866)

BEEAHEEFE Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (645,167) (4,263,000)

BERERIIHES Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (1,743,272) (4,341,842)

HEETE B EMSKIEA Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 230 -

B K B Bl Al H & 75 5 Proceeds from sale and redemption of

PEEEeE] available-for-sale securities 1,867,014 4,644,210

HERBREREZIEHES Proceeds from sale and redemption

FTiSs08 of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) 1,508,858 2,130,621
BURAIHEEERESFRE Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 64,740 45,093
&SRS /(FTA) Net cash generated from/(used in)

RE investing activities 1,029,526 (1,793,784)
MERRERNER Net cash inflows before financing 5,096,776 7,332,334
AE EEERFRER E Cash flows from financing activities

BT EBESFRE Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 28,525,186 8,193,535

EE@E?%TT(E?%-L‘% Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (26,707,868) | (13,838,443)

EEITIRIBR FER Repayment of mortgage-backed

securities issued 29 (1,138,513) (470,471)

B A Dividend paid 16 (350,000) (500,000)
REERENFTS /(FrA) Net cash generated from/(used in)

IRE F5m financing activities 328,805 (6,615,379)
HERERREEBEINEE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,425,581 716,955
EMRERERREER Beginning cash and cash equivalents 4,545,074 3,828,119
EXHREREREEIEH Effect of exchange rates on cash and

- cash equivalents 15,358 -
FHRBEERERIEFELIER Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 9,986,013 4,545,074
FIRE19BEFH M T AZEMHHRKXA—  The notes on pages 102 to 189 are an integral part of these consolidated
B ° financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
"Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-
sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs

(@) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or
after 1 January 2011
(i) The following standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2011, which are relevant to the Group:

m HKAS 24 (revised) Related Party Disclosures clarifies and
simplifies the definition of a related party. It also provides
a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements
for government-related entities to disclose details of all
transactions with the government and other government-
related entities. The Group has not applied the exemption
from the disclosure requirements for the government-
related entities and has early adopted this revised
standard in 2010.
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m Third improvements to HKFRSs (2010) were issued in May
2010 by HKICPA, which are effective in the financial year
of 2011. These changes result in additional disclosures
with no material impact on the financial position or the
comprehensive income of the Group.

(i) The following amendments and interpretations effective in

2011, are not currently relevant to the Group (although they
may affect the accounting for future transactions):

m HKAS 32 (amendment) Classification of Rights Issues.

m HK (IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments.

m HK (IFRIC) - Int 14 (amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement.

m Amendment to HKFRS 1 Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters.

(b) Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective

(i) The following new standards and amendments relevant to

the Group have been issued but not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2011 and have not been early
adopted:

m HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements
changes the disclosure of items presented in other
comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive
income. The amendment requires entities to separate
items presented in other comprehensive income into two
groups, based on whether or not they may be recycled to
profit or loss in the future. Items that will not be recycled
will be presented separately from items that may be
recycled in the future. Entities that choose to present other
comprehensive income items before tax will be required
to show the amount of tax related to the two groups
separately. The title used by HKAS 1 for the statement of
comprehensive income has changed to ‘statement of profit
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or loss and other comprehensive income’. However, HKAS
1 still permits entities to use other titles. The amendment
is applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012 with early adoption permitted. The Group is assessing
the impacts of HKAS 1 (Amendment) and intends to adopt
HKAS 1 (Amendment) upon its effective date.

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Presentation
- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
clarifies the requirements for offsetting financial
instruments on the statement of financial position: (i) the
meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off’; and (i) that some gross settlement systems may be
considered equivalents to net settlement. The amendment
is applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014. The Group is assessing the impacts of
HKAS 32 (Amendment) and intends to adopt HKAS 32
(Amendment) upon its effective date.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets introduces new disclosure requirement
on transfers of financial assets. Disclosure is required
by class of asset of the nature, carrying amount and a
description of the risks and rewards of financial assets that
have been transferred to another party yet remain on the
entity’'s balance sheet. The gain or loss on the transferred
assets and any retained interest in those assets must be
disclosed. In addition, other disclosures must enable users
to understand the amount of any associated liabilities,
and the relationship between the financial assets and
associated liabilities. The disclosures must be presented
by type of ongoing involvement. The amendment is
applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011 with early adoption permitted. The Group is assessing
the impacts of HKFRS 7 (Amendment) and intends to adopt
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) upon its effective date.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities requires
new disclosure requirements which focus on quantitative
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information about recognised financial instruments that
are offset in the statement of financial position, as well as
those recognised financial instruments that are subject
to master netting or similar arrangements irrespective of
whether they are offset. The amendment is applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The
Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
and intends to adopt HKFRS 7 (Amendment) upon its
effective date.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, which replaces part of the HKAS 39.

Financial assets are required to be classified into
two measurement categories: those to be measured
subsequently at fair value, and those to be measured
subsequently at amortised cost. The decision is to be
made at initial recognition. The classification depends
on the entity’s business model for managing its financial
instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised
cost only if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of
the entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect
the contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual
cash flows represent only payments of principal and
interest (that is, it has only ‘basic loan features’). All other
debt instruments are to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently
at fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading
will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For
all other equity instruments, an irrevocable election can
be made at initial recognition, to recognise unrealised
and realised fair value gains and losses through other
comprehensive income rather than profit or loss. There
is no recycling of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss. This election may be made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. Dividends are to be presented in profit or
loss, as long as they represent return on investment.
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All the requirements in HKAS 39 for the accounting and
presentation for financial liabilities and for derecognition of
financial instruments were carried forward unchanged to
HKFRS 9, except for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option.

For the financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented separately in
other comprehensive income, unless presentation of the
fair value change attributable to the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss where an entity
shall recognise all fair value movements in the profit or
loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the amounts
in the other comprehensive income to profit or loss, but
accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within
equity.

HKFRS 9 (Amendment) amended the effective date of
HKFRS 9 which is required to be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2015 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is considering the implications of the
whole standard including other phases of HKFRS 9 on the
Group and the timing of its adoption by the Group.

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Mandatory Effective
Date and Transition Disclosures delay the effective date
to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015,
and also modify the relief from restating prior periods. As
part of this relief, additional disclosures on transition from
HKAS 39 to HKFRS 9 are required.

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements replaces
all of the guidance on control and consolidation in HKAS
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
and HK(SIC)-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKAS 27 is renamed Separate Financial Statements and
it continues to be a standard dealing solely with separate
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financial statements. The existing guidance for separate
financial statements is unchanged. The revised definition
of control under HKFRS 10 focuses on the need to have
both power and variable returns before control is present.
Power is the current ability to direct the activities that
significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and
can be positive, negative or both. The determination of
power is based on current facts and circumstances and is
continuously assessed. The fact that control is intended
to be temporary does not obviate the requirement to
consolidate any investee under the control of the investor.
The standard is applicable to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption permitted. The
Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 10 and intends to
adopt HKFRS 10 upon its effective date.

m HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements changes the definitions

to reduce the types of joint arrangements to two, joint
operations and joint ventures. The jointly controlled
assets classification in HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
has been merged into joint operations, as both types of
arrangements generally result in the same accounting
outcome. The standard is applicable to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 11
and intends to adopt HKFRS 11 upon its effective date.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities sets
out the required disclosures for entities reporting under
the two new standards, HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements. It replaces
the disclosure requirements currently found in HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. The existing guidance and
disclosure requirements for separate financial statements
are unchanged under HKAS 27.
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HKFRS 12 requires entities to disclose information that
helps financial statement readers to evaluate the nature,
risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements
and unconsolidated structured entities. The standard is
applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 with early adoption permitted. The Group is assessing
the impacts of HKFRS 12 and intends to adopt HKFRS 12
upon its effective date.

m HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements explains how to
measure fair value and aims to enhance fair value
disclosures. The standard is applicable to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early adoption
permitted. The Group is assessing the impacts of HKFRS 13
and intends to adopt HKFRS 13 upon its effective date.

(i) The following amendments which is not effective in 2011 is
not expected to be relevant to the Group:

m HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters.

m HKAS 12 (Amendment) Deferred Tax : Recovery of
Underlying Assets.

m HKAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group

E B 1R8BS B2 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Z—Z——F 43R Annual Report 2011



(b)

()

AFEEGIEEEEREEE AR
i@i BARR - B ZEGIERIEE
SRS SR=WN

REBEKE QAN S - BERIR
BHEWESHEEEE - RIEFER
BRXSHEREELRMNE &
AREREBEMET AR - BEFH
2 MEARNSFBERFIELH
B DR B BOR— 2 o

RIEHIERCRIEL IR AN AR E K
BB BARMEMEAEREN
MEARFEENE - NEEILE
B % EHE s B A M SE AR BE SIMER
MEBRAEEERHETELHABTE
ENR SR ARNEE < REEH
BERESAMBRARKESEE

Wk 2 » BAQNFRREGER
DHZ5 o 2 IEH %H&?FEEZKE £

XEH D ERAWERETRIRE
ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁAﬂZﬁ%i&ﬁﬂﬁ
fig o

EARRBNBMBARES  RETER
AR E IR PR AR HDBUE (AR (B R 45 51
fR o MBARZFERARFIRER
KBRS ARRRIERE -

EREHERR 2R S

REB R ELIZFIELIR 2 X HE 5
HEAREEERRAANR S © FE
RIETIRRREE - ERENRER
HERIGHB AR EEMNREEZRH
B ZERNERTIR o HE T EL S|
RBRIBRB R ARG » Bk
BRI SR o

&l

ZEHER

REH| B IES RRIBY AR A
S TTHEKERE B KR
B[R & & 2 HE - B RIESHI QR
BRENEREDEAR © BRAKRA
R ©

]

~

H>3f ‘kt

=)

©

controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of these interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities.
They are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
separately from equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the net profit for the year between non-
controlling interest and equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases
from the non-controlling interests, the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity are referred as jointly controlled entities.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at
Ccost.
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The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company'’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the jointly controlled
entity are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income other than insurance and guarantee
contracts under Note 2.21

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate are
recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate in
determining interest income on the loans.



2.5

(b) REWA
P B A TR BUAS T T B B )y

=7
o ©

TRIEE

AEEBEBMEED R - ARFERL

SABRNEREE  BERKERK

B FEIHOREMAHEESRE

F DERTABRFEARENBNM
EEENIIRERRRAEIREDHE

@ UAFEZLTABENERMEE
LERRIFI A RER FHEEEN S
BMEERREBXDEREERNUA
FEZFTABRNEREE ° We
MEETZRATRBARNLEMBA
N EEAEEEENI#HA ST
BHE 7 2 REEBRERINE
BB HERN - AREAREEER
& o BREIBEIELEDRR SN - BRIPT
S TANGRAKIEERRR -

?—”ré.\.LxTﬂ?H%tZéEﬁlﬁF C —REY)

85l

() ERSERHERIARR D HZ

TREEGFECHEEIETREA

Bz EEXERERNRES -

i IR — BT ERER BN
(BB SRR - =

(i) EARIREA R E R0 B B IR kiR
ERE  FHSREER /X
CREBEFRERATEELEERER
FHERIR - M AREIR R AR 2
AEEE2REHEZEASREE
R/Semas -

i) 8E—BHSELHRL HEAE
PR AR TR
BEBESSSRAEET AL
ATER (A S -

2.5

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term
or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-making. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit
or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is provided internally to the key management
personnel.

(ifi) Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one
or more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash
flows, are designated at fair value through profit or l0ss.
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(b)

(d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and for which the Group has no intention of trading
immediately or in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. If the Group was to sell other than
an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
investments that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in interest rate, exchange rate or market
prices. They are initially recognised at fair value including direct
and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently held
at fair value.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or 10ss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are
included in the income statement in the period in which they
arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(fair value reserve), until the financial asset is derecognised or
impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be reclassified to income statement.
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However, interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
income statement when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are
based on current bid prices. If there is no active market for
a financial asset, the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and other
valuation technigues commonly used by market participants.

Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

m significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

m a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

m the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a

concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

m initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other financial
reorganisation;

m the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
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m observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the group, including:

—adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

—economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. For exposures which are not individually
significant, the Group will assess impairment either individually
or collectively. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics which are relevant to the estimation of future
cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of
the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.
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=

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes
in related observable data from period to period which are
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance for
loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale investment
or a group of available-for-sale investments is impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in income
statement - is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
the instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of such change is reversed
through the income statement.
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(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as renegotiated loans.

2.7 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position include
(i) notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt
Issuance Programme (“DIP”), (ii) notes offered to retail investors
through the placing banks in standalone retail bond issues and
under the Retail Bond Issuance Programme (“RBIP") and (iii) notes
issued under the Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN"). The
Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by the SPEs through
the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme are recorded
as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of financial
position on consolidation of the SPEs. These notes (including MBS)
are initially designated as either (i) financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or (i) other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge
and at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair value being recorded in the
income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
received, net of transaction costs incurred. The notes are
subsequently stated at amortised costs; any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the debt
securities using the effective interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or
losses, being the difference between the redemption/repurchase
amount and the carrying amount, are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which the redemption/repurchase takes
place.
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2.8 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from market
prices in active markets, including recent market transactions, and
valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
options pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as
assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is
negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from derivatives
are separately presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract
and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the
fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments
(fair value hedge); or, (ii) hedges of highly probable future cash
flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.
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(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used, is amortised to
income statement over the period to maturity.

=)

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss
relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to
the income statement.

(c) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument are recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for
sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are
derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets are measured at
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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2.1

2.12

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker is the person or group
that allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the
operating segments of an entity. The Group has determined the
Chief Executive Officer as its chief operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to
each segment by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms.
Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred by the
respective segment and apportionment of management overheads.

Foreign currency translation
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Group’s and the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

=)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated
with the closing rate as at the reporting date. If several exchange
rates are available, the forward rate is used at which the future
cash flows represented by the transaction or balance could have
been settled if those cash flows had occurred. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of
initial recognition; non-monetary items in a foreign currency that
are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary assets
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale, a distinction is made between translation differences
resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security
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and other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

m Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

m Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

m All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

m Exchange differences arising from the above process are
reported in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve.

m On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially
disposed of, such exchange differences are recognised in the

— &5 o consolidated income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.
213 BEEE 2.13 Fixed assets
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Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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2.14

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

over the unexpired period of the lease
over the unexpired period of the lease

computer 3 years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entity, and other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that its interests in jointly controlled
entity are impaired. Such objective evidence includes whether there
has been any significant adverse changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the jointly
controlled entity operates or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost. If there is an indication
that an interest in an associate or jointly controlled entity is
impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised in income statement for the amount by which
the carrying amount is lower than the higher of the investment'’s
fair value less costs to sell or value in use. Any reversal of such
impairment loss in subsequent periods is reversed through income
Statement.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is required upon
receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary concerned in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
subsidiary in the Company's statement of financial position exceeds
the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising from investment in the subsidiary,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the difference will
not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged
or credited directly to other comprehensive income, is also
credited or charged directly to other comprehensive income and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or l0ss.

Employee benefits
(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long-service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave
are recognised when the absence occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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2.17

2.18

(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee - administered funds. These pension
plans are generally funded by payments from employees and by
the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by the portion of employer
contributions being forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to full vesting of the employer contributions.

(d) Termination benefits

=

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits
when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of each reporting period date are discounted to present
value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation.

Leases

(@) Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as
lessee. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor
by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in
which termination takes place.
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2.20
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(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
The Group entered into finance leases primarily as lessor.
Finance leases are capitalised as receivables at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The difference between the gross receivable and the present
value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return. Hire purchase contracts having the
characteristics of a finance lease are accounted for in the same
manner as finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances
with banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

The guarantees given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued by the Company for the timely repayment of guaranteed
MBS are recorded as financial guarantees under HKAS 39 in the
Company'’s statement of financial position.

Other financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note
2.21 ().
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2.21 Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage Insurance
Programme of the Group is accounted for on the annual
accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach, the
Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future
income and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result includes any
adjustments arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the
Authorized Institutions as defined in accordance with Banking
Ordinance during an accounting period. The gross premiums
after deduction of discounts, include the reinsurance premiums
to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk premiums and
servicing fees earned by the Group. The net premiums are
recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during the
time the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums
written which are estimated to relate to risks and services
subsequent to the end of each reporting period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred
but not reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting
period. For risk-sharing business, 50% or 75% of the net risk
premiums earned in a year depending on the respective
products is set aside as a Contingency Reserve for a period of
time in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals from the
Contingency Reserve can be made to meet excess claims at any
time during the period. At the end of the reporting period, the
unutilised balance of the Contingency Reserve can be released
to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the
Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated
for losses on one or more insurance contracts issued by
the Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of claims recoverable from
reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are
measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms
of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts and are recognised as an
expense.

Commissions are recognised in the income statement as
incurred.
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(b) Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan facilities
provided to eligible small and medium-sized enterprises and
non-listed enterprises (SMES), in return for guarantee fee, and
insurance coverage on reverse mortgage provided to elderly
people, in return for insurance premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate on
each reporting date, using the current estimates of future cash
flows under these contracts. If the assessment shows that the
carrying amount of its guarantee and insurance liabilities are
inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the insurance
premium earned in a year is set aside as a Contingency Reserve
for a period of time in accordance with relevant regulatory
guidelines and as considered by directors to be appropriate.
Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve can be made to
meet excess claims at any time during the period. At the end of
the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency
Reserve can be released to general reserve.

2.22 Dividend
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Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting
period is disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’
equity.

Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group during the year are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (ii) to raise financing for its
purchase of assets through issuance of debt securities; and (iii) to
provide mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Als and secured by residential properties
in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee cover to Als in
respect of loans originated by such Als to SMES in Hong Kong; and
(v) to provide insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage
originated by such Als to elderly people. By their nature, the Group’s
activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments
including cash, loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Group manages the risks in a prudent manner in sustaining the
Group's financial performance.
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3.2

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at corporate
level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters
including financial and non-financial risks. The policies and limits
are monitored and reviewed regularly by various management
committees, including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee, Transaction Approval Committee and Operational Risk
Committee which report to Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards
for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and
Liability Committee (“ALCO") oversees the implementation of
market risk management and investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible
for the independent review of risk management and the control
environment. The most important types of risks are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk which includes currency risk and
interest rate risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk
on liquid funds and investment securities is limited because the
counterparties are mainly sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies,
banks and companies with credit ratings in accordance with the
investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio,
which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts
in full when due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses
that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end
of the reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for
managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt prudent
asset purchasing criteria and insurance eligibility criteria, (iii)
conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv) ensure adequate
protection for higher-risk assets or transactions.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
mortgage loans. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of
customers and counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the
Group's mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.
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The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention
paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans
and take recovery action such as establishing relief plan with
borrowers in order to maximise recoveries. Loan impairment
assessment is performed regularly and impairment allowance is
charged to income statement in accordance with the guidelines
approved by the Credit Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are
subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolios mainly consist
of properties, reserve funds and cash. For hire purchase receivables,
the collateral types include taxi and public light bus licenses. Loan
portfolio is generally fully secured by collateral.

Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with banks as
the exposures are considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties and short term maturity. Investment securities are
generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities
which are secured by properties or other assets.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in accordance
with the investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group.
These counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the
Credit Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the
amount subject to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair
value of instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e. assets
where their fair value is positive), which in relation to derivatives
is only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits with
counterparties, together with potential exposures from market
movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash,
securities or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding
receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty to cover the aggregate of all
settlement risk arising from the Group’s market transactions on any
single day.
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(@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking account of
collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as
follows:

The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial assets of
the Group and the Company are equal to their carrying amounts.

EEEERBRATHT The maximum exposures to credit risk of off-balance sheet
exposures are as follows:
A EVN
The Group The Company
N_F——F RT-ITF N_F——F RTZF
+ZA=t+—-H t=A=+—HA +=RA=t+—-RB +=-A=+—A8
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
TFH&T FHT TFHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIISHEIR Financial guarantees
(#iaE bt al (contractual amount
HEHEEE) under the MBS programmes) - - 367,252 805,868
R BRIRAR Total risk-in-force
- IRIBIRBE 2T — mortgage insurance business 16,624,427 17,625,975 17,401,041 18,170,896
- HbERE - other guarantee and
RIS insurance business 874,638 3,315 874,638 =

17,499,065 17,629,290 18,642,931 18,976,764

EREANEEEZONNT

(b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as follows:
AEE AT
The Group The Company
RITB—F R-ZT-FTF RIF——F R-_ZT-THF
+-—A=+—8 +=A=+—H +=ZA=+—-HB +=—A=+—H

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010

Fi#ExT FHET FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R E A RE Neither past due nor impaired 32,706,938 34,647,589 27,605,741 30,842,770

BB AR Past due but not impaired 431,579 613,099 403,239 551,377
BiRME Impaired 4,923 278 4,923 278
KB4 BT Gross loan portfolio 33,143,440 = 35260966 28,013,903 = 31,394,425

B E R Allowance for loan impairment (7,622) (2,029) (7,478) (2,027)

33,135,818 35,258,937 28,006,425 31,392,398

BB RBES AR A The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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The credit quality of loans that were neither past due nor
impaired as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed
by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

AEE P /N
The Group The Company
R-E——F HR_ZT-TF R-E——fF R_Z-TF
+-—A=+—-H8 +=A=t—H +=ZA=+—H +=A=1+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
TFH&ET FHET TFET FH&T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
K Grades:
1£E3#% 1t03 32,693,002 34,621,215 27,591,895 30,819,076
4% 4 - 29 - 29
5% 5 13,936 26,345 13,846 23,665
32,706,938 34,647,589 27,605,741 30,842,770

12 3R BIEEEE R K& AT
HRENER - XRATRKFNE
& 22 BEhnse 1 5 M AR FE IR O S AR

o
oA °

AR BHRA LA BYRRE  AFED
[RI7KF 915 & 22 BEhnsa i b S AR 1

o
RIER °

SR BIEE LA RIS KA
miERFERIERR
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no
previous past due history; and with different levels of credit
enhancements in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and
with different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the
collateral held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.
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(c) Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans that were

BEBREDT : past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:
KEE b N
The Group The Company
R-B—& R-T-TF R-F——F R-T-TF
+=A=+-B +t-A=t—A +=A=t+-8B t-A=+-H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fi#T T Fit FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#60 HR R Past due:
={EAAT Three months or less 429,889 609,632 401,687 547,910
INMEAZIAT Six months or less but over
BEEA=1EA three months 1,174 1,931 1,036 1,931
A7~ E A Over six months 516 1,536 516 1,536
b Total 431,579 613,099 403,239 551,377
IR R EAM{EE  Fair value of collateral and
L HE IR R HERY other credit enhancement
ANEE 2,357,591 2,528,733 2,269,314 2,373,963

(d) EEBIRERNER
AR B e AN R IR PTRF A dn S
EERPMRERELNRSRER
B BIR E S 574,923,000 87T (= F
—Z4F : 278,000 7T) °

A& B KRR R A AR R R R @

REEZHMREBRS R FE
7%13,985,000% ;w( = & — T F -
388,000/87T) °

e) WEE 7 am
AR B R AN AR R R AR Y AR
mEEEWNT

WEEBEERATTER FERE
& SEFEARNRDREEESR
W EER BTSN R A F RN E A
BERD -

(d)

Individually impaired loans

The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company
before taking into account the cash flows from collateral held
and credit enhancement amounted to HK$4,923,000 (2010:
HK$278,000).

The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
of the Group and the Company amounted to HK$13,985,000
(2010: HK$388,000).

Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the statement of financial
position within other assets.

BB RBES AR A The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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(f) Investment securities

According to the investment guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the Group can only invest in debt securities with
a certain minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment

according to rating categories is monitored and reviewed by

ALCO.

for the issuers are reported.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on
external credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody's
and Fitch). In the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings

BEE

EHAE %

AEHEES Held-to-
REBRANT Available-for- maturity 4a%g
R-E—&+-HB=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company TF#ExT T#ExT TFH#ET
As at 31 December 2011 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa - 2,403,398 2,403,398
AA- Z AA+/Aa3 Z Aa1 AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 294,299 5,082,178 5,376,477
A- E +/A3 E A1 A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 783,572 783,572
imEE Total 294,299 8,269,148 8,563,447

BEE

E|HAE 5

AT EE S Held-to-
REERART] Available-for- maturity Rk
H-E—ZFF+-—A=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHTT FHT AT
As at 31 December 2010 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 795,142 2,367,263 3,162,405
AA- = AA+/Aa3 = Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1l 1,139,485 5,293,172 6,432,657
A- 2 +/A3 2= A1 A-to A+/A3 t0 A1 = 372,698 372,698
B Total 1,934,627 8,033,133 9,967,760

E B 1R8BS B2 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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3.3 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise
from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements
and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such
as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk primarily arise from
the interest rate management of the entity’s financial instruments
of different repricing characteristics. The Group hedges a major
proportion of its existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond
issuance using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the floating-
rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the
Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk management, financing,
hedging, investments are formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are
held to review the latest conditions in the financial markets and the
asset-liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in accordance
with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle office monitors
the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to assess the
potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The
results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor
the sensitivity of projected net interest income under different
interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through
hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel downward shift of
the interest rate curve as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 20 basis point
parallel upward) would decrease the future net interest income for
the next 12 months by around HK$4 million (2010: HK$3 million) and
increase by around HK$4 million (2010: HK$3 million) for a similar
upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2011, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit before
tax for the year would have been around HK$1 million lower (2010:
HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve would have been higher by
less than HK$1 million (2010: HK$1 million) as at 31 December 2011.
If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift
upwards, profit before tax for the year would have been higher by
around HK$2 million (2010: HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve
would have been lower by less than HK$1 million (2010: HK$1
million).

EBIRIBESBRA 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
ZZ——4 %5 Annual Report 2011

133



134

R-T——F+=-A=+—8 " &M4E
Hir #RZRFETEOBERT - 685
JLHETCER T 1008 + FERBRFAT
S A I AN #4800 BB L (=T —ZF ¢
800BATT) - RZ ' W TR ETIER
EFH10025F  BIGE AR A A R 2>
800 BB (ZZT—FF : 800BHT) °

R=—T——F®+=-—A=+—8" &M4F
Hib A BERRRFIAENBELT - W5
70 H T LASNY B At SN [ = TR % 100 26
T - FABRFL AT A% INAY 800 &7 7T
ZE—TE 20088 T) o K2 i
A ITH R TT AN B SNES FE 2= 7100
B0F - FARE AT R 2> 800 & T
(ZZ—ZF 1 1,2008457T) °

R-_T——F+-_A=+—0  &FA
Hih Af#RZRFIENBERT - WX
SHMEBEESNEHEREFTESH
BT 1% « A FEREERR D 42,000
EAT(ZE—TF 150088 L) o
Rz WRXZAEBEEFEHERE
ERESHERBLE LA 1% - AT ERH
B INA2,00E B L(ZT—FTF :
1,500887T) °

A THRRREREHANE - EER
FIBEET - EAABETENA RS
F{EH 3T «

(a) E¥ R
ZNER B F ER 1T NS T 455 B SRR Eh 6 E
BIISARR R 3R & 7 2 H) 52 28 T A R
b2 - EERREETANKRERRN
N - EEREEREZEEREA
AEZINE R AENRE - WEHE

P
TTEES ©

TREFNAREHOINEE KRR - K
NS AR EEREMEENEE
HEE  WEREKBRAIE -

E B 1R8BS B2 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Z—Z——F 43R Annual Report 2011

AR FRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 December 2011, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit before tax for the year would have been around
HK$8 million higher (2010: HK$8 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar
had strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US dollar,
profit before tax for the year would have been around HK$8 million
lower (2010: HK$8 million).

As at 31 December 2011, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$8 million higher (2010: HK$12 million).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit before
tax for the year would have been around HK$8 million lower (2010:
HK$12 million).

As at 31 December 2011, with all other variables held constant,
if the price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment
trust had decreased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been
around HK$20 million lower (2010: HK$15 million). Conversely, if the
price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment trust had
increased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been around
HK$20 million higher (2010: HK$15 million).

The increase or decrease represent management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rate, exchange rates and
market price for a 12 months period.

(@) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial
position and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies
for investment purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency
exposure that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the
Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised
by currency.



Hith S

BT %t Other foreign aagE
HKD USD  currencies Total
L Fi#n F#x Fi#x Fi#n
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-FE——F As at 31 December 2011
+=-A=+—H
BE Assets
ReEhEHES Cash and short-term funds 9,622,880 353,189 269,096 10,245,165
FEMIH S % FE R Interest and remittance
receivables 416,287 167,110 7,601 590,998
DTSR TE Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
EREEFEE Loan portfolio, net 25,997,927 7,137,891 - 33,135,818
BHIRE Investment securities:
- ATt E - available-for-sale 648,884 1,654,819 - 2,303,703
- FHAEEH - held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
HEZEHEEZIEE  Investmentin a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,045 130,045
FENFRIE &Kk Prepayments, deposits and
HAh & other assets 27,057 - 40 27,097
& E & B Fixed assets 30,949 - 325 31,274
BRIREE Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
BERE Total assets 41,749,478 13,757,274 994,594 56,501,346
aff Liabilities
FERTAE Interest payable 136,126 95,541 5,577 237,244
FERTERFN BRI  Accounts payable, accrued
FREMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,271,207 1,958 1,718 4,274,883
PTHEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
EEBHIEARE Current income tax liabilities 134,785 - - 134,785
RIERIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 52,672 - - 52,672
Rz BE Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 - - 1,630,595
BEITEBES Debt securities issued 23,152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
BEITIRBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 367137 - - 367,137
BERE Total liabilities 29,876,276 15,319,068 2,738,761 47,934,105
B R Net position 11,873,202 (1,561,794) (1,744,167) 8,567,241
BEBERI Off-balance sheet net notional
FEERRT position * (10,441,252) 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251

FEEABRINFRBERAEIMNETE
ERTA(ZERANREARERE
R)HBRBESHERERF

G
EMZER -

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the

Group's exposure to currency movements and their fair values.

EBIRIBEFBMR A A The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
~Z——4F%5 Annual Report 2011

135



AR FRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Hith s s
BT %5t Other foreign agE
HKD USD  currencies Total
AT FiEn FiEx Fign FiEn
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-IE——F As at 31 December 2011
+-A=+—H
BE Assets
RehEHES Cash and short-term funds 9,620,528 353,189 148,130 10,121,847
FEMIH S % FE R Interest and remittance
receivables 403,959 167,110 7,001 578,070
DTSR THE Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
B E Loan portfolio, net 20,868,534 7,137,891 - 28,006,425
BHIRE Investment securities:
- ATt HE - available-for-sale 648,884 1,654,819 - 2,303,703
- FHAERH - held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
HEBATHEE Investment in subsidiaries 4,884,648 - 102,060 4,986,708
HEEFIERIEE  Investmentin a jointly
controlled entity - - 120,554 120,554
JEFRIE &K Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &&= other assets 188,787 - - 188,787
BEEEE Fixed assets 30,949 - - 30,949
BRREE Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
BEHRE Total assets 41,651,783 13,757,274 965,232 56,374,289
aff Liabilities
FERTAILE Interest payable 136,010 95,541 5,577 237,128
FERTERZN - FEfFFS  Accounts payable, accrued
MEMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,630,568 1,958 1,478 4,634,004
PTEemITA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
EHHIEAE Current income tax liabilities 135,131 - - 135,131
BIERIRAE Deferred income tax liabilities 52,696 - - 52,696
ReaE Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 - - 1,630,595
BETEFES Debt securities issued 23152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
a5 Total liabilities 29,868,754 15,319,068 2,738,521 47,926,343
e FEE Net position 11,783,029  (1,561,794) (1,773,289) 8,447,946
BEABRIN Off-balance sheet net notional
FEaEEe position * (10,441,252) 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251

FBEABRINEEBRRIEINEITE
CRIA(EZRAURERRRRE
BRBHER) NERERERRF
EHYZER ©

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the
Ccompany'’s exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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HA N

BT %7 Other foreign 1z
HKD usD currencies Total
rEH FHT FHT FHT FHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-_ZE—TF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—8
BE Assets
ReKFEHES Cash and short-term funds 4,297927 689,202 915,520 5,902,649
FELFI B B BEE 5R Interest and remittance
receivables 480,028 169,959 7163 657,150
PTHEERIA Derivative financial instruments 1,202,260 194,361 - 1,396,621
BERMAEFE Loan portfolio, net 24,015,262 11,243,675 - 35,258,937
BAHIE Investment securities:
- Al E — available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
-RBEEIH - held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
HEEHEEIEE  Investmentin a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,720 130,720
JERTFIAE - & & Prepayments, deposits and
HEmEE other assets 27,504 = 155 27,659
& & &= Fixed assets 15,980 - 1,272 17,252
BRBREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 = - 204,891
BERE Total assets 35,798,042 17,795,565 1,439,371 55,032,978
BE Liabilities
JEAST 2. Interest payable 382,750 104,310 6,493 493,553
FERTBRFR - FEfTFISZ Accounts payable, accrued
FEMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,288,556 664 1,917 4,291,137
PTESBMIA Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
EHIEAE Current income tax liabilities 133,560 - = 133,560
RERIEEE Deferred income tax liabilities 37,167 - = 37167
RipEE Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
BBITERES Debt securities issued 29,630,968 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,127,735
BEITIRIBEES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,529,749 - - 1,529,749
BERE Total liabilities 37,797,234 8,145,881 1,487,823 47,430,938
B R Net position (1,999,192) 9,649,684 (48,452) 7,602,040
BEBERI Off-balance sheet net notional
FEERERT position * 2,167,017 (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008

FEEBBRINFRBRHBIEINEDT
AR TA(ZERMREAREE
REBREER) # %5 E S HE
HAFERZRE

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the
Group's exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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A5
BT %7 Other foreign k)
HKD usD currencies Total
PN FHET FHET FHT FHET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-E—T4F As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 4,281,306 689,202 799,001 5,769,509
FEMF B % BE R Interest and remittance
receivables 468,279 169,959 6,994 645,232
PTESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,178,161 194,361 - 1,372,522
B A& Loan portfolio, net 20,148,723 11,243,675 - 31,392,398
BARE Investment securities:
- ATt HE — available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
e - held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
WEBARIRE Investment in subsidiaries 3,103,572 = 102,060 3,205,632
HEEHEEZIEE  Investmentin a jointly
controlled entity - - 120,554 120,554
JafFRIE &K Prepayments, deposits and
Hih &= other assets 29,220 - - 29,220
EEEE Fixed assets 15,980 = - 15,980
BREREE Reinsurance assets 204,891 = = 204,891
BEHRE Total assets 34,984,322 17,795,565 1,413,150 54,193,037
afE Liabilities
FE .8 Interest payable 380,428 104,310 6,493 491,231
FEfTERFX - FEfIFASZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REAMAE expenses and other liabilities 4,791,012 641 613 4,792,266
PTEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
EHHBEAE Current income tax liabilities 134,532 = = 134,532
FEERIAEE Deferred income tax liabilities 37,167 - - 37,167
R BIE Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
BEEITEEE S Debt securities issued 29,909,119 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,405,886
BERRE Total liabilities 37,046,742 8,145,858 1,486,519 46,679,119
R FE Net position (2,062,420) 9,649,707 (73,369) 7,513,918
BEABERI Off-balance sheet net notional
EEE ST position * 2,167,017 (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008

FEEAEBERINFREFREINEITE
CRIA(EZAURERRARNE
BRBHER) NEZERERRF
EHIZER ©

* Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference
between the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative
financial instruments, which are principally used to reduce the
Ccompany'’s exposure to currency movements and their fair values.
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(b) RERBR A FER=ER

ReREFXRRRHIESRHT AR
PRIR I 2 T BE 2 T 35 A R B TR
R R o X TEFRER 5 S R
T AR EE 1 BE = % H = 2 & R
)RR o RITT IS RKFH)EE
B e P 7 B B TR R R &fﬁ
/i\fﬁ%ﬂ?‘zﬂ R o ARFIEES)
AlReEER 1Eﬁ:ﬁ§‘$5kﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'\]
7&@)  RITn e WE S BUEIR - BE
EEEEREEGRER Tf§@57k$ﬁ'3
PREE - 0 E BRI A PR R TT B o

TR SR B A S A AR E L
WIREEEIIRARENEERE
B MEEREBRAMRENES AR
FEMA(AREERE) DE- T4
SR T A (EERNBEAREERA
TR B AGER R ) M EREEIN R
sHRJHEBH -

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk
that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels
of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow
risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes
but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected
movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on the level of interest
rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which is monitored
regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group's assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to interest rate movements, are
included under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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=EAML
—EAUE E—f —FE
—EAn E=f@R Over ERfF Fata
Up to Over 1 month 3 months Over 1 year FELLE Non-interest fotl
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
M Fi#T F#T F#T F#T F#T F#T F#T
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REZB——F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H
RE Assets
BeRkEiEs Cash and short-term funds 8,487,923 1,715,112 - - - 42,130 10,245,165
JEMF B, P R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 590,998 590,998
THESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,559,187 1,559,187
EREEFE Loan portfolio, net 30,645,025 2,388,984 63,331 24,971 13,507 - 33,135,818
BHIRE Investment securities:
— AT — available-for-sale - 294,299 - - - 2,009,404 2,303,703
-[HAZEH - held-to-maturity - 144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
HEEGIERIRE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - - - - 130,045 130,045
TARHRIE Bk Prepayments, deposits and
HihEE other assets - - - - - 27,097 27,097
BEEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 31,274 31,274
BREBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 208,911 208,911
BELRE Total assets 39,132,948 4,542,737 835,348 3,903,989 3,487,278 4,599,046 56,501,346
aE Liabilities
FERTFIE Interest payable - - - - - 237,244 237,244
FERTARAR - FEAT R Accounts payable, accrued
REMER expenses and other liabilities 4,182,266 - - - - 92,617 4,274,883
PTHESRMTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 139,582 139,582
EHBIAEAR Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 134,785 134,785
BIEBIRAR Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 52,672 52,672
R AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BRITEBES Debt securities issued 10,803,727 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
EEITIRIBES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 367,137 - - - - - 367,137
p=lipit Total liabilities 15,353,130 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287,495 47,934,105
MEHREROLE Total interest sensitivity gap* 23,779,818 338,922 (6,454,363) (9,963,919) (1,444,768)
FEGTEIR Interest rate derivatives
(FHAFEN (notional amounts of
EEER) net position) (12,242,308) (12,365,112) 7,256,541 13,326,420 4,122,710

*REATESRIASERHERT
BBREFLERETREBESNTE -

*before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
the debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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ZEARE

—@EAUE E—f —FE
—EAN E=@A over EAF EE-Y
Up to Over 1 month 3 months Over 1 year FELLE Non-interest fotl
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to 5 years Over 5 years bearing Total
N | F#T F#T F#T F#T F#T F#T F#T
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REZB——F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 8,404,644 1,675,625 - - - 41,578 10,121,847
JEMF B, 2 P R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 578,070 578,070
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,559,187 1,559,187
BERAEEFRE Loan portfolio, net 25,520,147 2,388,984 63,331 24,102 9,861 - 28,006,425
BEHIRE Investment securities:
- AT HE - available-for-sale - 294,299 - - - 2,009,404 2,303,703
-[HAZEH - held-to-maturity - 144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
MiE AR E Investment in subsidiaries 4,879,202 - - 856 3,590 103,060 4,986,708
HEEHIERIRE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - - - - 120,554 120,554
TARFRIE Bk Prepayments, deposits and
Hin&E other assets 187,313 - - - - 1,474 188,787
EE&E Fixed assets - - - - - 30,949 30,949
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 208,911 208,911
BELRE Total assets 38,991,306 4,503,250 835,348 3,903,976 3,487,222 4,653,187 56,374,289
aE Liabilities
FERTFIE Interest payable - - - - - 237,128 237,128
FERTRAR - AR Accounts payable, accrued
REMEAR expenses and other liabilities 4,541,195 - - - - 92,809 4,634,004
FTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 139,582 139,582
EHBEAR Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 135,131 135,131
REFIARE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 52,696 52,696
R AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BERITEEES Debt securities issued 10,803,727 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
p=ligit Total liabilities 15,344,922 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287,941 47,926,343
MEHREROLE Total interest sensitivity gap* 23,646,384 299,435 (6,454,363) (9,963,932) (1,444,824)
FIEMGTEIR Interest rate derivatives
(FHAFHEN (notional amounts of
ERER) net position) (12,242,308) (12,365,112) 7,256,541 13,326,420 4,122,710

*REATESRIASERHE R

BBESNTE

*before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
the debt securities issued.
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REE
The Group

Z A5 KRMIEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R-ZE—FF
+=A=+t—RH
EE
RekRBES
FENH B B R

TESBTA
BEREAFE
FHRE

— Al E
-HEEEH
KRR EERE

BNHE ek

As at 31 December 2010

Assets

Cash and short-term funds

Interest and remittance

receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Loan portfolio, net

Investment securities:
— available-for-sale
— held-to-maturity

Investment in a jointly

controlled entity

Prepayments, deposits and

=EAUE
E—F
over

3 months
to 1year
FHT
HK$'000

FAFLAE  Non-interest

HtnEE other assets
EE&E Fixed assets
BREEE Reinsurance assets
BERE Total assets
afE Liabilities
FERFIS Interest payable
FERRRR - FEIRI Accounts payable, accrued
REMEE expenses and other liabilities
PTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
EHTEAE Current income tax liabilities
REFRIARE Deferred income tax liabilities
RBAE Insurance liabilities
BEITEBES Debt securities issued
BEITIRBHES Mortgage-backed securities
issued
=fipt sl Total liabilities

F BB E RO AR FE * Total interest sensitivity gap*

FRFTET A Interest rate derivatives
(FHRFHEN (notional amounts of
EHRLE) net position)

*REATESRIASERHERT
BBREFLERETREBESNTE -

* before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
the debt securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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3.4

=EAMKE

—fEAUE 4 —FE
—fEAR =84 Over ERF TER
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year AFLA L Non-interest k]
1month  to 3 months to 1 year to 5years Over5years bearing Total
NG| FHIT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T—TF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 5,124,400 378,500 226,950 = = 39,659 5,769,509
FEUMR B R FE R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 645,232 645,232
PTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,372,522 1,372,522
BRMEAFE Loan portfolio, net 21,838,606 9,346,147 137,831 52,929 16,885 - 31,392,398
BHRE Investment securities:
- A E - available-for-sale 989,784 944,843 - - - 1,469,339 3,403,966
-RBEZEIH - held-to-maturity 349,137 65,895 718,989 4,218,276 2,680,836 = 8,033,133
MEARIRE Investment in subsidiaries 3,094,913 - 3,045 889 3,725 103,060 3,205,632
HEEGHIERIRE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - - - - 120,554 120,554
TARFIE Bk Prepayments, deposits and
Hin&E other assets - - - - - 29,220 29,220
EEEE Fixed assets - - - - - 15,980 15,980
BRBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - 204,891 204,891
BEME Total assets 31,396,840 10,735,385 1,086,815 4,272,094 2,701,446 4,000,457 54,193,037
afE Liabilities
FER S Interest payable - - - - - 491,231 491,231
FEARRAR - X Accounts payable, accrued
KEMEE expenses and other liabilities 4,630,792 - - - - 161,474 4,792,266
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 44,372 44,372
HHBIEAE Current income tax liabilities = = = = = 134,532 134,532
REFRIRAE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 37,67 37,167
REAE Insurance liabilities = = = = - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BRITEBES Debt securities issued 7,154,551 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 - 39,405,886
AfERE Total liabilities 11,785,343 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 2,642,441 46,679,119
LS GURE R 4858 * Total interest sensitivity gap* 19,611,497 5,872,536  (8,204,012) (8,779,898) (2,344,221)
MELTETA Interest rate derivatives
(R FRE (notional amounts of
EHEEE) net position) (11,349,324) (14,523,333) 9,107,338 12,491,300 4,527,027

*REATESRIASERHE R
BRSEFHTZE o

HENE & E B

MEE RIS A S B AR EEE (T
EREETN F%EEK AEENEREHRE
SRR AEESHENESRAR
i WA T AR BIAR ARG -
BEIHERMESRANRL - REERES
RESREX [ EEBIRER R ERFHE
WEEHES -BEERGEEEZE ST
HRBESWRETES -

3.4

*before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on
the debt securities issued.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to
repay its payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of
loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflows
and outflows of funds on a daily basis and projecting longer-term
inflows and outflows of funds across a full maturity spectrum. The
Group has established diversified funding sources to support the
growth of its business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio
of liabilities. Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.
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(@) RITRBEEREDH

TRINRAEER 2HRARLRIGR A
HWERRBIETESRBE - LU
AEEFENTESRBBERAGRR
EEENTESRTANRERE -
RABBENES R A X ARITIRE
nE  BREBRERFHARSHE
Hi B ST E AR RAE X FRIE - A%

AR FRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(@) Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on gross basis by remaining
contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the projected contractual

BRITAT AR FREEEER

MR B R IR 48

=

A%E
The Group

=}
RGN E

RIS A

undiscounted cash flows including future interest payments
on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.
The Group's derivatives include interest rate swaps that will
be settled on net basis; and cross currency swaps that will be
settled on gross basis.

ZEAE
—EALE E—& —£lE
—EAn Z=EA Over ERE
Up to Over 1 month 3months  Over 1 year HEME am
1 month  to 3 months to 1 year to 5years Over 5 years Total
F#T F#T F#T F#T F#T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-®——%+=A=+-8

As at 31 December 2011

FELTER S RE Non-derivative cash outflows
afE Liabilities
ERTEKES Debt securities issued (3,693,567) (1,027,594) (12,272,848) (21,350,131) (4,789,991) (43,134,131)
BETIZBES Mortgage-backed securities issued (8,373) (15,481)  (130,367) (215,381) - (369,602)
(3,701,940) (1,043,075) (12,403,215) (21,565,512) (4,789,991) (43,503,733)
FTERSR/A (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTIIEEEED Derivative financial instrument
PTESRIA: settled:
- FREEE - on net basis (1,041) (3,041) 2,095 (30,531) (100) (32,618)
- MR - on gross basis
Tt H4REE Total outflow (821,675) (1,726,619) (4,320,424) (3,255,500) - (10,124,218)
AT Total inflow 815,632 1,730,655 4,310,093 3,239,425 - 10,095,805
(7,084) 995 (8,236) (46,606) (100) (61,031)
ZEANL
—EALE E-f —£lE
—EAN Z=EA over ERE
Up to Over 1 month 3months  Over 1 year HEME Pt
1 month  to 3 months to 1 year to 5years Over 5 years Total
AR FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-®——%+=A=+-A

As at 31 December 2011

ILTEBR SR Non-derivative cash outflows
afE Liabilities
ERTERKES Debt securities issued (3,693,567) (1,027,594) (12,272,848) (21,350,131) (4,789,991) (43,134,131)
FTEBRERA/ (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
RTFIEEEED Derivative financial instrument
FTHESRIA: settled:
- FEEE —on net basis (1,041) (3,041) 2,095 (30,531) (100) (32,618)
- MR - on gross basis
bipfast k] Total outflow (821,675) (1,726,619) (4,320,424) (3,255,500) - (10,124,218)
TMALREE Total inflow 815,632 1,730,655 4,310,093 3,239,425 - 10,095,805
(7,084) 995 (8,236) (46,606) (100) (61,031)
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AEE
The Group

R=F—FF+=A=+—H
FEPTER IR

A

BEITEBES
BEITRIEES

As at 31 December 2010
Non-derivative cash outflows
Liabilities

Debt securities issued

Mortgage-backed securities issued

FTERESRA (RH)

Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

BT EEEER Derivative financial instrument
PTEERMTA: settled:
- FERE - on net basis
— AR R - 0on gross basis
Pifaskit Total outflow
MAKEEE Total inflow
ARA
The Company

R=Z—ZF+—A=+—H
FEPTER ST

afE

BETEBES

As at 31 December 2010
Non-derivative cash outflows
Liabilities

Debt securities issued

FTERSRA ()
BT EEE R
PTESMTA:
—REREE
— MBEREE
it
AR

Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
Derivative financial instrument
settled:
- on net basis
—on gross basis
Total outflow
Total inflow

—fBARN
Upto

1 month
THAT
HK$'000

—f@AR
Up to

1 month
FET
HK$'000

—fEAME
E==AAR
Over 1 month
to 3 months
THAT
HK$'000

—{EAMLE
Z=8A
Over 1 month
to 3 months
FET
HK$'000

FA&RIBESARAF The Hong Kong M

=EARE
E—F
Over

3 months
to 1 year
THET
HK$'000

ZEARE
B
Over
3months
to 1 year
FET
HK$'000

—4FUE

ERE
Over 1year AFAE Lt
to5years  Over5years Total
FHEL FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—4AE

ERF
Over 1year AERE k|
to5years  Over5years Total
FHT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—=
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AR FRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) EIHA B 247 (b) Maturity analysis
TRIBEEHRBARE AL H B The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
RS E EERBEBEDT © relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at

the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

—@EE  =EAUE

E=@A z—f —FME
BPEF 28 —fEAR over over ERE
Repayable Upto 1monthto 3 months Over1year AEEME IR am
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year to 5 years Over 5 years Undated Total
@ FET F#T FET FET F#T F#&T FET FET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RZF——F As at 31 December 2011
+ZA=+—-AH
BE Assets
HekEHEs Cash and short-term funds 43,499 8,486,554 1,715,112 - - - - 10,245,165
BREE Loan portfolio 5,775 570,055 590,720 2,895,741 15,274,291 13,801,375 5,483 33,143,440
BHRE Investment securities
- AT HE — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2,009,404 2,303,703
-REEEH - held-to-maturity - - 93,235 772,016 3,930,126 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208,911 208,911
49,274 9,056,609 2,399,067 3,667,757 19,498,716 17,275,146 2,223,798 54,170,367
1% Liabilities
R B E Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BETEBES Debt securities issued - 3,636,717 890,024 11,268,017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
BRITIRBES Mortgage-backed
securities issued - 8,207 14,805 129,453 214,672 - - 367,137
- 3,644,924 904,829 11,397,470 20,585,075 4,932,046 1,630,595 43,094,939
—fEn L ZEANE
E=ER E—% —FE
BIRF I8 —@EAN over over ERE
Repayable Upto 1monthto 3 months Over1year AEEME SRIRHA M
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1year to5years Over 5 years Undated Total
YA F#ET Fi#x Fi#ET Fi#ET FExT Fi#xT Fi#ET Fi#ET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—F——% As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—-A8
HE Assets
RekEHES Cash and short-term funds 38,642 8,407,580 1,675,625 - - - - 10,121,847
BREE Loan portfolio 5,435 524,961 542,277 2,687,505 14,313,731 9,934,541 5,453 28,013,903
BHERE Investment securities
- AT HE — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2,009,404 2,303,703
-RHEEH - held-to-maturity - - 93,235 772,016 3,930,126 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
ARBEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208,911 208,911
44,077 8,932,541 2,311,137 3,459,521 18,538,156 13,408,312 2,223,768 48,917,512
=1 Liabilities
H At fEAT FRIE Other payable - 7,074 15,691 59,666 276,498 - - 358,929
RIRAME Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BEITEKES Debt securities issued - 3,636,717 890,024 11,268,017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207

- 3,643,791 905,715 11,327,683 20,646,901 4,932,046 1,630,595 43,086,731

1 46 BIRIBES B R A "] The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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=EANKE

= —E
BNE 2 £ —fEAR over ERF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months  Over 1year AERE fEIRHA k)
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year to5years Over5years Undated Total
AEE FET THET FHET FHET FET THET FHET FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=F—2F As at 31 December 2010
+=—A=+—-H
BE Assets
BERERES Cash and short-term funds 49,471 5,200,410 407,992 244,776 - - - 5902,649
EREE Loan portfolio 8,004 669,748 816,647 4,105,789 18,246,086 11,412,991 1,701 35,260,966
BHRE Investment securities
- A - available-for-sale - 499,888 582,726 556,614 295,399 — 1,469,339 3,403,966
- HEZEFH ~ held-to-maturity - - - 1068126  4,284171 2,680,836 - 8033133
BREEE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
57,475 6,370,046 1,807,365 5975305 22,825,656 14,093,827  1,675931 52,805,605
afE Liabilities
RigafE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BRITELES Debt securities issued - 2989516 406,971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39127735
BETIRBES Mortgage-backed
securities issued - 27,934 69,328 1,269,451 163,036 - - 1,529,749
- 3017450 4,176,299 11,741,321 16,676,747 5,045,667 1,773,665 42,431,149
—fEARLE  =EARL
E=fEA E—F —FRE
BREFEER —(@EAR Over over BEREF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months  Over 1year AFAE PR kol
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year to5years Over5years Undated Total
ARA] FHET FET FHT FHET FHET FET FHET FHT
The Company. HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=-T—ZF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
REREHES Cash and short-term funds 36,918 5,127,141 378,500 226,950 - - - 5,769,509
BREE Loan portfolio 7,406 538,747 746,117 3,789,361 17,322,877 8,988,252 1,665 31,394,425
EHIRE Investment securities
- A — available-for-sale - 499,888 582,726 556,614 295,399 - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- HAEEH ~ held-to-maturity - - - 1068126 4,284,171 2,680,836 - 8033133
BRBREE Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
44,324 6165776 1,707,343 5,641,051 21,902,447 11,669,088 1,675,895 48,805924
afE Liabilities
ot A RIE Other payable - 14,112 27,809 270,949 154,864 - - 467,734
RigatE Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
BERTEKES Debt securities issued - 3,267,667  4,06971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39,405,886
- 3,281,779 4,134,780 10,742,819 16,668,575 5045667 1,773,665 41,647,285
B Eat ol - YR B RERR - FERTER In addition to the above, interest and remittance receivables,
HEHEMEE  BAFE - EBAIK prepayments and other assets, interest payable, accounts
A BNFAXRERNIERE A8 payable, accrued expenses and current income tax liabilities
HE+=—A=1+—B#&:M12@A are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months
A [E] Sk (8 32 o T AR B IS R OR R Y from 31 December. Other assets and liabilities included in the
HMEEMBE  AEHAB A statement of financial position are expected to be recovered or
=+t —HEBAFZE@126 A7 sl settled in a period more than twelve months after 31 December.

Bl EE -
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Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage insurance
which provides cover to the Approved Sellers/Servicers for first
credit losses of up to 25% - 30% of the property value of a residential
mortgage loan with loan-to-value ratio below 90% at origination, or
other ratios as specified from time to time. The Group also provides
financial guarantee cover to Als up to 50% - 70% of the banking
facilities granted to small and medium sized enterprises in Hong
Kong and insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage to
elderly people.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that
the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the
resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk
is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the
Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims
exceed the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could
occur because the frequency or severity of claims are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and
amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less
likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset
of the portfolio. The Group has developed a business strategy to
diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of the
key categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to
reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several
factors. The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a
slump in the local property market. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims.
A drop in property prices, where the collateral value falls below the
outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity
of claims.
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3.6

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set aside
for meeting future claim payments, the Group calculates technical
reserves on prudent liability valuation assumptions and the method
prescribed in the regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out
quota-share reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers
and excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement in an effort to limit
its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business. The
Group conducts comprehensive assessment including the financial
strength and credit ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance
with the approved selection framework set by the Credit Committee.
The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews.

As at 31 December 2011, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%,
profit before tax for the year would have been HK$6 million (2010:
HK$4 million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by 1%, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$6 million (2010: HK$4
million) higher.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and the characteristics of the financial
instruments.

The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amounts
and fair values of financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented
on the Group's statement of financial position at their fair value.
Bid prices are used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer

=R E?‘i’éﬁ@i’[#%“%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%%ﬂ prices are applied for liabilities. For all other financial instruments
TH EQAFEEHREEABES that are not measured at fair value, the fair value is approximately
equal to their carrying value.
EREE NEE
Carrying value Fair value
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FHTT T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREE Financial assets
ReEREHES Cash and short-term funds 10,245,165 5,902,649 10,245,165 5,902,649
BEREEFR Loan portfolio, net 33,135,818 = 35,258,937 33,135,818 35,258,937
BHIEE Investment securities
- RHEEEH — held-to-maturity 8,269,148 8,033,133 8,540,409 8,183,264
o=l Financial liabilities
HinBE Other liabilities 4,182,266 4,163,057 4,182,266 4,163,057
BEITEBES Debt securities issued 40,205,399 37,190,615 40,211,498 37,193,268
BETIRIGE Mortgage-backed
securities issued 367,137 1,529,749 366,404 1,524,932
EBIRIBEFBMR A A The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate
the fair values of financial instruments:

@)

=)

(d

=

©)

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated
fair value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
3 months, is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing
money-market interest rates for debts with similar credit risk
and remaining maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An
insignificant portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate.
Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a reasonable
estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities - held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices
or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value has been estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based
on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS
Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices
are not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based
on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value of
other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.
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(g) Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial

(h

=

statements

There is no (2010: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value
using a valuation technigue that is not supported by observable
market data.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at
fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

m Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1);

m Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2);
and

m Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

AEWRANT
The Group and the Company
F—IE £TE st
Level 1 Level 2 Total
T#ET F#ET Fi#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T——%F As at 31 December 2011
+=—A=+—H
&iE Assets
PTHESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 1,559,187 1,559,187
BHIEE Investment securities
- A E — available-for-sale 2,009,404 294,299 2,303,703
2,009,404 1,853,486 3,862,890
=1 Liabilities
PTESRmTA Derivative financial instruments - 139,582 139,582
AT R 1R TE A A Debt securities issued designated
AHEZ(EFIAER as at fair value through profit or
MERITEBES loss upon initial recognition - 891,808 891,808
- 1,031,390 1,031,390

EBIRIBESBRA 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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HEE AT
The Group The Company
£ R #aEt £ e “Et
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
FET FHET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-T—TF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
THESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 1,396,621 1,396,621 - 1,372,522 1,372,522
BHIRE Investment securities
- AN E — available-for-sale 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966
1,469,339 3,331,248 4,800,587 1,469,339 3,307,149 4,776,488
BfE Liabilities
PTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 44,372 44,372 - 44,372 44,372
AT R IR RE A Debt securities issued designated
AT EZ AR as at fair value through profit or
KB B TR EFH loss upon initial recognition - 1937120 1,937,120 - 1937120 1,937,120
= 1,981,492 1,981,492 = 1,981,492 1,981,492
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Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial
instruments categorised as Level 3.

3.7 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

m To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial
Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”),

m T0 safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

m TO support the Group's stability and growth;

m To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to
optimise risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and

®m To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
daily by the Group’s management in accordance with the Guidelines
on the Capital Adequacy Ratio (“Guidelines”) issued by the Financial
Secretary. The Guidelines, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-based
capital adequacy framework, replaced the previous Guidelines on
the Capital-to-Assets Ratio with effect from 31 December 2011 in
order to strengthen the Group's capital management framework.
The minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (“CAR") stipulated in the
Guidelines is 8%.
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The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to
the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the
Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach or
likely breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the Financial
Secretary. During the year, the Group complied with all of the capital
requirement set out in both guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and
the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

2011

TFHExT

HK$'000

fi& Zx Share capital 2,000,000

{REB = 7 Retained profits 5,173,228

& Bex % e contingency reserves 731,562

Hoh Other reserves 173,958

FEFE A A Non-controlling interest 12,169

LAEE A FHE EFORE Allowance for loan impairment

Fr{E under collective assessment 7.622
kR Deductions (159,962)

NG Total capital base 7,938,577

BRFRE Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.7%
REZZE—ZTF+-_A=+—HHLERHK The comparatives as at 31 December 2010 are computed in

FIRBUART R E RS B E L 155l 5

accordance with the previous Guidelines on the Capital-to-Assets

H REMNERHEELERRS% ° Ratio with the minimum Capital-to-Assets Ratio of 5%.
2010
T
HK$'000
[N Share capital 2,000,000
{RER S 7] Retained profits 4,561,624
Rz 4 Contingency reserves 437,435
HAb Other reserves 265,057

LABA A FHEEFORE Allowance for loan impairment

F{E2 #f under collective assessment 2,029
BR4RER Total capital base 7,266,145
BRI EELL R Capital-to-Assets Ratio 10.8%*

* AR BT R IG5 A RNE & ELL X5
SIZEBEER - REMEESIFENER
LERPREAELLER - i RIAEEIES] - &
AHEEL RN T ——F+=-A=+—
Bi#%511.3% °

* As there are differences between the Guidelines on the Capital
Adequacy Ratio and the Guidelines on the Capital-to-Assets Ratio, the
capital ratios calculated under the two guidelines are not comparable.
The Capital-to-Assets ratio as at 31 December 2011 under the previous
Guidelines on the Capital-to-Assets Ratio would have been 11.3%.

EAiE

18 % AR A 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in
the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management
uses estimates based on historical 10ss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment
similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual 10ss
experience.

4.2 Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where
valuation technigues (for example, models) are used to determine
fair value, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models
are validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial
instruments. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

E B 1R8BS B2 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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RIS B U B R AT E A B AR E ST
BE - BRRBEBHHBEY - REBEIRA
VAL S — 1B %G 0 A S B 8 AR -

EARBEBERE—DHREE - ERBEK
R EE - 7B - 52k P8 3R K rp B A 3t PO {3
- BANBIERERBABRBES  MFE
BORBRBERZBEE  NEREE —FRHA
R4 1) B A O $ 8 K A e B AR N T ) — SR Y /B
RAWERE - ERLDRRAREIR D 1A
ERI

4.3 Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal volatility in listed
price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is
evidence of a deterioration in the financial health of the investment,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and
operational and financing cash flows.

4.4 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, it will
be required to reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale and
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

4.5 Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for profits tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities
such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to
reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary
to mortgage business. The Group is also organised in such a way that
performance is measured at Group level in a single segment for mortgage
business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the
mortgage business is located in four geographical areas, namely Hong
Kong, Korea, Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes
mainly the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment for non-
Hong Kong includes the mortgage assets in Korea, investment in a jointly
controlled entity in Malaysia and investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen,
China. The Chief Operating Decision maker assesses the performance
based on geographical segments.
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& m Al S B EF o

operating segments of the Group.

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other information for

Eld
&iE Non- HEt
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FH#T THT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°'000

BEzE—_T——% Year ended 31 December 2011
+-A=+—HILFE
FEUWA Interest income 867,718 164,884 1,032,602
FESZH Interest expense (124,694) (53,095) (177,789)
SER B A Net interest income 743,024 111,789 854,813
BmiRE F5E Net premiums earned 658,854 - 658,854
EAbl A Other income 206,191 (8,326) 197,865
T PN Operating income 1,608,069 103,463 1,711,532
BR[O B F5E Net claims written back 17,618 - 17,618
e HFsE Net commission expenses (108,000) - (108,000)
LS Operating expenses (166,875) (25,057) (191,932)
RETRUE RITAY £ & g A Operating profit before impairment 1,350,812 78,406 1,429,218
EFORERE Charge of loan impairment allowances (3,141) - (3,141)
FE(G L RIEGE 82 m Share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity - 2,830 2,830

B A5¢ AT Ve A Profit before taxation 1,347,671 81,236 1,428,907
FRIE Taxation (173,225)
AN i A Profit for the year 1,255,682
FERERFZ Capital expenditure during the year 22,877 - 22,877

E B 1R8BS B2 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Z—Z——F 43R Annual Report 2011



FEE

BB Non- st
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FHET FHIT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE-ZT—TF Year ended 31 December 2010
+ZA=+—HILEFE
FEWA Interest income 905,246 236,137 1,141,383
FEZH Interest expense (96,906) (73,896) (170,802)
S ISNT N Net interest income 808,340 162,241 970,581
EimiARE FEE Net premiums earned 583,377 583,377
HAbUA Other income 165,692 4176 169,868
AL N Operating income 1,557,409 166,417 1,723,826
EAMERFE Net claims incurred (6,345) = (6,345)
e HEsE Net commission expenses (159,101) (159,101)
R Operating expenses (136,842) (34,583) (171,425)
RETRBERTAY AL & 5 A Operating profit before impairment 1,255,121 131,834 1,386,955
B U [E 5 Write-back of loan impairment
allowances 16,663 - 16,663
FEAG R E i85 Share of profit of a jointly
controlled entity - 2,259 2,259
FRET AT A Profit before taxation 1,271,784 134,093 1,405,877
1A Taxation (172,015)
REZ 57| Profit for the year 1,233,862
FRERNFEXL Capital expenditure during the year 8,802 64 8,866
EEFE
T Non- st
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
TFHET TFHET F#ExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N_F——4%F As at 31 December 2011
+=HA=+—H
DEEE Segment assets 48,982,599 7,388,702 56,371,301
HEZEHIEEEIRE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - 130,045 130,045
BEME Total assets 48,982,599 7,518,747 56,501,346
HEEAE Segment liabilities 40,667,094 7,267,011 47,934,105
EES
BA Non- ®w5
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FHET FHIT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MN-E—FTF As at 31 December 2010
t-—A=1+—H
DIREE Segment assets 42,832,359 12,069,899 54,902,258
AR B IE Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - 130,720 130,720
BEMRE Total assets 42,832,359 12,200,619 55,032,978
SFEE Segment liabilities 35,477,850 11,953,088 47,430,938
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6. FIBULA 6. Interestincome
AEE

The Group
2011 2010
FHET FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
&S Loan portfolio 623,425 855,015
HEREBHES Cash and short-term funds 100,937 31,311
BHLE — £ Investment securities — listed 98,285 75,054
BHEE — FEETW Investment securities — unlisted 209,955 180,003

1,032,602 1,141,383

ANEE R B WA EIE132,0000 (= FE—=  Included within interest income is HK$132,000 for the year (2010:
4 : 323,000/ 7)) ERIE REEZRNEFE  HK$323,000) with respect to interest income accrued on individually

L ONE impaired loans.
7. FIBRXH 7. Interest expense
EH
The Group
2011 2010
F#xT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ANTAERNRHEENRITER . Bank loans, debt and MBS issued wholly repayable
BEITEBRIZERE S within 5 years 151,690 143,647
BEARRFAREEER Debt and MBS issued not wholly repayable
BEITEBRIRIEE 5 within 5 years 26,099 27155
177,789 170,802

REFH ST HBEI74EET(ZE—F4% :  Included within interest expenses are HK$174 million (2010:
1.67 188 WA AFEELEt ABEMNEE  HK$167 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through
BfE - profit and loss.
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8. RIBRIERBBERERIME 8.

Revenue account for mortgage insurance and

BR guarantee business
ANEE

The Group
2011 2010
FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE (sEa) Gross premiums written (Note a) 644,102 1,038,249
BRRRE Reinsurance premiums (114,569) (87,791)
R &5 (f1sE27() Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 529,533 950,458
RmERREHR L /(EIN);F5  Decrease/(increase) in unearned premiums, net 129,321 (367,081)
BEom EREF 5 (7 27(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 658,854 583,377
BREE /(E4) F5E (HiFE27() Net claims written back/(incurred) (Note 27(b)) 17,618 (6,345)
BABEEE MR E T8 Net premiums earned after provisions 676,472 577,032
HeHh Commission expenses (125,785) (175,967)
BREARNASSH Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 17,785 16,866
i agunpEx:cl Net commission expenses (108,000) (159,101)
EEFAX (MiFED) Management expenses (Note b) (29,526) (22,248)
AR Underwriting gains 538,946 395,683

FoaE Note

@ —E——FHNERBIZRARBARRE
B NBORER-ZE——FHENTE
BIBHRERPPDEEEROERE - —
T-TEMERBEH LB ZBRBETS -

() EEFARMFI0KALEIHN— -

(@ Gross premiums in 2011 were mainly derived from mortgage insurance
business with a small portion of premiums and guarantee fee written
from reverse mortgage and guarantee to SMEs launched in 2011. Gross
premiums in 2010 were all derived from the mortgage insurance business.

(b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.

9. HubUg A 9. Other income
AEH
The Group
2011 2010
Fi#ExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
IRF B E A KBS Early prepayment fees and late charges 14,903 18,278
EHZE Exchange difference 51,049 35,479
SR TEAFEZEFHE Net change in fair value of financial instruments 3,366 309
AR E FR AR S A Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 65,071 43,595
HEREMZEFE (5£12))  Net gain on disposal of investments (Note 12) 64,952 64,752
Efb Others (1,476) 7,455
197,865 169,868
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PR TEATEESHEENIATSIENEN
WVEEARAFEH FHEFTAERTE RS
6408 BT (=T —ZF : 1.88EHT) I
g E A FERBIES /08B L(ZE—F
F:183FBT)  RiVEEABUNRAFEZ L
STABEMITET AR AR 1008E T (=
T—FF 11,0008 H7T) RIEEARTFEZ L
STABRGRNERITERKES R FEEIES005
BIL(ZE—TF : 1,500887T) °

10. &

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of
(i) HK$64 million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair
value hedge (2010: HK$188 million) and HK$57 million fair value loss on
the hedged items (2010: HK$183 million); and (ii) HK$1 million fair value
gain on derivatives designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2010:
HK$10 million) and HK$5 million fair value loss on issued debt securities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2010: HK$15 million).

10. Operating expenses

AEH
The Group
2011 2010
FHET FAT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
fE B A Staff costs
e kgl Salaries and benefits 124,411 107,797
RIKERA - FEHERETE Pension costs — defined contribution plans 6,396 5,706
WAE Premises
e Rental 9,929 7,800
Hfth Others 6,311 6,679
ek Directors’ emoluments - -
Y& (KI5E25) Depreciation (Note 25) 8,609 12,928
B 4 & AR TS Financial information services 5,627 5,510
kS Consultancy fees 9,615 12,494
TR R EEZH Marketing and advertising expenses 8,135 964
H gt Other operating expenses 12,899 11,547
191,932 171,425
11. #ZEEHEN & 11. Auditor’s remuneration
AEH
The Group
2011 2010
TFHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ENZIRTS Audit services 938 880
E b AR Other services 1,068 859
2,006 1,739

E B 1R8BS B2 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

Z—Z——F 43R Annual Report 2011



12. HEHREMWEFE 12. Net gain on disposal of investments

REH
The Group
2011 2010
F#T FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HERE R s 558 - Net gain on disposal of investments:
- BERN—A—HAERHEAN - realisation of amounts recognised in reserves
TEREFIE (FIEE31) up to 1 January (note 31) 51,884 40,554
- AFEEERZ TR - net gain arising in current year 13,068 24,198
64,952 64,752
13. ERBIE (185)/ o 13. (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment
allowances
AEH
The Group
2011 2010
F#xT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRURE (BE) /5 (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment allowances
— #AE T (MI5E 20(b) — collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) (3,141) 16,663
14. #IA 14. Taxation
(a) REFEEWERANMBRHBIES : (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
REH
The Group
2011 2010
F#xT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBFEH Hong Kong profits tax
- EEARITSEL — Current income tax 169,114 171,681
- BEFERAE - Adjustment in respect of prior years - 16
169,114 171,697
RIERIE Deferred taxation
- AFEXH — Charge for current year 4111 318
173,225 172,015
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LA G E B A A 5T R AR B R AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%

165%(—F—F4F : 16.5%) B 5 = (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

SHREB NG Wﬁﬁ RIERIAA S Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
EE1%16.5% —ZF : 16.5%) under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%

B E EH X p+§% PEOE 248 o (2010: 16.5%).

REERBRB A SN HIEEEAE The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from

BRMEGENERESBENEZEZNAT the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate

of Hong Kong as follows:

AREE
The Group
2011 2010
TFHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BR A% A& A Profit before taxation 1,428,907 1,405,877
1#£16.5% (ZZF—Z4F : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2010:16.5%)
iRt E 235,770 231,970
FEAG 2 A I B A8 R T Y Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly controlled
Hg 2 entity (467) (373)
BAZT A Income not subject to taxation (89,138) (82,023)
AR Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 27,060 22,425
BEFERAE Adjustment in respect of prior years - 16
FRIBFAX Taxation charge 173,225 172,015
(b) BEABSMRARAMBIERES : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:
HEM E
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
TFHExT FHT FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHHIBEAE Current income tax liabilities 134,785 133,560 135,131 134,532
BERIEAE Deferred income tax liabilities 52,672 37167 52,696 37167
187,457 170,727 187,827 171,699
RZE——FR_FT—ZFTF+_A8 There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
=t+—0B ' BEARERKBEHREL 31 December 2011 and 2010.
FRIE o
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BIEFIB(BE)/ BENEEHEMKE The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/liabilities

DRENBEMOT ¢ and the movements during the year are as follows:
AEHE
The Group
InEBIERE BUE B
Accelerated Impairment NEEEE bRk bt
tax allowances Fair value cash flow Fiotcl
depreciation and provisions changes hedges Total
FHET FET FET FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=F—ZTF—H—H As at 1 January 2010 3,448 (12,299) 33,088 (9,028) 15,209
U EsR A (E5E)/HBR (Credited)/charged to
the income statement (207) 525 - - 318
RN HIRR Charged to equity
(Pt =E31) (Note 31) = = 17,307 4,333 21,640
R-ZT—ZTHE+_A=+—H Asat31December 2010 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
PR R AR Charged to the income
statement 1,805 2,306 = = 4111
PSRN Charged to equity
(F&E31) (Note 31) = = 9,316 2,078 11,394
WZZE——5+"A=+—H As at 31 December 2011 5,046 (9,468) 59,711 (2,617) 52,672
P N
The Company
InEBIEAE WA
Accelerated Impairment NTEEE) bkt pta
tax allowances Fair value Cash flow Fit)
depreciation and provisions changes hedges Total
FHT FHT FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE—TF—HF—H As at 1 January 2010 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
R A (EE)/ MR (Credited)/charged to
the income statement (207) 521 - = 314
PN FIRR Charged to equity
(F=E31) (Note 31) = = 17,307 4,333 21,640
W=T—FF+=-A=1+—H Asat31December 2010 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
U E R AR Charged to the income
statement 1,805 2,330 - - 4,135
AR Charged to equity
(HtE31) (Note 31) = - 9,316 2,078 11,394
A-E——%&+-H=+—H Asat 31 December 2011 5,046 (9,444) 59,711 (2,617) 52,696
R+ZEAR » EEMERELEFRIE There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
BE/ABFEEWRE /T - liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
15. AEEF 15. Profit for the year
AN TIB SRR FrE AN E E A A1,226,370,000 The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the
I (ZE—F4 ¢ 1,199,473,0007T) © Company to the extent of HK$1,226,370,000 (2010: HK$1,199,473,000).
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16. IR2 16. Dividend
b /N
The Company
2011 2010
FHT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI EZIEEZ0.175/8C Proposed dividend of HK$0.175
(ZZ—Z4: 017587T) (2010: HK$0.175) per ordinary share 350,000 350,000

RIEBE——FMN-_ZT-ZEFEMNH-ZT—Z4F The dividend paid in 2011 and 2010 in respect of 2010 and 2009 were
M-_ZBEAEERENRAISEBT(FRYE  HK$350 million (HK$0.175 per ordinary share) and HK$500 million (HK$0.25
BA%0.1757% L) M5 EB Tt (B L MAL0.25  per ordinary share) respectively. The directors proposed a final dividend
BT c RZE——FWA=+H EE&% in respect of 2011 of HK$0.175 per ordinary share on 30 April 2012.
3 - T ——F RO EREMX0.175/%8  The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable as at 31
JL e WHEESREWEN AR T ——F+=  December 2011.

A=+—HrEMRKRE -

17. IREREHESE 17. Cash and short-term funds
AEH VNN

The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#ET FHT T#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITIHE Cash at banks 43,499 49,470 38,642 36,918
SRITE HATF X Time deposits with banks 10,201,666 5,853,179 10,083,205 5,732,591

10,245,165 5,902,649 10,121,847 5,769,509

MRERERMS BWENZRBELERABIE  For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
AR BR 5 A E#esT =8 A W HAR &5k - equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of transaction.

L3 Y A4

The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
TFHET FHET TFHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITHE Cash at banks 43,499 49,470 38,642 36,918
RITTE HAER Time deposits with banks 9,942,514 4,495,604 9,936,345 4,404,640
Re RERBEEIER Cash and cash equivalents 9,986,013 4,545,074 9,974,987 4,441,558
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18. FEMHIE R EERR 18.

Interest and remittance receivables

A& LV
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fisn TE7T Fin TET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT ZIEREYAILE - Interest receivable from
e ESE =y ) - interest rate swap contracts 240,949 497,467 240,949 495,491
- BHEE - investment securities 88,046 81,330 88,046 81,330
- RITERER — time deposits with banks 12,461 2,345 11,861 2,175
B AEE R FEICH S & Interest receivable and
HEIRTK instalments, in transit from
loan portfolio 249,542 76,008 237,214 66,236
590,998 657,150 578,070 645,232
9. fTHEEMTR 19. Derivative financial instruments

(a) FER{TATR

REE B TINTET AP AREE
WEeREAR - MEFREm S - R
%-ﬁ: @?Jr‘%%ﬁﬂ%%%ﬁ(ﬁ%ﬂlﬂ :
REEE BEDBRNATE
“ﬂ:.ﬁr)\?% E}Z}fz’zlifﬁﬁkfﬁﬁm‘%ﬁ
HEEDR T A o

ERERNERH/A—ARERER
M5 — AR MEBHAGE - HHEH
B RN R ME S REER -
BRETEERERIN ZEXFTY
kEmAe - ARENEERBRAR
ZHFRERTEEEMEERRS
WHEIERAR » REEZERITRF
B BRAOBFELD - RHEOR
BEREERERER

(a) Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group’s financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative
instrument are designated as at fair value through profit or loss
or hedging instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges
as defined in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes place
except for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current fair
value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts and
the liquidity of the market.

BEERBEFERA
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AR FRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the statement of financial position but do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do
not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks.
The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market
interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms.
The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative
financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments
are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate

significantly from time to time. The fair values of derivative
instruments held are set out below.

FEE
The Group
2011 2010
&/ an/
BREEH ATE ZEHE AFE
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional aE afk notional BE afE
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
TF#ExT TF#ExT TF#T FET FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
()  EBEARFEZEEIA () Derivatives designated
BEHITETR as at fair value through
profit or loss
F 4 57 Interest rate swaps 5,448,996 63,220 (13,880) 7,443,726 64,754 (26,822)
i ER currency swaps 7,890,297 11,696 (12,884) 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093)
74,916 (26,764) 77,844 (34,915)
(i) BEARFELE T (i) Derivatives designated
TETA as fair value hedge
plESEr Interest rate swaps 21,418,545 1,250,727 (18,607) | 27,330,675 1,029,206 (2,819)
Hitsr currency swaps 16,503,853 233,544 (94,211) 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487)
1,484,271 (112,818) 1,318,777 (5,306)
(i) HEELABRRTRERE (i) Derivatives designated
PTETA as cash flow hedge
Bikia Currency swaps - - - 2,354,149 - (4,151)
ERRITEAE /(8F) Total recognised derivative
FEkE assets/(liabilities) 1,559,187 (139,582) 1,396,621 (44,372)
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YN

The Company
2011 2010
&/ an/
BREEH ATE ZERDHE AFE
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional &E =1 § notional ‘E AafE
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
T#ExT TF#ERT F#RT FET FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
() IEBEAAFEBEA () Derivatives designated
BEMITETR as at fair value
through profit or loss
RS Interest rate swaps 5,448,996 63,220 (13,880) 7,443,726 64,754 (26,822)
petsct - currency swaps 7,890,297 11,696 (12,884) 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093)
74,916 (26,764) 77,844 (34,915)
(i) EBEARFEL (i) Derivatives designated
THETA as fair value hedge
=5 Interest rate swaps 21,418,545 1,250,727 (18,607) | 26,630,675 1,005,107 (2,819)
Bk Currency swaps 16,503,853 233,544 (94,211) 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487)
1,484,271 (112,818) 1,294,678 (5,306)
(i) EBEABSRERE (i) Derivatives designated
PTETA as cash flow hedge
B Currency swaps - - - 2,354,149 - (4,151)
EBRRITERE /(A& Total recognised derivative
Fick assets/(liabilities) 1,559,187 (139,582) 1,372,522 (44,372)

(b) ¥idhiEE)
%ﬁilﬂ%“
CEEREME
>EP§$% o

FEHRRRSRE
C NERES R & H

(b) Hedging activities

(i)

D EE
AEBHATFELSPEEERER
RRERE S/ TAAFER
EREEZE 5 KRR
MER A -

(i) MEFEH

AEBEFRBRE S RE PN EE
RESHIINE SR T AR &R
E)E R ES D INE R ©

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hedges

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of interest
rate and currency swaps that are used to protect interest
rate risk resulting from any potential change in fair value of

fixed rate financial instruments.

Cash flow hedges

The Group hedged a portion of foreign exchange risks
arising from variability of cash flows from foreign currency
denominated financial instruments using currency swaps

under cash flow hedge.

ERERBEFARA

\ &) The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

ZZ——5F%3R Annual Report 2011

167



AR FRMEE Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(c) EERERBERRIEERIE (c) Replacement costs and potential future credit
exposures
BEEXRAREEFMAMERBERELE The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all
BERTETAG KRR o BIERKE derivative contracts that have a positive value when marked
ERk e REEREBEE AT B EIES] to market. The potential future credit exposure amounts refer
(FIEE3.7) St E R S - AR E{ER to the amount as computed in accordance with the Guidelines
BIERGHFTBLMNIEL - on the Capital Adequacy Ratio (Note 3.7). The Group has not

experienced any non-performance by its counterparties.

PTET EAHHEE KA MEERRK The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure
EERRSEHN TN - ZEFSREIL amounts of the derivative contracts are as follows. These
B AR GHFHETEMSEE L amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral netting
HIRE o arrangements with the counterparties.
A&
The Group
2011 2010
BRI BAERIE
BEE R EERR
Potential Potential
BEEMA future FEEKA future
Replacement credit Replacement credit
cost exposure cost exposure
FiHT FHxT FHIT FHBT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEH Interest rate contracts
— FI|Z&= 4= HA — Interest rate swaps 1,527,223 131,599 1,442,892 139,612
EREH Exchange rate contracts
- Bikkia R — Currency swaps 263,227 806,232 332,268 661,650
1,790,450 937,831 1,775,160 801,262
PN
The Company
2011 2010
EERK BRI
=& E EERMK
Potential Potential
EERA future FEERA future
Replacement credit Replacement credit
cost exposure cost exposure
Fi#T FHT FTHT FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
— 4= B — Interest rate swaps 1,527,223 131,599 1,416,817 139,612
XS4 Exchange rate contracts
- EIa EY — Currency swaps 263,227 806,232 332,268 661,650
1,790,450 937,831 1,749,085 801,262
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20. &4

BFH

20. Loan portfolio, net

EEFE - RORETAR IR

(@) ERASRRE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
AERE Y/
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Fign T Fign T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRERHE Mortgage portfolio
F=E Residential
-&% - Hong Kong 20,402,305 18,081,110 15,442,530 14,932,355
— g — Overseas 7,239,972 11,912,250 7,239,972 11,912,250
[EES Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
FHLAEE Securitised portfolio
(B £ 33) (Note 33) 169,762 717,786 - =
ERBEREE Non-mortgage portfolio 1,331,401 549,820 1,331,401 549,820
33,143,440 35,260,966 28,013,903 31,394,425
BEHOREEE Allowance for loan impairment (7,622) (2,029) (7,478) (2,027)
33,135,818 35,258,937 28,006,425 31,392,398
EC:E**¢+:H =+—H ' HUE As at 31 December 2011, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted

average remaining term of 11 years (2010: 9 years) on a

EERRERSERT IR
TN ST A
T-TENE)  RIBEH
ER-EHEEHN -

DF

R EBFERRENERER W AE

contractual basis, without taking into account any prepayment
of local mortgage loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio
is in the year 2050.

Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the

@$$/\\D§%W§D L

outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:

AEH AR E]
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
BERORERE Total allowance for
REHER loan impairment
HHEFER as a percentage of
Ao the gross loan portfolio 0.02% 0.01% 0.03% 0.01%

BB RBES AR A The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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(b) ZBEREESHERRERE

(b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio

A& A4
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F# T Fi#T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEFTE Collective assessment
n—H—H As at 1 January 2,029 14,011 2,027 13,975
Rk R B /  Charge/(released) to
(#BE) (KI=E13)) income statement (Note 13) 3,141 (16,663) 2,999 (16,629)
W BB M E R Recoveries of loans previously
written off 2,452 4,760 2,452 4,760
BEITIRERR Unwind of discount on
allowance - (79) - (79)
W+=A=+—H  Asat31December 7,622 2,029 7,478 2,027

EHEFRERER  EZRIERE
R ER @ B ATHE o SEREIN
REFEBEFESELRERR
FR - BEFORERH 18,0008 7T (=
T—F4 :7,0008T) EEEEKMD
B (PHRE25) ©

Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into
account the current market value of the collateral of the
delinquent loan. There is no impairment provided for overseas
and commercial mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance
for loan impairment of HK$18,000 (2010: HK$7,000) has been
transferred to repossessed assets (Note 25).

A& AR E B E REER D Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a portfolio

e basis are analysed as follows:
AEH Y/
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FHIT T#ERT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERMHAGHEEE  Gross impaired loan portfolio 4,923 278 4,923 278
BERCRERE Allowance for loan impairment (591) (22) (591) (22)
4,332 256 4,332 256
BEFOREREL Allowance for loan impairment
BEERES as a percentage of gross
BEERBH DL impaired loan portfolio 12.0% 7.9% 12.0% 7.9%
RMEERHEE Gross impaired loan portfolio
BEEEREE as a percentage of
WEERA DL gross loan portfolio 0.01% - 0.02% =

LAZEA TR R A 9B sk Bl B
B FTIEE ZUR B 5 57,031,000
BIL(ZZE—FF : 2,007,000/%7T) °

Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment
for loans not individually identified as impaired amount to
HK$7,031,000 (2010: HK$2,007,000).
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(c) ERMEEANMERERERE (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan

portfolio
AEBERARAT
The Group and the Company
2011
IR ERAEL
IR B AT KR HARHY ENERE
MIRRE =0 ON Total
Present value Interest minimum
of minimum income lease
lease payments relating to payments
receivable future periods receivable
Figx Figx Fix
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
LA HAfE FE MRk IA Amounts receivable:
-—FR — within one year 110,457 24,274 134,731
- —FERERFNA — after one year
but within five years 399,125 76,599 475,724
- AfF& — after five years 821,819 97,583 919,402
1,331,401 198,456 1,529,857
REBE RARE]
The Group and the Company
2010
AR FEUR AR LT
SEEKTHL  REREAMD FIRAEEE
FIRTE A Total
Present value Interest minimum
of minimum income lease
lease payments relating to payments
receivable future periods receivable
T FHET FHT
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
FALATT A fel g LR IE Amounts receivable:
-—%R — within one year 57,467 10,492 67,959
- —FRERAFNA — after one year
but within five years 193,302 31,305 224,607
- AfFtR — after five years 299,051 28,696 327,747
549,820 70,493 620,313
R-E——F+-A=+—HBKR=-F There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
—ZF+_A=1+—H  AKERAK at 31 December 2011 and 2010 of the Group and the Company.
N ) A i i A S R LR IR VR HE R
BERE -
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21. BHFRE 21. Investment securities
(a) T EEH (a) Available-for-sale securities
AEERANT
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
TFHExT TFAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEATEYERNERSZES  Debt securities at fair value
JEET Unlisted 294,299 1,934,627
BAFEYBENEMZES  Other securities at fair value
REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 2,009,404 1,469,339
A EE S 858 Total available-for-sale securities 2,303,703 3,403,966
HEtESFERIMEBEES REHE Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
KRBT - investment trust.
REITHIB IR D AT AT R BB A Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
T~ issuers as follows:
AEERANT
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RITR HAb & Rtz Banks and other financial institutions 294,299 1,368,020
NCIRTSE S Corporate entities - 66,719
AR Central governments - 499,888
Hith Others 2,009,404 1,469,339
2,303,703 3,403,966
At EBFNEFRLRAOT The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
AEBRANR
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
®n—HA—H As at 1 January 3,403,966 3,613,064
H#8n Additions 645,167 4,263,000
HE KD Sale and redemption (1,853,946) | (4,620,012)
G Amortisation 931 (1,088)
NEGEES) Change in fair value 107,682 143,631
HNEEE 5 =58 Exchange difference (97) 5,371
R+=—A=1+—H As at 31 December 2,303,703 3,403,966
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(b) HAEEIHFES (b) Held-to-maturity securities

AEERANT
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
FHT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR SERANYBRR(ETEE % Debt securities at amortised cost

REB LT Listed in Hong Kong 1,495,927 1,014,324
REBRINET Listed outside Hong Kong 3,029,614 3,024,472

4,525,541 4,038,796

JEET Unlisted 3,743,607 3,994,337
BAEEIHELFRE Total held-to-maturity securities 8,269,148 8,033,133
ETEEHNTE Market value of listed securities

e — held-to-maturity 4,692,973 4,181,338
REATHBER ST E 22 HB 5 Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers
T as follows:

AEBRANT

The Group and the Company

2011 2010

TFHET AT

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITR B A EhE Banks and other financial institutions 5,198,773 5,742,185
NG S Corporate entities 1,294,334 623,601
NV 7 Public sector entities 894,070 863,630
AR Central governments 830,863 737,822
Hith Others 51,108 65,895

8,269,148 8,033,133

BEEIFESNESBMAT The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as
follows:
AEBRAENR
The Group and the Company
2011 2010
T#ExT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—H As at 1 January 8,033,133 5,817,998
0 Additions 1,743,272 4,341,842
HE K fE D Sale and redemption (1,508,858) (2,130,621)
Y Amortisation (10,761) (7,093)
HNESTE b 2258 Exchange difference 12,362 11,007
®n+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 8,269,148 8,033,133
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22. fIBATIRE 22. Investment in subsidiaries
P /N

The Company
2011 2010
Ti#x T
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEEMRRS - BKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 103,060
B ARIFT/R A Due from a subsidiary 4,883,648 3,102,572

4,986,708 3,205,632

M QB AT R FoEEEA M EETERY - I The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed term of
BB FEEB - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

R-E——F+_A=+—0 WBAEME The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are:

B
& fH A S 3t B BT /CEMBRARE FR B IR AL
g1 Place of TEEH Particulars of issued/ Effective
Name incorporation Principal activities registered capital equity held
BERIEEEERAT B BARERIZIBER 1,000,00078 7T 100%
B EREE 1 BT
HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 100%
Management Limited and servicing of HK$1 ordinary
share each
A ER TR EERERAR lE] RIRE R RER AR EITEMER 90%
Bauhinia HKMC Corporation PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million 90%
Limited business registered capital
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HEIEHIERERE 23.

Investment in a jointly controlled entity

REME
The Group
2011 2010
FHT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Kn—H—H As at 1 January 130,720 115,190
BT A (L= A Share of profit, net of tax 2,830 2,259
ANESTE 5 2258 (B9 RE 31) Exchange differences (Note 31) (3,784) 13,108
H s Other equity movement
- AN ERFE (HE31) — fair value reserve (Note 31) 279 163
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 130,045 130,720
/NG|
The Company
2011 2010
FHT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JEEMRES - BKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554

R-ZE—F+_A=+—8  HFEIZEHEFFE The details of the jointly controlled entity as at 31 December 2011 are:

RFFIBAT
BEHA
FRi¥sRR 4 LERESL
& A S 3t B ERITRANEE R % of ordinary
& Place of FTEER Nominal value of Class of shares
Name incorporation Principal activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC Berhad o5 i RIRERERED B {ET LB 50%
BREESE 1T
Cagamas HKMC Berhad Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million Ordinary 50%
business of RM1 each
REERHRZE G B BE R fdm T The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's interest in
a jointly controlled entity is as follows:
2011 2010
T#ExT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets 130,709 131,217
afE Liabilities (664) (497)
EEFEE Share of net assets 130,045 130,720
A Revenue 4,633 3,927
FE ML ER Share of profit for the year 2,830 2,259
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24, TEFRIE - &R HMEBE 24. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

AEE AT
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

FH&ERT FHT FET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

N {Ek=V=S Repossessed assets 454 3,861 454 3,861

NEIEFHEES Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
FEY AT & (_ETH) Dividend receivable from

RERE available-for-sale

investments (listed) 14,363 14,032 14,363 14,032

H i FEUGRIA Other receivable - = 161,268 =

B Others 11,530 9,016 11,952 10,577

27,097 27,659 188,787 29,220

H #h JiE Ue 718 2 & 45 Bauhinia MBS Limited LA Other receivable represented the amount drawn by Bauhinia MBS Limited
B[O BauhiniaiZ @& AL st 213 THIRIBE% - for the redemption of the MBS issued under Bauhinia MBS Programme.

25. EIEEE 25. Fixed assets
REE
The Group
WAER
RFL R34
Office
HEWEKIE  equipment, mE
Leasehold furniture S Motor ok c)
improvement  and fixtures Ccomputers vehicle Total
T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE—ZFF—H—HAKREFE  Netbook amount as at
1 January 2010 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
B Additions 77 259 8,530 = 8,866
HrE&(PFE 10) Depreciation charge
(Note 10) (2,016) (923) (9,970) (19) (12,928)
SNESTE 5 AR Exchange adjustments 7 17 33 - 57
RZZT—ZTF+-A=+—H Net book amount as at
AR 35 31 December 2010 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
= Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22,877
BE /WH Disposal/write-off - (258) (28) - (286)
rE(HEE10) Depreciation charge
(Note 10) (335) (335) (7,939) - (8,609)
SNEEEE H % Exchange adjustments - 14 26 - 40
N-E——F+ZHA=+—H Net book amount as at
FRELEH 31 December 2011 4,157 996 26,121 - 31,274
R-E——F&+"A=+—H As at 31 December 2011
BRAME Cost 12,918 7,085 151,016 226 171,245
2 eE Accumulated depreciation (8,761) (6,089) (124,895) (226) (139,971)
BREEE Net book amount 4,157 996 26,121 - 31,274
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P N
The Company

PWAZRHE
BT R 5t
Office
AEWEERE  equipment, mE
Leasehold furniture B Motor Fobc]
improvement  and fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Tt Tt T T Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZZT—ZF—HF—HE®EFRE  Netbookamountas at
1 January 2010 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
R Additions 72 240 8,490 - 8,802
e Depreciation charge (1,718) (568) 9,517) (19) (11,822)
AT —ZTF+-A=+—H Net book amount as at
BREFEE 31 December 2010 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
NE Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22,877
s Depreciation charge (232) (204) (7,472) - (7,908)
N_FE——F+"H=+—H Net book amount as at
BRERH 31 December 2011 4,157 991 25,801 - 30,949
N-_ZE——F+-HA=+—H As at 31 December 2011
BRAME Cost 12,918 7,057 149,606 226 169,807
REtinE Accumulated depreciation (8,761) (6,066) (123,805) (226) (138,858)
BRERE Net book amount 4,157 991 25,801 - 30,949

26. FE{TERIA - FEFIRISI RRE b

26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other

BE liabilities
REE PN
The Group The Company

2011 2010 2011 2010
T#ERT FHT F#ET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FERTRRIE R PR FSZ Accounts payable and
accrued expenses 74,215 113,043 74,407 146,710
H A FETFRIE Other payable - = 358,929 467,734
HEE Other liabilities 4,182,266 4,163,057 4,182,266 4,163,057
HhE Other provision 18,402 15,037 18,402 14,765
4,274,883 4,291,137 4,634,004 4,792,266

R B EREAR S E=F+-AR-FT
M — A B BB BT ([ EBHE )R
BE RN R ZOBIENR -

HE-Z—F+-_A=+—B ' A28H
Bauhinia MBS Limited & 3088 L1218 & 3%
EEH WHEBZEEREFZESHENE
B HRIZIBERA [BERHEEFE]  UERR
[ E th & {<f 5708 | % 72 — 2 & 5 Bauhinia MBS
LimitedMEBE - RZFE——F+=ZF=+—
B AARMBEMRREFOEAENKIEES
358,929,000/ 7T (= F —Z 4 : 467,734,000 7%
TT) e

Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit
enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") in December 2003
and January 2004.

Up to 31 December 2011, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage
loans to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company
continues to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net”
to the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability
due to Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other payable” has also been
recognised. As at 31 December 2011, other payable was HK$358,929,000
(2010: HK$467,734,000) in the Company's statement of financial position.
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27. RIBEBRRBREEE

27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

AREBMRAAF REERART]
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2011 2010
E® BiRE B E| ARER bk
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHT FET FHT FT FAT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R EARE RIEREAERE Provision for unearned
premium and guarantee fees 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770
RIREBREE Provision for outstanding
claims
- BER /(KkE) BR - claims reported/(recovery) 1,881 (2) 1,883 - (164) 164
- BEEABRPRAR - claims incurred
but not reported 59,798 9,446 50,352 84,611 14,771 69,840
61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004
1,630,595 208,911 1,421,684 | 1,773,665 204,891 1,568,774
(a) XBHRERIERERAEEEESD (a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned
HT premiums and guarantee fees
AREBRBANF AEERARAT]
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2011 2010

EH BiRE bl EX| BRE bk
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHT FET FHT FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
»—A—H As at 1 January 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
EEURE (KT7E8) Premiums written (Note 8) 644,102 114,569 529,533 | 1,038,249 87,791 950,458
EmERE (fiE8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (764,240) (105,386) (658,854) = (721,622)  (138,245)  (583,377)
W+=-—A=1+—8 As at 31 December 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770

(b) RARBPFBHEEHSWOT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding

claims
AREE R AN E A& B RARA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2011 2010
ER BiRk B E£5 AR bl
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHT FiET FHT FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
n—HA—H As at 1 January 84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
[SIREES Claims paid (690) - (690) - 1,175 (1,175)
[SAEIEEES Claims recovery 764 225 539 508 202 306
B EERR(HIFES) Claims incurred (Note 8)
- BEHRBAR — claims reported 1,807 (63) 1,870 (2,599) (1,515) (1,084)
- BEABARRRAR - claims incurred
but not reported (24,813) (5,325) (19,488) (3,189) (10,618) 7,429
R+=—A=+—8 As at 31 December 61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004
(c) &fE3EE R (c) Liability adequacy test

ETEERRIHRE  ZR2HEL
Ren8LlPREEERSTHBR
EnENEEGE  ARBERR -F
— FER =T TEF - =
B NEEERRREIE

The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2011 and
2010, the Group’s insurance liabilities are adequate.
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28. EEBTERES 28. Debt securities issued
AEME b /N
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
F#T FAT F#T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R4 8 PR A5 BR Y Debt securities carried
BEHEE at amortised cost
BEEITEEIES DIP notes 2,199,566 4,118,849 2,199,566 4,397,000
REESF BT EIES MTN notes 1,497,209 = 1,497,209 =
TR AN AR Y Total debt securities carried
BN EH B at amortised cost 3,696,775 4,118,849 3,696,775 4,397,000
BEANTEE I Debt securities designated
EHES as fair value hedge
B LA EIES DIP notes 12,949,071 20,774,658 12,949,071 20,774,658
TEEHETIEI M EMES  RBIP and other notes 50,488 699,802 50,488 699,802
REES BT EIES MTN notes 23,509,065 11,597,306 23,509,065 11,597,306
TBERATELEFH Total debt securities
B1% 38 545 designated as
fair value hedge 36,508,624 33,071,766 36,508,624 33,071,766
RVNIATERFIEE B Debt securities designated
AT EELFNER as at fair value through
HEBES profit or loss upon
initial recognition
BT A EIES DIP notes 697,917 1,756,638 697,917 1,756,638
TEEHEITHEIREMES  RBIP and other notes 193,891 180,482 193,891 180,482
)\EA‘%ﬂﬁAEEE@E%?EE%D{ Total debt securities
NEEE(CFIAER designated as at
BESE S ERE fair value through
profit or loss upon initial
recognition 891,808 1,937,120 891,808 1,937,120
BEITEBESR Total debt securities issued 41,097,207 39,127,735 41,097,207 = 39,405,886
RER REBRVKEREREETZS4$R During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition
& f& #91,000,000,000% T( = & — & & HK$1,000,000,000 (2010: HK$1,074,000,000) nominal value of such financial

1,074,000,00058 7T ) & BENAR $ BEZ(LE

A HESMABZ ATESDRREE
M - RATR 7 BOAA T ER

L A EENEREEREERAKERES
MNREREMBAERAESREAINNEED
567,392,000/ 7T (ZF —F 4 : 612,080,000 7%

7)) ©
ZERERARFEIIRN SR A ERE EF
EXRBERAARR ZEERRE

liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair value changes are
attributable to changes in benchmark interest rates for the debt securities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amount
of the financial liabilities desighated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition is HK$567,392,000 (2010: HK$612,080,000) lower
than the amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in
the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated
as at fair value.

B
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ERTEFIESNESMANT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

AEE Y N/N|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FHT T#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—A—H As at 1 January 38,470,471 44,023,620 38,748,622 44,023,620
BT Issuance 28,549,278 8,279,703 32,957,267 10,103,499
R BB Less: Redemption (26,707,868) | (13,838,443) (31,394,008) | (15,384,088)
HNEEFE 5, 258 Exchange difference 529 5,591 529 5,591
HEEERTE Total nominal value 40,312,410 38,470,471 40,312,410 38,748,622
IR AREEE D Unamortised portion
of discount (655,896) (697,973) (655,896) (697,973)
NEEFE Fair value adjustment 1,440,693 1,355,237 1,440,693 1,355,237
R+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 41,097,207 39,127,735 41,097,207 39,405,886
NEEEITHES Notes issued during the year comprise:
AEHE VN
The Group The Company
& hHAfE % & hH &S
THE&E BITEE TEGE BITRE
DIP MTN DIP MTN
T#ERT F#ET T#ERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETESEEE Amount issued at
nominal value 6,941,000 21,608,278 11,348,989 21,608,278
BEUERFRIE Consideration received 6,936,403 21,588,783 11,344,358 21,588,783

MBEERZETHNERESHBASEEERE
£ MBEOREEBESFE ER‘E—RLEER
ERIEERERRE

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group,
and are issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and
refinancing.
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29. EBFTIRBES

29. Mortgage-backed securities issued

AEME
The Group
2011 2010
FHxT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1R S A ARG BR AV IR 1B 8 % MBS at amortised cost
Bauhinia#zta& (b a2l Bauhinia MBS Programme 367,137 805,650
EBEANTEE hHIZBES MBS designated as fair value hedge
Bauhinia#zt&a& (b a2l Bauhinia MBS Programme - 724,099
BETIRIEE 585 (MizE 36) Total MBS issued (Note 36) 367,137 1,529,749
Rn—A—HB As at 1 January 1,505,650 1,976,121
A : BB Less: Redemption (1,138,513) (470,471)
BEEEE Total nominal value 367,137 1,505,650
N EFAE Fair value adjustment - 24,099
BW+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 367,137 1,529,749

FTEEBEFNARIARNEKARL Lk
MAARBERIBEFAEREESTMET -
BB E MBS F528691,008 (=T —=F
£ :1,185,520,000% 7T ) EAERFTE1TIRIG R
HE ARG (H5E36) o B BITIRBEF BT
367,137,000 70 (= Z —Z 4 : 805,650,000/%5

All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
Company. HK$528,691,000 (2010: HK$1,185,520,000) of mortgage portfolio
are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 36). Out of the total MBS
issued, nominal value of HK$367,137,000 (2010: HK$805,650,000) are
guaranteed by the Company.

7T VE(E B AR AHELR ©
30. lg&X 30. Share capital
—F——5K
—E—FF
2011 and 2010
FHT
HK$°000
JETE Authorised
BREE1BTH 30 1EREBAR 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BETRER Issued and fully paid
FIREE 1B 20 (B AR @ A% 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000

EBIRIBESBRA 7 The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
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31. Hibi#E

31. Other reserves

W=Z T4 —H—H

As at 1 January 2010

A EEAN AT EZS):  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
securities:

- REIH W o 558 - unrealised
net gains
- HERZH (5 12) — realisation on
disposal(Note 12)
- REB W FE - unrealised
— HEEGERE net gains-jointly
(FfiE 23) controlled entity
(Note 23)
— BiH - amortisation *
B ER ) — tax effect
(Note 14(b))
WEMmEH Cash flow hedges
- BEEREMEERER - net gains arising
TR A HEER from hedges
W25 558 recognised
in other
comprehensive
income
- BARGROATEES) — fair value changes
transferred to
income
statement
- HiE (FTE14(0)) — tax effect
(Note 14(b))
HHETE =R Currency translation
difference
- B AT — subsidiary
— HEESIERE (FiT3E 23) — jointly controlled
entity (Note 23)

Efh 2k Other comprehensive
income

FRE A S B ER Transfer of 50%

[RBRIR B FEEH) 50% of net risk premium

ZRBHEE earned from
retained profits to
contingency reserve

FA 3\ B2 e 1 18 B = (R BB A Release of contingency
reserve to

retained profits

REE
The Group
BRGNS TERE Eapal= i) B R
Contingency  Fair value Hedging Translation 4
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT FET FHET FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

* RERBEBRRAHEEEFBREREE -
B RS R o

amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-
sale securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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A EHE

The Group
EBfFE AT ERE ik B
Contingency  Fair value Hedging Translation 4R
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FHIT FRT FRT FHBIT FRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R-ZT—TF+—-H=+—H/ Asat31December 2010/
—T—%—A—H 1 January 2011
AHHEFRSMAFEZS):  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale

securities:
— RER WA FEE - unrealised
net gains
- HEREH (HFE12) — realisation on
disposal (Note 12)
- REH W e F5E - unrealised net
— HEEGEE gains — jointly
(FfiE 23) controlled entity
(Note 23)
— HBE > — amortisation *
— BiE (FIE14(0)) - tax effect
(Note 14(b))
RGN Cash flow hedges
- BEEREMEEKER - net gains arising
TR REER from hedges
et recognised
in other
comprehensive
income
- BARERNATEES) — fair value changes
transferred
to income
statement
- BiE (M E14(0)) — tax effect
(Note 14(b))
EHEE X =R Currency translation
difference
- MEAR] — subsidiary
— RS ERE (e 23) —jointly controlled
entity(Note 23)
Hfb2mElas Other comprehensive
income
R B A S E M EA Transfer of 50% or 75%
[RRIR B FEEH) 50% of net risk premium
= 75% = R\ earned from

retained profits to

contingency reserve
HRBREERELCZERE T Release of contingency

reserve to

retained profits

RN_ZE——H+"H=+—H As at 31 December 2011 731,562 302,615 (13,244) 10,911 1,031,844

* REFEBEAAIHLEFHFERERFE amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-
I HAE SR s R 8 o sale securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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EV
The Company
B % NEERKE Himf# e
Contingency Fair value Hedging “aEE
reserve reserve reserve Total
FHT FHT FHT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZE—FF—H—H As at 1 January 2010 189,833 167,449 (45,685) 311,597
AHHERERSFMATFEZS:  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- RERU LS FRE — unrealised net gains - 143,631 - 143,631
- HEREIE (FH5E12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12) - (40,554) - (40,554)
— BEgH - amortisation * - 1,809 - 1,809
— B3 (3% 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - (17,307) - (17,307)
IS RENR Cash flow hedges
- BEREREMEEKEA - net gains arising from
MEREEREER hedges recognised in
g 558 other comprehensive
income - - 26,340 26,340
- BAMGm RN THEE — fair value changes
transferred to income
Sstatement — — (79) (79)
— T3 (F7E 14(b) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = = (4,333) (4,333)
HEfb 2wl Other comprehensive income - 87,579 21,928 109,507
BRREB R EED W Transfer of 50% of net
R RE S EEH) 50% risk premium earned from
Z R retained profits to
contingency reserve 260,282 = = 260,282
FA 2\ B2 (e 1 18 Bl = (R BB i A Release of contingency
reserve to retained profits (12,680) - - (12,680)
W=ZE—ZF+—A=+—H/ Asat31December 2010/
—F——%—fH—H 1 January 2011 437,435 255,028 (23,757) 668,706
AEEEEFNATEZS:  Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities:
- REBWEFRE - unrealised net gains - 107,682 = 107,682
— HEREEE (e 12) — realisation on disposal
(Note 12) - (51,884) - (51,884)
— B~ - amortisation * - 663 - 663
— FRIE (M9 5E 14(0) - tax effect (Note 14(b)) - (9,316) - (9,316)
W Cash flow hedges
- BEEREMEEKEA - net gains arising from
TEREERELER hedges recognised in
WS HEE other comprehensive
income - - 2,396 2,396
- AR SR A TEE — fair value changes
transferred to
income statement - - 10,195 10,195
— BiIE (P 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - - (2,078) (2,078)
HEfb2E Other comprehensive income - 47,145 10,513 57,658
BRRBAENERED W Transfer of 50% or 75% of net
RBRIRE FEERI 50% risk premium earned from
5, 75% = R R 7 retained profits to
contingency reserve 307,140 = = 307,140
HERFEEERZRERT] Release of contingency
reserve to retained profits (13,013) - - (13,013)
N_ZE——HF+-"F=+—H As at 31 December 2011 731,562 302,173 (13,244) 1,020,491

* BREERAHLERFEREREE  «
F B SR I R

amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale
securities transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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HAFALTIIIMNEXR 5
(a) ARABHRANRKELS E R

AFDPER - NARIEBHALET
NTZERS

HYTEARESEMERR (&
BEERDHNRZEERBEEER

P& @B T AR REERGRYG
Prie et R B HIZART o SNER
SEBEBEERRAAARREHI00
BETHNEREE R-_T——F
ToA=+T—BN-_Z-—ZF+—
A=+t—B YEREHRB -R_-F
——F+t-H=t—B  ARAFAIL
REBRENBBINEESRERES

—T4F 5B °

HEARFRERNHNR S 2IER M B R
ARZEZEHABAERRN =T ——
FHEENIISBBL(ZE—ZFF:
1.54 8 TT) IRIBE R °

Eﬁii\ﬁw%”ﬂéiﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&

AR S BEEEREET @ B
RAAZAEET /BB ?M%%ﬁﬂ%

BRI E TR ERE

HFRARNRZBERERARMR
%é‘ﬁﬁ’ﬂ&%%%’é%k@%%ﬁ(ﬁﬁ?%) g
FR - AR AR S ATAER KA
X RRIBEA L EF R AERIAR

HAERR - BT

() FEBVARZH

32. Material related party transactions

(a) The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong

as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company entered into
various transactions with the following related parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”),
a Government-related entity, included subscribing to the
custodian and clearing agent services provided by the Central
Moneymarkets Unit (“CMU") Service operated by the HKMA. The
Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided the Company
with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility, and there was no
outstanding balance as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010. The Company held no investment in the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Bills and Notes (“EFBN”) as at 31 December 2011
(2010: HK$500 million).

Transactions with the Government of HKSAR included renting
office premises from The Financial Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”)
and purchasing mortgage loans of HK$118 million in 2011 (2010:
HK$154 million) from the FSI.

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, included the
Company'’s provision of mortgage insurance cover for mortgage
loans purchased by such subsidiary in the course of its ordinary
business.

Transactions with the SPEs included acting as the guarantor for
the MBS issued by the SPEs (Note 33).

The amount of income and expenses arising from these
transactions during the year, the balances of the amounts due to
and from the relevant related parties were as follows:

(i) Income and expenses for the year:

AEE
B B BT HE B B
The Group
The Government and
government-related entities

2011 2010

THET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEBWA - INERESFER REH Interest income — EFBN 112 274
EfbZ it - EHTAHR Other expenses — CMU service

Ziﬁ? AR 1,009 914

WAE -THE Premises — rental 7,833 6,368
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(i) Balances as at 31 December:

M AT
The Group The Company
BUFF BFF HBAR HRAR
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Special purpose entities
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
F#T FHT F#T FHET F#T FHT F#T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEU SR B R FRIE Amounts due from
(B E 22 FNPf =% 24) group companies
(Note 22 and note 24) - = - - 4,883,648 | 3,102,572 161,268 -
EAEEARRE Amounts due to group
companies - - - - - - 122 32,800
Hoph FE AR IE (B2 26) Other payable (Note 26) - - - - - - 358,929 467,734
A B 15 (HTaE 26) Other liabilities (Note 26) 4,182,266 | 4,163,057 4,182,266 | 4,163,057 - - - -
RIBEHLEH B Financial guarantees
PATSHELR under the MBS
programmes - - - - - - 367,252 805,868
BRI IR e 5E Total risk-in-force - = - - 776,614 = 544921 - -
=
(b) EEEEEAS (b) Key management personnel

TREEER/ERNEEAEILE
BRE B M AR E BN A
T BREERSMEEAR -

AEEIEEEEASNHMELE

Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors and senior
officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

2011 2010

TFHT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

ek HEMEHESER Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 15,845 13,678
BRI R Post-employment benefits 1,088 951
16,933 14,629
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33. FRABIREHF(L
ANARBARRERAR - NEBEBES R
& (% —) B8R A7 K Bauhinia MBS Limited #
TIRIBERMEABALIE  EMAZMRE
BRARERIZBENES - ZFEEAEH
BREBERESAEZENXBDITRAR RS H
PR R AR I EHERR ©

EAAREZEEARBESEAUDMBERE
Y& AR R B B A M A0 1B K AR 0 R g % 13 e
o 22ERIERIRISEHRAS

BARRA S A H M7 A HE RIS T A
& UEERERES R &0 (MIEB AR
)RR K EE - BREESE - RIERARK
IFERZBEFAS - ZFRIBEFRER LS
B2 R EENHRRKRIER

REbD EE T RR A B MDA 2 E R TR
BB ERES - BARAERIRIBE

AR ERES RESHOEDTIRE ST
REE - 5 SR AEER DR LR
55 REERBBSNERAEATE -

FE(EAREZER)REF 2REAKRE
— BRAFBRE  ERRAFHEFARAFRNE
FEE ERRFFRA R M EARDRES - AR
HSAFTARRAR  FIbARGRS MR R
ENGRAFACERENEE - TREAEZET
R A RN E RAR R M BRI R A TR
BREE CERIREZEE) REF 125 MEN
SAFASEMHIRARNBIBERES 2R

St

i3

T

33. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE") namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise
mortgage portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two
SPES. These transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
mortgage portfolio concerned from the Company’s statement of financial
position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual
right to receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise
transfers mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is
retained. These mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of
financial position to the extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs, that do not
qualify for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the
fair value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and
the part that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities requires
consolidation of SPEs when the substance of the relationships between
the SPE and the reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by
the reporting entity. This results in consolidating back the transferred
assets to the consolidated statement of financial position. The following
summarises the outstanding principal balances of the mortgage portfolio
transferred to the SPE that were derecognised from the Company's
statement of financial position but were consolidated back to the
consolidated statement of financial position as a result of HK(SIC) INT-12.

2011 2010

FHT FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Bauhinia MBS Limited (Fff £ 20(a)) Bauhinia MBS Limited (Note 20(a)) 169,762 717,786
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34. iR 34. Commitments
(a) &X (a) Capital
AEE PN
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
T#ERT FHIT T#ERT A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHOEBRETL Authorised but not
contracted for 9,490 19,166 9,490 19,107
(b) EEEFHLY (b) Operating lease

MEWMER - RIFAAEHALEE
#IT AL AR R AR AR S AR ER

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed

DITET : as follows:
AEE P /NG|
The Group The Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
TFH&ERT FHET FET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E/NE Y Office premises
NEZR—F not later than one year 19,633 318 19,396 -
ZN—FE later than one year and
PR not later than five years 33,007 - 32,057 -
52,640 318 51,453 -

35. IRIBIRPEETE
ARABEZEBREAREEDERR &2
IR IRBRFETS ©

REZZTE—F+ZA=+—0 ' BRIEREE
HE166BBTL(ZZE—FF  176EBHT)
HA 5 BHEIL(ZE—ZF : 24F %) EM
ZEBRBRARBERRRE  MARRABETT
EERT 1N EBT(ZZE—FF  152{8%7T)
E R o

EHTE 14 BBT(ZE—FF : 1528%8T)
HAARRENRERIRRES S  0EET
ZT—ZF  19EHBT) RRBRENBEE
BEBRERABEBRBABRBEORZ S HEE
B E KR (EE R - AR R FTRE 565 &R -
BIEEREERRBRIBAT R LR E A R o

35. Mortgage insurance business

The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing
basis with its approved reinsurers.

As 31 December 2011, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$16.6
billion (2010: HK$17.6 billion) of which HK$2.5 billion (2010: HK$2.4 billion)
was ceded to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$14.1 billion
(2010: HK$15.2 billion) was retained by the Company.

Out of the HK$14.1 billion (2010: HK$15.2 billion) of risk-in-force retained
by the Company, the excess loss of HK$3.0 billion (2010: HK$1.9 billion) of
risk-in-force was hedged through the use of excess-of-loss reinsurance
arrangement to reinsure the middle layer risk positions, and the Company
retains a portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss and remote risk
portions.
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36. BIRPEE
BRAGEKEEEERERRIERERS
HNETHEZE - UBRBAEBES LG EIRERT
BERIEERIZBES - BFLEIEERN
EIREEABREARFRA R (B ERIZER
HimE - AR FEHERERA) SHER—BLIEE

BHHERNRKELNR - (TEZEERS KM
é%ﬁ’\]?ﬂ%u °©

36. Pledged assets

SPEs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred
by way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS
in accordance with the provisions under the relevant securitisation
programmes. The security trustee appointed under the relevant
securitisation programmes will enforce the securities over the relevant
pledged assets when the relevant SPE (and, in the case of guaranteed
MBS, the Company as guarantor) defaults in payment under any series of
MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default in respect of
any series of MBS.

AREE
The Group
2011 2010
TFHxT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SIRMEE Assets pledged
RITE BF R Time deposits with banks - 9,567
BHEE Investment securities - 278,151
IBBRERHEE Mortgage portfolio 528,691 1,185,520
FEWAIE Interest receivable - 31
528,691 1,473,269
BERFEE Secured liabilities
BEITIRIBE S (MiFE 29) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 29) 367,137 1,529,749

EERRIBESRAS BIEERARRMATEA
BB ERAS (H733) EERIZBE
Zﬁ/\iﬂﬂ%&%—iﬁsﬁéﬁif%éﬁﬁé‘ff%%kiﬂé\

ﬁ*%ﬁl NiERREE (7 26) -

WEEHFER(ZE—ZF : 1,800887T)E
ERTRITEATEIZBREREBNRES

37. BBMBHRR
EERR-F——FWA=+ARE
xR o

AR 75 5

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio
recorded in the SPE's book (Note 33) and the transferred mortgage
portfolio continued to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to
the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement (Note 26).

No time deposits (2010: HK$18 million) are pledged as security deposits
with a bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

37. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 30
April 2012.
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FEERBA S KT Key Portfolio Statistics
—EFE——F —ZT——F —IT——F
—H —A =
EEBEE Asset Purchase Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11
ZEE S / BIEEREEEE Number of Approved Sellers/Servicers 33 33 33
ERE A Number of Active Sellers 27 27 27

FERBEFREHE Number of Residential Mortgage Loans 46,769 46,133 47,275
REBRSHE(BEET) Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 17,946 17,464 21,444
90 H LA EH#5/R 2 (%) >90-Day Delinquency Ratio (%) 0.03% 0.03% 0.02%
G AIRATE (%) Monthly Prepayment Rate (%) 2.60% 1.88% 3.04%
HnE 8 Weighted Average™
HHEEREHEFAEYEEELLR (%)  Loan-to-Value Ratio at Origination (%) 71.3 71.3 68.5
HETRAEREEY)EEEL X (%) Estimated Current Loan-to-Value Ratio (%) 13 40.4 40.7
B 1 B R A B 755 T LA BE 2R (%) Debt-to-Income Ratio at Origination (%) 35.8 35.8 37.3
AHFIERFE(A) Remaining Contractual Term to Maturity (months) 193 189 201
BHEZEAZ(R) Seasoning (months) 52 53 46
EHRFHEI(A) Contractual Life (months) 245 242 247

=

FEELSBE(EEET)

MR

Number 408
Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 4,521

Total Number 47,177

398
4,501

il
‘

380
4,471

47,655

‘

REEACBHTB(EEET) Total Outstanding Principal Balance (HK$ million) 22,467 21,965 25,915
—T——F —T——F —T——F
—A —A =A
1248 1R e =T &I Mortgage Insurance Programme Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11
SERTTEE Number of Participating Banks 24 24 24
A Monthly
BRERE Applications Approved
BEHtERFEEE Number of Applications Approved 2,236 2,388 2,595
BERE(BBEBIT) Total Amount (HK$ million) 5,772 6,418 7,159
VIR SR Types of Property Transaction
—F (%) Primary (%) 1 2 1
=F %) Secondary (%) 99 98 99
BERIER Loans Drawn Down
BIREE R Number of Loans Drawn Down 885 843 1,551
B (E,%,%rn) Total Amount (HK$ million) 2,336 2,244 4,059
ES L b Types of Property Transaction
—F (%) Primary (%) 1 2 3
—F (%) Secondary (%) 99 98 97
BEAE(%) Usage Rate (%)
Bt ERE (EReE) By Applications Approved (Loan Amount) 20.6 21.2 16.5
BIRER(EREE) By Loans Drawn Down (Loan Amount) 10.8 12.3 13.3
—EFE——F —ZT——F —IT——%F
REBES SR Outstanding Treasury Securities —A —A =
(EmEE) (in nominal value) Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11
B TAZTHE (BEBT) Debt Issuance Programme (HK$ million) 25,224 25,674 23914
FHEIE AT S (B 8AT) Medium Term Note Programme (HK$ million) 10,982 11,255 13,108
TEEHF(BSBT) Retail Bonds (HK$ million) 895 257 256
Bauhinia & #BE % (A &8 7T) Bauhinia MBS (HK$ million) 1,478 1,451 1,424
& Notes:

" IBEEHRAME RIS

BER

** Excluding mortgage loans with co-financing and special arrangements
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T—F T——F T—% T—F F—F ZFT—%F ZT—F T—F ZT—F

A hA N +A N\A NA +A +—A +=A
Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11
34 34 34 34 34 34 34 34 34

27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27

46,432 45,516 44,678 44,108 43,693 43,808 43,284 42,744 42,821
20,761 20,110 19,573 19,148 18,924 19,640 19,385 19,125 20,539
0.02% 0.03% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.02%
2.58% 2.38% 2.01% 1.91% 1.50% 1.21% 1.13% 1.13% 0.96%
68.3 68.3 68.3 68.3 68.2 70.1 70.1 70.1 727
40.1 38.9 38.2 37.8 37.8 39.1 38.9 39.6 444
37.3 37.3 37.3 37.3 37.3 36.9 36.9 37.0 37.1
200 200 199 199 199 203 202 202 211

46 47 48 49 50 50 51 51 49

246 247 247 248 249 253 253 253 260

369 859 350 346 340 a2 329 743 736
4,458 4,444 4,426 4,419 4,409 4,398 4,393 5,353 5381

46,801 45,875 45,028 44,454 44,033 44,140 43,613 43,487 43,557
25,219 24,554 23,999 23,567 23,333 24,038 23,778 24,478 25,870
22— —ZT—F —T——F —T——F T——F —T——F —T——F —T——F —ZT——F
A A A 7~A +A NA A +A +—A +=A
Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11
24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24
1,359 2,080 1,574 870 1,024 1,043 318 818 709
3,774 5,717 4,431 2,406 2,754 2,774 2,241 2,159 1,936
3 7 3 2 2 1 5 2 5

97 93 97 98 98 99 95 98 95
1,138 969 984 843 570 511 545 474 425
3,094 2,696 2,647 2,358 1,592 1,408 1,428 1,290 1,135
2 0.3 9 5 1 4 1 3 4

98 99.7 91 95 99 96 99 97 96
13.7 18.1 16.7 13.7 17.4 19.0 18.0 18.2 18.7
1.5 10.2 11.0 1.7 10.8 10.2 12.4 12.2 12.8
T F——F% T—%F ZT—F T——F ZT—F ZT——F T——F ZT—F
usps HA ~A +A NA A +A +—A +=A
Apr-11 May-11 Jun-11 Jul-11 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11 Dec-11
19,717 16,997 16,847 17,998 18,666 18,416 16,755 15,605 15,405
18,905 19,171 18,650 17,319 17,494 18,979 24,980 24,989 24,723
256 256 256 257 257 257 256 256 256
1,398 1,374 1,351 1,325 1,302 1,093 1,084 1,076 367
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Abbreviations Used in this Report

Als
ALCO
BHKMC
BLRs
CAR
cMU
Code
CRC
DIP
EFBN
FSI
Group
Guidelines
HIBORS
HKASS
HKFRSs
HKICPA
HKMA
HKMC/Corporation
HKSAR
HMML
ICO

ISM

LTV
MBS
MIP
Moody'’s
MPP
MTN
ORC
RBIP
RMP
S&P
SFGS
SMES
SPE
The HKMA Survey

Authorized Institutions

Asset and Liability Committee

Bauhinia HKMC Corporation Limited

Best Lending Rates

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Central Moneymarkets Unit

Corporate Governance Code

Corporate Risk Management Committee
Debt Issuance Programme

Exchange Fund Bills and Notes

Financial Secretary Incorporated

The Company and its subsidiaries
Guidelines on the Capital Adequacy Ratio
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rates

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong Monetary Authority

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
Insurance Companies Ordinance
Information Security Manual
Loan-to-value

Mortgage-backed securities

Mortgage Insurance Programme
Moody's Investors Service, Inc

Mortgage Purchase Programme

Medium Term Note

Operational Risk Committee

Retail Bond Issuance Programme
Reverse Mortgage Programme

Standard & Poor’s

SME Financing Guarantee Scheme

Small and medium-sized enterprises
Special Purpose Entities

The HKMA's Monthly Residential Mortgage Survey
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